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BUILDING THE ROAD
TO FUTURE

An organization that builds itself an passion,
perseverance and performance has the ability to
with stand time.

Over the last four decades, Relaxo has etched a
distinctlve name for Itself, dellvering unwavering
quality, uncompromising value, myrlad cholces and a
sense of pride to Its consumers and stakeholders
allke.

As a new phase unfolds, the company gets
future ready to reach newer summits, standing on
sound performance.




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ramesh Kumar Dua Managing Director
Mukand Lal Dua Whale time Directar
Mikhil Dua Whale time Dirschar
Deval Ganguly Whale time Director
Wevek Kumar Independert Directar
Panka] Shrimali Independent Director
Kuruvila Kuriakose Independert Director
Deeps Verma Independent Diractor
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Sushil Batra

COMPANY SECRETARY

Wikas Mumar Tak

AUDITORS

B R Maheswari & Co. LLP,

Crartered Accountants

M-118, Connaught Clrcus, New Delhi - 1000
BAMKERS

State Bank of India

HIFC Bank

Standard Chartered Bank

Kotak Mahindra Bank

HSAC Banik

SHARE THANSFER AGENTS

M fs Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Earyy Selenium Tower-B, Plot Mo, 31-33,
Gachibowli Financial District,

Hyderabad, Telangana - 500 032

RECISTERED OFFICE

Aggarwal City Square, Piot No, 10,
Manglam Place, District Centre, Sector 3,
Rohini, Deki - 110 085

CInE L742990L 1584 PLOONS0ST

WORKS
RFL-IE Il 326-327 MIE, Bahadkergarh, Haryana

REL-M A-1130 & 1130 (A}, RICO industrial Area,
Phaze-lil, Bhiwadi, Rajasthan

RFL-IV 30/3/2, Mooja Hasanpus, Tikrl Border,
Bahadurgarh, Haryana

RFLA §3-37, SIDCUL Industrial Ares BHEL,
Haridevar, Littarakhand

RELYI 342-343, Footwear Park, Industrizl Estate,
Sector 17, Bahadurgarh, Hanyana

REL-WVIE 328-329, MIE, Bzhadurgarh, Hanyana

RELVIL 37, Sector 48, Bahadurgarh, Haryana

From MD's Desk
Hirandat#ishignts

Director's Report

Corporate Governance Report
Manag_ement Discussion & Analysis
Business Responsibility Report
Independent Auditor's Report.
Halance Sheet

Statement of Profit and Loss

Cash Flow Statement

Motes Forming Part of Financial
Statements

Company Information and Significant

Accmmtin_g Policies




FROM THE MANAGING
DIRECTOR'S DESK

Oear Stakeholders,

It gives me great pleasure to announce yet another year of healthy
growth, FY18 was a cnial year for us as we re-emphasized on the
growth agenda. We closed the fiscal year with increase in revenue by
19%, EBITOA by 31% and PAT by 34%. In F¥18, your Company has shown
strong growth on the key financial metrics for the year, despite the
uncertain market scenario and increasing competition.

Your Company has contineed its effort to adapt its product portfolio
with evolving consumer needs and trends enabling an impressive
growth in FY18. Structured market research has been the cormerstone of
portfolio strategy - which has helped us to better understand
tustomer's specific needs, Our focus on in-season |@unches with an
optimal product porifolic has enabled us to deliver right product, at
right price, at right time. New products are the key to sustain any
growth story and gur in-house design team has maintained a strong
mew product portfolio over the years. As a resull, sales contribution
from new product launches has grown across all brands - Relaxo, Flite,
Sparx and Bahamas,

Your Company |launched a strategic Initiative to streamline the
distribution netwaork - especially In under-penetrated markets which
have given us substantial Incremental sales. This has laid the
foundation for mext wave of growth for Relaxo,

The implementation of G5T has been one of the major structural tax
reforms in recent times, | am pleased to inform that vour Company was
ready for GET rof-out with Backend preparation before time which
enabled a smooth transition to the new regime, Further, with the
implementation of G5T share of organised playvers is going to Increase
and your Company.is favourably placed in this scenario.

Your Company has achieved the landmark target of opening 300th
exclusive retail owutlet. During the vear, Company has opened B
franchise outlets (FOFQ) in eastern region on experimental basis, The
initial response to this concept is encouraging. A special focus has been



given 1o inventory management at retail stores; resulting in reduced
Carmying cost.

In order to support sustainabke and profitable growth, your Company
took steps towards manufacturing excellence across all production
units. The program aimed at improving produsctivity and optimizing
manufacturing costs with the help of word class concepts like
Maynard Operation Sequence Technique (MOST), yield improvement,
efr. Im all plants with the help of renowned consulting firms. With
these initiatives, we have been successful inoptimizing manufacturing
efficiency and cosis.

Trust in the brand s essential for its growth and we have been investing
heavily to ensure this objective is met, Shahid Kapoor & Shruti Haasan
have been engaged as brand ambassadors for Flite, while Salman Khan
and Akshay Kumar continue to endorse Bahamas and Sparx brands,

respectivehy.

We belleve modem trade and e-commerce wili continue 1o be the
growth engines of the future and we are well piaced to capitalise on it
Your Company has partnered with all major e-commerce companles for
sale of its products to the emerging online consumers.

We value our employees and have been strengthening our bond with
them through various initiatives such as reward E recognition, training
and ESOP plans. During the vear, 3 second phase of ESOP plan was
introduced encompassing more employees in its ambit,

Iwould like to thank all gur stakeholders - customers, business partners,
Board of Directors, bankers and all our employees for thelr valuable
sugport and belief in the Company.

With Best Regards,

Ramesh KumarDua
Managing Diractor



PERFORMANCE
THAT SPEAKS

Over the years Relaxo has grown, building on its strengths and
strengthening its eguity, net worth and value. As performance

glides up, Relaxo continues putting vision to work by boosting its
DNA and adding more brands to its portfolic.

1976

Launched
Relaxn brand

Revenue: T 12 lacs

T

1995

PO, to-set upa

pant in Haryana

rRevenue: T 3,817 lacs
L




2007

Commenced
gxports

Revenue: < 23,593 lacs

2000

Expanded czpacity

In Haryana

Revenue: T 12,424 lacs

e 2012-14

Business Transformation Initiztives

= Signed top-nofch celshnties as brand
ambassadors

= Strengihened Qistributhon and supody
chain manawemert

« | aunched e-commerce platform

» Increased peopke ENgagement

= Maw product developmient & portfolio strateegy

Revenus: T 1,271,461 lacs




BRANDS THAT ARE LOVED

The art of staying relevant lies in the art of being adaptive to changing times. And in tune with this
philosophy, Relaxo has surely and steadily built its brands, with each one of them promising and
delivering on their promise. All of our brands are carefully crafted in sync with the ever-changing,
ever-evolving footwear demands of the nation.

Through the changing times, Relaxo has been able to maintain solidarity with
its consurmar base of Hawaii slippers. Pasitioned at the core of foctweér demand,

RE‘ ‘-‘xo Relzxa Hawallhas reached the length and breadeh of the natlon making it ahousehald
- name that Is synomymous with durability and comfort,

Flite |s an Immensely popular name In the warld of everyday and semi-formal
category of foobwear, Be It Indoor or outdoor, Flite always fulfills your requirement, -—]
Available In multiple designs and vibrant colowrs, 1T 15 a8 value for money brand for

both men and women wha love to take style and comfort in thelr stride,

| —

The youth s not a segment amymore. It s a cluster of radical, fast moving souls. And
now the ever-evolving taste of young India meets a kindred brand. Relax, chill,
holidays, sun, sand and perpetual fun are often the words that make their way
a a mas to your: mind once you ship into 2 paie of Bahamas, And this is something even
the brand ambassador of Bahamas, 'The Bhaljaan of Bolhywood” - Salman Khan
concurs, Bahamas is cofourful, vibrant, stylish and exudes the peppy sentiment of

young India,

To make change @ part of life, one must thrive for it In the footwear categony, 3
thera exists 2 segment that craves for adrenaline rush. To match their energy and
enthusiasm, we present to them - SPARX, a range of sports and casual footwear
which cater to the needs of sportsmen, fitness enthusiasts and other adrenaline
lovers, Which is wiw, just ik its users, it stops 3t nathing. With @ pair of Sparcon,
no chatlenge |5 insurmountable and no adds are tod highe —"




On the young shoulders of students rest the future of our nation. They are the
agents of great change. And they need a pair of shoes that understands them well,
SCHOOLMATE Sthookmate Is thet brand, Schoolmate is 3 rangs of comfortable and turable
A BTEP AHEAD school dmalhrhmnuigtﬂs.mdhﬁdgmdmnﬂhmmﬂng
demants of thase young feet.

Imaging ﬂ':!ﬂng aroursd In a pair of ﬂm: that makes a pmmlnunt ltnqmnm
about your impeccable taste and classy style. Well, we have a word for such

imegination - BOSTON. It is @n exclusive range of shoes for men who stay abreast BO STO N
with the changing times. Crafted to perfaction. BOSTON is best-in-class in its —

soement.To rrn'ﬂ:hymrfuﬂm itls mllul:ln lndrl‘ﬁumn'c styles urul loaks.

just like time, fashion is fleeting. Gently gliding away to make way for new trends.
But Ladles! You need to giide along. So. when comfort is paramount and style can't
be taken for granted, here is 2 name to count an - Mary Jane. it is designed 1o exude
style without putting your tender feet under any stress, Mary Jane |s made of H
best materials that are gentle to your feet and high on comfoet, |

Kids grow 3¢ fast 25 style changes its gears. So here i 2 range for those happy and o
- restiess feet. KIODS F’.cﬂflsam;!nfnnl cobourful footwear that the next-gen kids

! fall In love with, Buy ane for your kid,the foundation of the future, and make him

%

stand oyt of the crowd,

Dan't fall back with changing times. hiﬁtﬂfﬁ.]Uﬂh'ﬂmrﬂf'ﬂf ﬂi!{:rhg{lﬂ:ﬂ

' ipirrufmnlfmfwtit'ﬂﬁlpi[rnfEisJih.HluhurTnuiﬂt\rindiniﬁttﬂﬁ
\ su_alz euér-ﬂlanglng style guotient, Casvalz Is ‘availzble in mul‘l:lph style and shades.
So.now your style won't take a break even if you are onane,




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Particulars

Ma. of Pairs sold (in Crones)

Sales

Revenus from Operatlons

EBITOA

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortlsation Expense
Tax Expenze

MNet Profit before OC)
Equity Share Capital

et Worth

Met Fixed Assets (Tangible and Intanglble)
Capital Emplayed

Capital Expanditure

Growth In Sales{%)

EBITOA (%)

Face Value per Share In ¥}

EPS - Basic (in¥)

EPS - Diluted {in 2}

Dhvidend (%}

Book Value par share (In T )

ROCE{%)

Market Capitallsation {As on J1st March)

The above Financial Highlights for 2617 and 2718 are based on Ind AS,

*Crowth In sales as per ICAAR
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

Tha Board of Mirectors of your Company take pleazure in presenting s report on the working of the Company for the Financlal Year 204718,

1 FINANCIAL RESULTS

Particulurs

Rewenue from Operations
EBITDA
Other Incame
Less : Finance Costs
Less ; Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Profit befare Tax
Less : Tax Expanse
Profit after Tax
Other Comprehensive Income
Balance brought forward from Prewious year
Amount available for Appropriation
Appropriation :
Final Dividend *
Tax on Final Dividend *
Transfer to General Aeserve
Balance carrled to Balznce Shest
EPS-Basic (In ¥}
EPS-Dilluted {In T}

*DOividend Distributed durng the year,

(¥ i Crones)
2016-17
1564 44 a5y
0205 23091
446 1361
B.55 .03
L7 S.an
143.62 T78.03
8255 CR.08
1eLo7 19.55
{o.40) 1229
12.81 .24
1348 1H148
120 il
245 147
125.00 10.00
34,02 12,81
13.40 9.99
13.38 398

The Ind [AS) provisions were applicable on the Company w.ef 00.04. 5077, therefore the Financial staterments for FY18 and comasponding pravious year

were prepared &s per ind (AS).

1. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The key highights of the Company's financlal performance durlng the

Financlal Year 204 218 are ghven here baloma:-

*  Revenue from operations Increased by 18.97% to 7136444
Crores from ¥ 1651.97 Crones In thelast Financial Year,

= EBITOA Increased by 30.82% to ¥ 302.0% Crores; with EBITOA
marginincreased by 140 bps t015.38%,

= Mot Profit increased by 34.28% to ®161.0F Cromes from € 11555
Crores in the last Financial Year,

= Mot Profit marging intreased to B.20%.

= Total retall outlets increased from 270 to 302 durlng the Financial
Yiar,

3. PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
(A) FINANCIALS

Your Company has been able to show strong growth on the key
financial metrics for the year, despite the market scenado being
uricertain and Increasing competition in the year, Management
believes that your Company will continue Hs journey af profitable
growith driven by the strong fundamentals of operating model,
overshelming desine to serve customers B end consumer, strearmling
of Indirect tax laws by Introduction of GST and cortinwed focus on the
long term business plan,

RELAXL) FOUTWEARS LIMITED



* Unending focus on consumer needs and qualiby.

Revenue T 1964.44 Cr.
Growth 18.91%

EBITDA T 302.09 Cr.
Growth 30.82%
Margin 15.38%

PAT T 161.07Cr.
Growth 34,28%
Margin 8.20%

ML - FENANIC AL S - G ROV T LRSS
Consumer focus [ Product inmevation

Your Company continued fs relentfess efforts to understand the
consumer and has designed Its portfolio In line with thelr changing
tastes, Structured markel resesrch spprosch slong with regular
markel sansing exercises have kapt your Company abreast with
consumer needs acrass different reglonal, economic and demographic
strata, Our focus on In-season launches with an optimal product
portfolio has enabled us to deliver rght product, ot fght price, ot dght
time,

Distribution architecture and footprint expansion

Your Company launched a strategic Initiative to streamline the
distribution network-especially in underpenetrated madeets which
have ghven us substantial incremantal sales. This has laid the
foundation for next wawve of growth for Belaxo,

Your Company also moved away from & category led sales to &
geography led sales organization structure. This allowed us to offer the
full breadth of our brands to our distributor partners and providing
scale In their business. The organization restructurng was carrled out
in & gquick but streamlined manner without any market level
disruptions and losing key talent.

‘Your Company has continued |ts effort to adapt Its product portfollio
with evolving consumer needs and trends enabling R impressive
growth in FY18. Structumed market research has been the comer stani
of this portfolio strategy = it has helped ws to better understand the
customer's typlcal usage oorasions, key purchase drivers and identlfy
any evalving opportunity spaces for our portfolio, Al this has been
achievad within the guardrails of Relaxc's overall strategy of an
“optimal sized® prodwct portfoliowith high guality products.

Wi products ane this key to sustain amy growth stery and aurin-hauss
dasign team has supported us to maintain a strong new product
portfolio over the years. As a result, sales contribution from new
product launches has continued to graw In FY18, across all brands -
Reirlasee, Flits, Spars and Bahamas,

ANNUAL REPQRT A017-18

* Latting capable channel partners & superior on ground execution
* increased presence In new / emerging channels (modem trade, e- commernoe),

* Aggresshve expansion in new/ under penetrated geographies.
* Continued expanshon in owned retall footprint.

Robust cost conimol with margin Improvement inktiathves

* Manufacturing excellence snd quality improvement

Implementation of value creation projects to ald bottom line improvement.
« Regular disposal of zged Inventong.

« EBITOA prowth driving PAT growth for the Company.
* Control over administrative and operative expenses

In parailel, your Compamy has continued to Imvest extensivaly in its
brandswith an alm to relnfarce trust, ddve consumer recall and sustain
demnand pull forour brands,

Acclaimed cebebrities fuch as Salman Khan and Akshay Kumar
continue to be brand ambassadors For Bahamas and Sparx
respectively whila Shahid Kapoor & Shruti Haasan have been engaged
afresh for Flite.

Digital marketing: With an objective to tonnect with the younger
generation, your Company has enhanced its digital marketing
strategy to stimulate consumerns throughout the entire punchase
cycle. Widaning the range of digital marketing activities. we alm ta (a)
Enhance product exposure via grester sockal media campaigns, (b}
influence consumer purchase via advacacy marketing and ic} Bulld
considerationvia sdvertisingon e-commerce portals.

E-commernce

Increasing smartphone penetration in the country coupled with
evolving shopping habits of the consumes, who fookes for ease and
convenience, has resulted in rapld growth of e-commerce chanmels.
Your Company has partnened with all majer e-commece companies far
sales of its products to the emenging online consumers and has posted
a decent growth In Fy18. While the Indian market continues to be our
focus, your Company made conslderable efforts to strengthen
wparations In intemational mareets, with a specific focus on Middle
Eazst, Africa and Oceanla. Your Company has opened branch office in
Oubal to ba nearer to customer. Given a strong brand recall and 2
widespread Indlan diaspora, your Company |5 well positoned to
capitallze an growth from these regions.

Ratall

in F¥18, your Company has achieved landmark target of opening 300"
exclusive retall outlet. Retail continues to be instrumental in
Increasing brand wvislbliity and range of products. Ouring the year,
Company has opened 8 Franchise outlets [FOFD) in eastern region on
experimental basis. The initial response tothis concept is encowraging.



bn order bo malntain eptimum inventory level, retail division has
focussed on store to store motation of stock and on lguidation of aged
Imwentany, resulting In reducing imentony days.

Procurement

Vendar Portal was lsunched for online registration of new vendors Lo
improwve vendons base besides facilitating existing wendors to upgrade
thelr profiles, new prodwcts affering etr.

Durirg bha yiar, Sudit was caried out on main vendors for assessment
of their infrastructure and guality control systems maintained by
tham. This helpedin making them more awane about ourexpectations
about guality In supplies. This Initiative helped in rationalizing and
Impreving vendor partfolia,

During FY18, your Compamy not only focused on iImproving the qualbty
of products but slso in imperoving various packaging materals.
Manufacturing

Global competition is becoming a marathon rece towand a new age of
advanced and “smart” (lean, effident, cost effective, flexible, robotics
and Al based) manufacturing. Your Company took Inltlatives almed at
Improving productivity and optimizing manufacturing costs by
applying world class manufacturing concepts like Maynard Dperation
Sequence Technigue (MO5T), yield improvement etc, in all plants. We
glso continued 55 journey along with safety enhancement projects for
betterwarking environment.

Technalogy

F¥18 was the year of technology advancement that has put us in the
top of IT adoption and compilance graph helping the Company to
leverage tec hnolopy in achieving its business goals,

Your Company was ready for G5T mllout with backend preparation
before time, which helped in its smooth implementation. We inftiated
implementation of SAP HANA for retail operations which will help In
improving and standardizing processes, Company updated its IT
landscape [ Applications by deploying ATP [Advance Threat
Protectlon) solution fordata security.

I50 Cortification

Relaxs has been certified by British Standards Instituts (BS) for 150

S001:2015 [Quality Management System], 150 140012015

(Environmental Management System) & OHSAS 18001:2007

(Ocrupational Heslth & Safety Assessment Serles) till june 2020. The

Quality, Endviranmental and Safaty Policy symbalizes tha

organization’s commitment towands Improving product and process

guality, protecting mother nature and safeguarding the peopla
warking for and on behalf of the crganization.

PFeaple Focus

HR function has taken following key inftisthves in Fy8:

5] Recrultment: Your Company's sales and capabllities are growing
at a rapld pace. We drove o serles of initlatives to Improve guality
and spead in hiring sales team by introducing new mcrultars and
created bench strength for the function. Your Company has
crapted a pool of future leaders by hirlng management trainess
fram top B-Schools and engingering Institutes. Several
initlatives wene talen for employer branding by communicating
company philosophy & cufture through social medla and guest
lectures In presnlum carmpeses.

bl Employes Stock Options Plan (ESOF): Second phase of RFL
ESOP PLAN -2014 was launched during the year. The 7™ phase of
ESOP Plan was irntroduced encompassing mone employess In its
ambit and acconlingly options were granted to them durng the
yEar,

€) Grievence Handling: Your Company has continued to spread
awareness about the mechanlsm and facllitles for grievancs
handling. We have a todl free helpdesk number and a dedicated
emall wherein the employees can report their grievances, which

4,

LN

ara thoroughly imestigated and closed &5 per TAT (tum around
time) defined in the policy:

d) Training snd Development: Your Company has continued to
impart need based functional and behavioral trainings to
employess during Fii8.

&) Employes Engagement: Your Comparny has facused an creating
a congenial workplace & employes engagement by initiating
family tonnect programs, skip level Inbéraction sessions and
heatth &wellness camps.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Distussion & Analysls Report forms an Integral
part of this Report and gives detalls of the overall Industry structure,
developments, performance and state of affairs of the Company's
business, intermal contrals and thelr adequacy, rsk mansgement
wystams and other material developmant during the Financial Year,

DIVIDEND

Board of Directors In thelr meeting held on W™ May, 2018 have
recommended @ final dividend of 150% |.e. T 1,50 per equity shane for
the Firancial Year ended 31" March, 2078. The Proposed Dividend is
subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General
Mesting to be held on 27" September, 2018,

TRANSFER TD RESERVE

We propose to transfer Net Profit of ¥ 125,00 Crores to the General
Reserve. &n amount of ¥ 34.02 Crores is proposed to be retalned in
profit & loss sccount

Your Company has not invited or accepted any deposits within the
meaning of Sections 73 & 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together
wiith the Companles (Acceptance of Deposits) Aules, 2004 [including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment{s) thereaf for the time
balng Infore) from public during the year under review,

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (BRR)

In Compllance with the provisions of Reguiation 34[2)(f) of SEBI
({LODR} Regulations, 2015 read with Circular No
CIR/CAYEMDMD 0TS dated November 4, 2015, your Company has
prepaned = BRR in the prescribed format for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 28, which forms an Integral part of this repart.

OISCLOSUAE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY
MAMACERIAL PERSOMMEL & PARTICULARS OF EMPLOVEES

In accordance with Section 778 of the Companies Act, 3013 read with
rules Issued thereunder and SEB [aws, the Board of Directars at thedr
manting held on 10" May, 204 formulated the Nomination &
Remuneratbon Policy of your Company, The sallent aspects covered
in the Momination and Remuneration Policy, covering the policy on
appolntment and remunerntion of Directors and ather matters have
ben autiined In the Corporate Covernance Repart which farms part
of this report: The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is available
on the website of the Company at the following link
htep:ffwww relaxofootwear.com/pdf/Nomination-and-
rermuneration-polliogpdl

Tha information required under Section 157 of the Companles Act.
2013 read with Companles [(Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
maodification(s) or re-enactmentls) thereof far the time being in
force}in respect of Oirectors  Employees of your Company s set out
In Anneoure -A to this report.

0. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERLAL PERSONMNEL

DOuring Financlal Year 307718, Mr, Nikhil Duwa was reappointed as
Whole Time Directar for a period of three years w.e.f 7" October, 2017
by the shareholders In the Annual Ceneral Meeting held on 217
Segternber, 2M7

RELAXL) FOUTWEARS LIMITED



Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua, Managing Dleectar and Mr. Mukand Lal Oua,
Whals Time Directar of the Company mtlre by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offered themseives for re-
appsmtment,

Your Directors mecommand thelr re-appointment a5 the Directors af
the Compary,

Pursuant to the provisions of Secthons 196,197, 198 and 203 read with
Scheduls V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors, Mr. Ramesh Kumar Oua,
whose term as Managing Director shall explre on 31.03.2009, Is
proposed to be ré-appolnted a5 3 Managing Dirsctor of the Company
for a period of 5 {five) years with effect from 07,04,2009 to 31.03.2024,
and subject ta retirement by rotation, on the tevms and conditfons
including remuneration a5 set out In the explanatory statement
annpced to the notice convening the ensulng AGM,

Pursuant to the provisions of Sectons 196,197, 198 and 203 read with
Schedule V and other applicable previsions of the Companies Act,
7013 and on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration
Committes and the Board of Directors, Mr. Mukand Lal Dua, whose
term as 'Whode Time Director shall expire on 31.03.2019, s proposed to
be re-appointed 35 3 Whole Time Directaor of the Comparmy for a perhod
af 5 {five) years with effect from 01.04.7013 to 31.03.7024, and subject
to retirement by rotation, on the terms and conditions including
remuneration as set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the
notlce convening the ensulng AGM. He is also golng to
attain ageof 70 years during the proposed tenure.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sectons 196,197, 198 and 203 read with
Schedule V and other applicable previsions of the Companies Act,
703 and on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration
Committes and the Board of Directors, Mr, Deval Cangihy, whose term
a5 ‘Whole Time Director shall expire on 04,1128, ks propesed to be e-
appointed as a Whale Time Director of the Company for a perhod of 3
(three) years with effect from D51.2008 to D411.2031, and sublject to
retirement by rotation, on the terms and conditions including
remuneration as set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the
notice comvening the ensuing AGM.

The first term of Independent Directors Mr. Panka] Shemall, Mt Vivek
Bumar and Mr. Kunuvila KEuriakose shall expire on 31.03. 2018, They
hane shown thelr interest to continue as Independent Directors for
the next term of five years, On the ecommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors
recommendation has been made to membars for appointment of Mr,
Pankaj Shrimali, Mr. Vivek Kurmar and Mr Kurovila Kurfalose as
Independent Directors of the Company for the next term of 5 (five)
years with effiect from 01.04.2019 10 31.03. 2024 in the ensulng AGM.

& brief resume of the Directors proposed to be re-appolnted, the
natiure of thelr expertise In specific functlonal areas, names of
companies In which they hawe held Directorshlps, commltiee
membershipfs / chalrmanshipfs, their shareholding etc,, are
furnished In the explanatory statement ta the notice of the ensuing
ACM, The Boand of Directors recommend their re-appolntrment at the
ensulng AGM.

. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE

Im terms of provisions of Companies Act, 203 read with Aubes issued
thereunder and SEBI {LODR) Regulations 20M5, the Board of Directars
on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneération
Commilttes, have evaluated the effectiveness of the Board/
Director(s) for the Financial Year 20N7-18. Directoes wene evaluated on
their contribution st Board [ Committes meetings and guldance &
support to the management outside Board / Committee meetings.
During the year Company engaged renowned consultants to reset the
parameters for performance evaluation of Board, Directors) and
Commitiees which helpad in setting the guldelines forevaluation,
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The Boand's fenctioning was evaluated on various aspects, including
inter alia degres of fulfillment of kiy responsibilithes, Board structure
and composition, mia and accountability, management oversight,
risk management, culture and communication, frequency and
effectiveness of meetings.

The cammittess of tha Board were assassad on the basis of degree of
fulfillment of key responsibilities, adeguacy of committes
compasition and effectheness of meetings. The Chalrman appalnted
for the Board mestings was also svaluabed by all the Directors on the
basis of managing elations, leadership, competence and dillgence.
The Iindependent Directors performance evaluation was camied owt by
the entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. The
performance evaluation of the Chalrman and the Non independent
Directors was amied out by the Independent Directors who alsao
reviewed the performance of the Board a5 awhole.

12. NUMBER OF MEETINCS OF THE BOARD

The Board met five times durlng the Financial Year, the detalls of
which are ghven in the Corporate Governancs Report that forms part of
this Annual Report. The Intervening gap between any twa
consecutive meetings was within the period prescribed by the
Companles Act, 2013, SEBI [LDOR) Regulations, 2005 and Secretaral
Standard-1(55-1).

13. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT HHRECTDRS

The Company has recelved necessary declaration from each
indapendent Director under Section 145(7) of the Companies Act, 2013
that he/she meets the criterla of Independence lald down In Section
143(E) of the Companies Act, 2073,

4. TRAINING DF INDEPENDENT DIRECTDRS

The Company makes presentation to the new independent Directors
gbout the strategy. operations, plants, products,
organitation stricture, finance, human resource and facilities. During
the year, Company had arranged presentations for the Independent
Directors, on business operating plans. capital expenditure plans, HR
paolicies, retall business, GST, Ind {AS), memger laws and compllance
procoss.

Further at the time of appointment of an Independant Olrector, the
Company [ssued 3 formal letter of appointment outlining his / ber rode
function, duties & responsibifities a5 an Independent Director, The
format of the letter of appointment Is available on our website
hitp:f fenenw.relaxofootwear.com)/ terms - conditions, aspo.

15. DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Sectlon 134 of the Companles Act, 2013 with regard to

Director's Responsibillty Statement, itks henaby confirmed that:

d) In the preparation of the annual accoumts for the year ended
March 31, 20718, the applicable sccounting standards read with
requirements et out under Sthedule I te the Act have been
folkowed and theme are no materal departures from the same;

b} the Directors have selected such accounting palicles and applied
them conslstently and made judgements and estimates that ane
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and falr view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 3, 20N8 and of the
profitof the Company forthe year ended on that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficlent came for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assels of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
iregularitles;

dl the Directors have prepared the annval accounts on @ ‘going
Concam’ hatis;

g} the Direcioss heve laid down Intemal Financial Controls to be
followed by the Company and that such Internal Financial
Controds are adequate and are operating effectively; and



M the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that suth systems
ant adeguate and operating effectively.

. AUDITORS

Tha Statutony Auditors of the Company M/s B A Mahesward & Co LLP
Chartered Accouniants wens sppointed during the year for o period of
fhve years and will hold office till 38th Annual Caneral Meeting subject
to Section 139 and other applicable proviskons of Companies Act, 23
i b hetd In year 2022 subject to the annual ratification by mambers,
IFrequdred ot evary Aol Genarad Maeting,

Tha Minlstry of Corporate Affairs vide it Notification dated 7th My,
M8, dispensad with the requireront of ratification of appaintrmant
of Statutory Auditors at every AGM. Accordingly, the proposal for
ratification of appointment of Statutory Audiors |5 not forming part
of the Motice convening ensuing Annual Ceneral Mesting of the
Compary.

. AUNTORS REPOAT

Tha Auditer's Report for the Anandal year snded Tist March, 2018
dows not contan sy qualification, reservation or stvens remarks
Tha obssrvation of the Auditors on the Accounts for the year under
repart have been ssitably explained in the Notes o Actounts and do
it require amy further clarification.

. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the proviskons of Section- 204 of the Cormpanies Act, 2073
read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Manageral
Personnel) Rules, 2004, (including any statutory modifications{s) or
re-anactment(s) theseof for the time bebng In force) your Company
appointed Mfs Vivek Arora, Company Secretaries, 1o conduct the
Secretarial Audit of the Campany for the Financial Year 200718, The
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financisl Year 201798 forms part of
the Arnusl Aeport o Anmerure-8 1o this Report.

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Retum in form
MGT-9 in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2073
read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
204, ara st out herewith as Annesiure-C to this epart.

0, CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All Contracts [ amangemants / transactions snteved by the Campany
during the Financlal Year with related parties were In the ordinary
caurse of the business and on the am's length basls and were In
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act)} and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. During the year, the
Company had not entered into any contract | arrangement [
trarviaction with related parties which could be consldensd material in
accordance with the policy of the Company on materdality of Relsted
Party Tranmactions that would have requined Sharshalders approval
urice Risguiation 13 of SEB1 {LODR) Regulations, 2015

The policy on materality of relstead party traniactions and dealing
with related party transactions as approved by the Board
may be accessed on the Company's website at the link
Wt f fwweew, relaxofootwear.com) pof) Pollcy-far-Transac thons-with-
ralated-Parties. pdf

Wour Directors draw attention of the members to Note Mo, 47 1o the
Financlal Statements which sets out related party disclosures.

The form ADC-3 pursuant to section 134{3)(h} of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Aule B(2) of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 204
[including amy statutory modificatisnis) or re-enactmentis) thereof
for the thme being in force) 5 setout a3 Ansexzere-0 to this Report.

T, MERLERS AND AMALCAMATIONS

Your Company had filed 2 petition with National Comparny Law
Tribunal (NCLT) Defhi for amalgamation of M/s Marvel Polymers

Private Limited and M/s Relaxs Rubber Private Limited with your
Company akong with ity shareholders and creditors. During FYW8, your
Company has oblained necessary approvals from stack exthanges
NSE G BSE.

Z1. DETAILS OF LOAMS, GUARANTEES F INVESTMENTS

The details of leans, gusraniees and investments under Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of Board
and [ts Powers) Rules, 2074 are as follows -

a) Dutalls of Investmants made by the Company as on 317 March,
2018 (Including investments made in previous years).
0} Investmant in squity shanes T 20,00 Lacs
(1) Irvestrment ndebt instruments T 50.00 Lacs

b) Detallsof loans glvenbythe Company - NIl

c] There are no guarantess issued by your Company in stcordsnce
with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 200 read with the Rules
Issusd themsunde.

3. RISK MAMACFRENT

Your Comparmy recogrioes that rsk bs an integral part of busires snd
is committed to managing the risks in @ proactive and efficient
manner. The lompany has adopted a Risk Management Pollcy which
estabilishes varlous levels of accountabifity within the Comgpany, The
policy also snsunes effecthe sk management systems to cary out
risk assessment and also to document risk mitigation plans. In
edditlon, sl the ki risks get continuously delfberated and discussed
during business review meetings. Company has taken many
initlatives to further strengthen the GRC framework ot Relaxo
which includes automation of compliance monitodng, litigation
management and doetumentation of Delegetion of Authority
(Operational / Financial). The Company has benn taking
rECESEATY Steps to mitigats forecesable business risks. The Company
has laid down procedunes to inform the Andit Comemettes as well a6
the Board of Directors about risk assessment & management
precedure snd siatus. Butinesd dak evalustion snd management i an
engoing and continusus process within the Company.

Your Company bellees that the collective development of all the
stakahalders aspecially the people at the bottom of the pyramid s
prerequisite for the sustalnability & the holistic development of the
business,

The CSH Vislon of your Company Is to mrswre sustalned human
development of the most deprived communities by involving tham
b leveraging Companmy's strength In need-based, result-orentsd,
and sustalnable projects.

Your Compamy hae decided to work under two thrust amas, ‘Bducation
b Skill development’ and ‘Health & Hygisne', primarily with the
L privilegEd communities lving in the vicinity of Relins iocatiom.
Howerver, being one of the mest populs howsshold brand Relam has
presence Jcross indis thersfors, your Company intends to work
beyond thess grographical boundaries.

Fregantly, Relaso Foundatlon i running six projects in four different
lecations. Ouring the reporting period, the activities of the
Foundation heve directly impacted more than 20,000 Indhiduals.
However, theindirect reach has been much maone,

The rationale and strategy under both thrugt ameas am mentioned
bplow-

8} Education & Skill Development
Relawn Foundation & undertaking projects both in the mral and
han aneas Towards ensuring the holistc deveiopment of the
underprivileged children through an integrated approach. The
short-tevm goal of the sducation progam s to improve the
guality of education & leaming ootmome of the Gowmment
schoal sludents. However, the long-term goal i to create 2
model of school-led-individual & community-development,
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whareln through schoal the other aspects of the community can
be addressed like health, gender, local self-governance,
Ivelibood ofc., 50 that the entire community could be uplifted.
Along with schoo! education, Relaxs Foundation is also
providing Vacational training to school and college drop-out
underprivileged youth.

Ouring the year under review, your Company has initiated three
prejects under Education & Skill Development viz. project 'Model
Schoal’ In 13 Primary schools of Khanpur Block in Haridwar
District of Uttarakband; "Student to Scholar’ program In
Bahadurgarh and a retail sector specific vocational training
course n Delhi.

bl Heaith & Hyglenae

Awallphility, accessibility and affordability of health services is 2
huge challenge for the socio-economically backward
communlties that lead to higher morbidity and mortality. Alsa,
Inindla, the Non-Communicable Diseases are on @ rise which ane
the life style disorders and an emerging Mational Health
challenge. Relaxo Foundation belleves that protection from
diseases not only ensure survival but can contribute significantly
In the ecanomic growth and prosperity of an Indhvidual, family
i the Nation at large.

Thmough Need assessment, Bhiwsdl emerged as the most
deprived area In terms of avallabllity and accessibility of health
services, Therefore, in the reporting period, Relaxo Foundation
has initiated two extensive projects involving both curathe and
preventive heakthcame services. One project is 'Smile on Whesl
(Comprehenshve Health Care)' addressing the general health
needs of the community and the other project is 'Mavan' towards
prewantable blindness covering the entire Tijara Blodk of Alwar
District.

In FY18, the focus of your Company was mome on developing the
strategy and laying down strong foundation for the Refaxo CSR
so that the amount could be spent on impactful and sustainable
projects. Along with this, the Foundation adopted consultative
process to finallze the projects and did stringent due diligence
process for the |dentification of the Implemanting Partners, The
time invested In this whole process, resulted in the delay of
praject Inltlatlon that lead to underspent of C5R budget,
However, a slgniflcant amount has been allocated and other
prejects ana under conslderation. Consldering the progress, your
Company Is confldent to Increase C5R spending in the next
financlalyear,

Detalled report of all the on-golng (SR projects s mentioned In
Annexure-E.

25, COMPOSITION OF ALIDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee as on March 31, 208 comprises of the
following Directors:

bir. Pankaj Shrimall (Chairman & Independent Directar), Me Kurwvila
Kudakose (Independent Director), Mr. Vivek Komar (independent
Director) and Mr. Mikhil Dua (Executive Director).

Further, all recommendations of Audit Commilites were accepted by
the Board of Directors.

« VIGIL MECHANISM
Your Company Is committed to highest standards of ethical, moml
and fegal business conduct, Accordingly, the Board of Directors have
Tormiulated o Whistle Blower Policy which Is in compliance with the
provisions of Section 177010) of the Companies Act, 203 and SEBI
Laws. The copy of the policy Is aveilable at Company's website at
hitp:f fenanw.relaxofoobwear.com/pdffVigll-Mechanism- Pollcy. pdf.

I7. DISOLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT,
2
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The Compamy has 7em tolerance towands sexual harassment at the
workplace and has adopted a gender neutral policy on prevention,
prohilbition and redressal of sexus harassment st workplace.

An Internal Committes {IC) is avallable at gach of the units and offices
of the Company as per the requirements of the law. The IC is
respansible for redressal of complaings refated to sexwal harassment
a6 winll 2 to create 2 prinventive environment acrods the organization,
The Company conducts sensitization | awareness sessions on a
reguiar basls soas to create a free and falrworking envimonment.

The IC recehved one complaint of Sexual Harassment during the year
under review and the same was dispased off as per the provisions of
law. It is our constant endeavour to ensure that we provide
harassment free, safe and secure warking envirenment to all
employess specially the women. We are proud o inform that our
famabs workforce feels happy and safewhile working 3t Relaxn.

20. SIGMIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
RECULATORS

There are no slgnificant and materal orders passed by the Regulators
ar Courts of Tribunals Impacting the going contemn status of your
Companyand [ts operations in futune.

29, CREDIT RATING

Ouring the year under review, I0AA has upgraded Long term rating of
the Company to ICRA AA- (stable outicok) fraom ICRA A+ [posithe
autfoak), During the year, ITRA has reaffirmiod short term rating of the
Company a5 Al= which Is the highest rating for the product. IORA has
also reaffirmed Al+ top notch rating to the Company for Commercial
Paperof € 50,00 Crores

30. CONSERVATION OF ENERCY, TECHNOLOGY ARSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARMINGS ANDOUTGD

The partlewlars relating to conservatlon of energy, technology
absorptlon; forelgn exchange eamings and outgo, as regulred to be
disclosed under the Act, are provided in Anmemere-F to this Beport,

3. EMPLOYEES STOCK OFTION PLAN

During the year, 223,370 options were exercised by the employess
after vesting, Accordingly, the Company has made allotment of
233,370 equity shares on 4" Movember, 2017 agalnst the options
exercised by the employees, Company launched 2™ tranche of
Employee Stock Option Plan 2004 ("AFL ESOP PLAN-2014") during
the year and granted 494,200 options in 2 tranches to eligible
employees of the Company.

During the Financisl Yesr 201718, there has been no change in the
Employee Stock Dption Plan 2004 ("RFL ESOP PLAN-20W") of the
Company. Further, it is confirmed that the ESOP Scheme of the
Comgpany is in compliance with SEBI (Share Based Employes Benefits)
Regulations, 2004,

The detalis as per the requirements of SEB| Culdelines are annexed
and form part of this Beport as Annexure=0.

32, CHANGE INSHARE CAPITAL
During the year under rivies, the Company has issurd and allotted
223,370 equity shares of ¥ 1.00 each fully paid up on exercise of stock

opthons by the eligible employees under the Employes Stock Optlon
Plan, 2& [AFL ESOP PLAN -204) thereby increasing the paid up

sharacapital by ¥ 233,370/
33, INTERMAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has In place well defined and adequate Internal
Financlal Control frRmework which s Independently evaluated by
external agency apart from perlodic evaluation by in-house Intemal
Audit function for necessary improviment, whennar requined, The
Company deploys a mbust system of internal controls that facilitates
the accerate and timely compllation of financlal statements and
management reports which ensures regulatory and statutory
compliantes along with sateguarding of investors intersst by ensuning



the highest ievel of governance. The control system ergunes that all
aisets are safequarded and protacted and RET the transactions are
authorired, recorded and reported comecthy. A CED and CFD Certificate
ing uded in the Corporats Covemancs Report confirms the existence of
effective iremal control systems and procedures in the Compary. The
Audlt Committes reviews the effectivensss of the internal finandal
contil frarmewri in the Company.

34. CED AND CFO CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33(7)(s) of the SERI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations, 2075,
the CED and CFO certification is attached herewlth tha funnual Report
which confirms the existence of effecthe Internal control systems
and procedures In the Company, The Managing Dirctor and the Chief
Financlal Dfficer also provide quarterly certification on Financial
Results while placing the Financial Results before the Board in terms
of Regulation 33(7Ha) of the SEBI (Listing Dbligation and Disclasure
Requirements) Reguiations, 2075,

As per the provisions of Regulation 39{4) of the Listing Regulations,
the unclaimed shares lying in the possession of the Company are

required to be demateralized and transfered into a special demat
acrount hedd by the Company. Acomdingly, unciaimed shares bying
with the [ampamy have besn transferred and dematedalized in 2
“Unciaimed Susperse Account” of the Compary. This account i being
heid by the Company purely on behal? of the sharehaiders entitied for
these shares. it may also be noted that all the comporate benefits
accruing on these shares like bonus, spiit et if any. shall also be
credited to the said “Unclaimed Suspense Account” and the voting
rights on these shams shall remaln frozen until the rightful owner
clailrms the shares.

Sharsholders who have not et claimed thelr shares, are requested to
Immediately approach thie Reglstrar & Transfer Agents of the
Company by forwarding a request letter duly signed by all the jalnt
holders fumnishing self attested copies of their complete postal
addreis along with PIN code, & copy of PAN card along with proof of
address and for delhvery bn demat form, 2 copy of Demat Account -
Clignt Master Aepar duly certified by the Depositery Particigant (DP)
and a recent Demat Account Statement, to enabie the Company to
release the sald shams 1o the rightful cemer. The summary of
Unclairmed Suspends Acount” during the vear is given hereunder:

Mo of agquit
Perticalars IHIHTH:
% Aggregate number of sharehalders and the outstanding shares lying in 47 T8N0
tha suspense account at beginning
A Number of sharsholdars along with shares held who approached the 1 B.000
Company far transfer of shanes from the suspenss account during the year
8 Wurmnber of shareholders slong with shares held to whom shares wers 2 B, 000
transterred from the suspense actount during the year
i, Transfer of shares to IEPF Account 18 70,025
5 Aggregate number of sharshoidens and the cutttanding thanes lying F i) 40,085

in the suspense aorount at the end of the yeas.

The Company is committed tn maintain the highest standard of
Corporate Covernance and adhere to the Corporats Governance
requirements set out by SEBL. The Repart on Corparate Governance as
stipulated under SEBI (LOOR) Regulations, 2018 forms an integral
part of the Report. The requisite certificate from the Statutory
Auditom of the Company M/s. B B Mahaswarl & Co LLP Charterd
Accountants, confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Covernance is sttached to the Report of Corporats Covemance as
Anneuure-H.

1. OTHER DESCLOSURES

[A) Dividend Policy: Your Company intends to maimtain similar or
batter lvels of dividend payout owver the next few years.
Howsver, the actual dividend payout in sach year will be
subject to the Investment requirements of the annual
operating plan for the year and any other strategic priorities
identiflad by the Company. The Company has formulsted a
Dividend Pulicy in accordance with SEHI (Listing obligation
and Disclosure Aequirements) Regulstions, 205 (herelnafter
"LODRA Regulations®) and the sama I§ avallable on your
Company's wehsite: www.relaxofoatwear.com
/ pif} Dividend-Palicy. pdf.

(H) The Company s In compllance with the Secretardal Standards
on Maetings of the Board of Directors (55 - 1) end General
Mestings [55 - I} Issued by The institute of Company
Secretaries of india and approved by the Central Covemment.

(0} The Company afferns that the annual listing fess for the year
HN8-19 to both Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) and BSE Limited (Bombay Stock Exchange) has besn
paid.

(D) During the ymar, pursuant to the provisions of Sectlon-138 of
the Companles Act, 2013, your Company has appolnted
Deloitte Hasking & Sells LLP (Deloltte) as Intemal Ausditors for
FY19in addition to sxisting In -house internal Audit Department.

3H. ACKMOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors sxpress their gratitude to the Company's
shareholders, business partners and suppiiers for their
understanding anvd support. The Directors slse take this opportunity
to thank Banin, Lovermmerd and Begulstony Authorities and Shodk
Exchanges, for their continued support. Finally, Your Directon
acknowiedge the dedicated services rendersd by ail employess of
the Campany.

For and on behalf of the Board of Dimctors

Aamech Kumar Dua Mukand Lsl Dus
Managing Director Whole Time Director
Diadhi, 11 May, 2018 DiN -DOSFETZ DIN -DOT5TE98
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Annexure-A

infarmation mguired wnder Sertion 137 of the Companies Act, 203 read

with Companiss [Appointment and Remunsration of Mansgerial

Personnel] Rules, H0d.

A. Ratla of ramuneration of each Directer e the median
remunaration of all the employess of your Company for the
Financlal Year 207018 Is a5 Tollows -

Raxtio of Remunsration of Director

Mame of DI
racer to the Median Bamuneration

br. Ramissh Kumar Dua b4d.51
Mr. Mukangd Lad Dua B4
Mir. Nikhil Dua A9
Mr. Deval Ganguly 9875
ki Panka) Shrimati oy
Mlr ek Mumar 4 4
Mr. Eunpila Kurlakose 149
Ms. Dwapa Verma LES

1. The aforesadd detalls are calculated on the basls of emuneration for
the Financlal Year 2017-18.

i The memuneration Inchedes sitting fee pald to the Dimciomn for
attending Board and Committes meetings,

3. Median Remuneration for all [ts employess i © 188253/ for the
Financlal Year 201718

B. Detsili of parcentege increass in the remunsration of asch Dirsctor,
CFD and Company Secretary in the Financlsl Yesr 207798 as

eampared to last year are a5 follows -

Mams Desigriatian % |moreass
My, Ramesh Eurmar Dua Managing Dirertor ns
Mr, Muiand Lal Dua e Kv ]
By, Mikehsil Dua Whate Time Directar 15
Mr. Deval Ganguly F9.24
Mr. Pankaj Shrimall 50,00
Mr. Vivek Kumpe Independent Oirectos 15.62
Mr. Kuruvila Kurakose .00
M, Deepa Vermae Hi
ar. Sarphil Batra Chief Financial Officer 526
W, Wilcars Mumar Tak Company SeCretany am

Maote

The remunerstion o Directors I5 within the overall imit approved by

shameholders
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0.

E

Percentage incresss in the median remuneration of sl employees
in Financisl Year M7

Thére 4 increswe of 6. 78% in median emunerstion of il employess in
Fimancial Year 207718,

Mumber of Permanent Employees on the roll of the Campany a1 on
3T March, 2078

Particalars Mo, of Emplayesss

Staff 2064
Sub Staff 3674
Total s ]

Comparison of sversgs perctntage increase in salary of emiployess
ot than Mansgerisl Personme] and the perosnts e isoreas in the
Managerial Bemuneration

The sggregate mmureration of employees excluding KMPa grew by
B.61% over the previous year. The aggregate increass in salary for
Whale Time Directors and other KMFP was 35.16% in FY8 over FYT2
This was based on the recommendation of Nominatian and
Ramuneratbon Commiites,

Affirmution

Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xi) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnal) Rules, 2004, it is wffirmed
that the remuneration pald to the Directors, Key Managerial
Pemsonnel and senkor managemant & 25 per the Remuneration Palicy
of your Compamy.

Statement Contslning the particulars of the employess In
wrordancs with Bule B2) of the Companiss [Appointment smd
R faratian of Managerial Persenned) Bules 7004

List of Employesss of the Company employed throughout the
Financlal Year 3077418 and weve paid remuneration, not less than
¥102 lacs per annum and employees who have worked for the part
of the yaar and wene pald remuneration during the Financlal Year
207718 at a rote which In aggregate was not less than T 8.5 lacs per
manth ;



Qualifiextion

| Mr. Deval Whala Time 05-Mav-12 53 185.94 B.Tech. E 1) K Tye b
Ganguly Directaor Iredurstries Ltd.
) Mr. Hans Ra] Sendor Vice 15-0ct-53 ] Ma.m BE, Dip. 45 Endia
Sapra President Mech. Engg Meterological
[Material) Diept.
3 Mr. Mukand Whale Time 13-5ep-B4 ] 14048.80 B.5c. 45 Relaxo
Lal Dua Diirector Rubber Pvt
Ltd,
4 Mz, Ramash Managing 13-5ep-Bd Gd 208,80 B.Com., 42 Riedaxn
Kumar Oua Diractor Licantiate of Rubber Pyt
LPRI London Ltd,
5 Mr. Sushil Chief Financial — 30-jul-07 53 162.48 B.Com., FCA i AT Infra
Batra Officer Engg. Ld.
B Mr. Verinder Vice President O1-Apr-13 54 180,50 PGOM E[] Relaxo
Kumar - Manufacturing Rubber Pyt Lid.
Mote

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua and Mr. Mukand Lal Dua are Promoter Directors of the Company and are also related to each other. Mr. Mukand Lal Dua Is
alsorelated to Mr. Mikhil Dua Promater Director of the Company:

RELAXL) FOUTWEARS LIMITED



Annexure-B
Farm No. MB-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 1V-03-2078
[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 20 and rule No. 3 ofthe
Companies (Appaintment and Remuneration of Managerial
PersanneljRules, 2014

Ta,

The Mambar,

Relana Footwears Limited

Aggarwal City Square,Plot No. 10, District Centre,
Manglam Place. Sector- 1

Rakbnd,

Deihi-NDOAS

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compllance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corparate practices by
Relam Footwears Limited. Secretarial Audit was conducted in 2 manner
that provided me a reasonable basls for evaluating the corporate
tonducts/statutory compllances and expressing my aplnlon thereon.
Based on my verification of the Relaxo Foatwears Limited (the Company)
books, papers, minute books, farms and returms fled and other records
miintalned by the Company and also the information previded by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarlal audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, Lhe
Company has, during the awdit perisd cowering the Ninancial year ended on
-03-HNB pomplied with the statutory provisions lsted hersunder and
also that the (ompany has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechaniim in place 1o the extent, in the manner and subject 1o the
reporiirg made hereinafter

| v @xarmirvied the books, papers, minute books, forms. and returms Tiled
#nd other records maintained by the Company for the financial yesr snded
o 3-03-J018 actording to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act. 7073 (the Act) and the rules made
themunder;

() The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ['SCRA') and the
rulns made theraundes;

(I} The Deposttorles Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws
framed thereunder:

[} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder o the extenl of Forsign Direct
Investment. Dverieas Direct Inwestmeni and External
Commtial Bormoeings:

fwl The foliowing Regulations and Cuidelines prescribed under the
Setusithes and Exchange Board of indla Art, 1992 [ SEBI Aot}

(a) SEBI (Substantial Acguisition of Shares and Takeovers)
(Fourth Amendment] Regulations 2015,

() SEEI (PIT) Regulations, 2015,

{e) SEBI (issue of Capital and Disclosure Regquirements) (Sixth
Amaendment) Aegulstions, 2015

(d) SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2015

(e} SEBM (issue and Listing of Oebt Securities) (Amendment)
Regulations, 25

{f1 SEBI (Registrars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agents)
Reguiations, 1993 reganding the [ompanies Act and dealing
wilth cilent:

ANNLAL RERPORT 201718

(g} SEBI [Delisting of Eguity Shares] [Amendment)
Regulations. 206

() SEBY Buy back of Securities) (Amendment) Regulations.
F.ij. 8

{wi) The Rubber ActI847 (the law which ks applicable specifically
o the Companmy) .
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
following:
() Secrotarlal Standards Wswed by The Instiste of Company
Secretaries of India,

(i) SEBI (Listing Obligations E Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 20M5 pertaining to Listed equity shares of the
Comipany 8t NSE and BSE,

During the period under review the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act. Rules, Regulations, Cuidelines, Standards, stc.
Entianed above

| further regart that

Tha Soard of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Exscuthve Dirsctors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carred cut In compllance
with the provislons of the Act.

Adeguate notice |s glvan to all directors to schedule the Bosrd Meetings,
agenda and detallod notes on agends ware sent at lsast seven days in
advance, and @ system exists for seeking and obtaining further
Information and clarifications on the agenta items before the meeting and
for mesningful participation st the meeting.

Majarity decision is carmied through while the dissenting memben’ views
are cagiured snd reconded a5 part of the minutes.

I further report thst there s adeguate systems and processss in the
EomMpamy CoMmmersurate with the size and operations of the company to
fronitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules. regulations
and guidelines.

I further repart that during the audit period the Company has:

1 Allotted 223370 Equity Shares of T 1/- each to the smployess
undar ES0P Scheme vide Board Resclution passed on 4"
Novernber 2017 @ ¥ 200.60 for each equity shane (718090 Equity
shares) and & T352.78 (5280 Egulty Shares) foreacheguity share.

1. The Board of Directors has approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation of two companies viz, Marvel Palymers Private
Limited and Relaxo Rubber Private Limited with the Company on
17" May, 2017 The Matter of amalgamation Is under process for
obtaining approvals Trom concermied authorities.

Fiot Wivek Arora

Compary Secretaries

Whink Arars

(Progeletor)

Deelhd, Tith May, 2018 CP Mo, 8255, ACS 12222
Mabs :

This report 15 to be read with  out letter of even date which Is annexed as
Annmoure A and forms an Integral part of this report.




Annexure-A

Ta

The Members,

Relano Footwears Limited

Aggarwal Chry Sguare, Plot Mo 10, District Centre,
Manglam Place, Sector- 3,

Raohind, Delhl-110085

My raport of mvan date s to ba read along with this lettar.

1.

Maintenance of secretaral reconds |5 the responsibility of the
management af the cormpany, My reapanaibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial meords based on my audit,

| have followed the sudit practices and processes as were
appropriate to obialn reasonable assurance about the
comectness of the contents of the Secretadal mcords. The
verification was done on test basks to ensure that comect facts
are reflected in secratarlzl recomnds. | belleve that the processes
and practices, | followed provide a repsonable bosis for my
opinion,

| hawe not verlfied the correctness and appropriatensss of
financlal records and Books of Accounts of the company.

Whaerever required, | have cbtained the Management
representation about the compliance of laws, rwles and
regulations and happening of events etr,

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibillty of managemant. My examination was limited to
the verlfication of procedures on test basis

The Secretarial Audit report Is neither an assurance as to the
future viabkllity of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has condueted the
atfairs of the company.

For Vivek Arora
Company Secretaries

Vivak Arora
(Proprietor)

Dedhd, Tith May, 20%0 CP Mo, 83255, ALS 12223
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Annexure-C

FORM NO. MGT 5
EXTRALT OF AMMUAL RETURM
{25 on Finangial Year ended on 31.03.2078)
{Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2073 and rule 12{1} of the Company
{Management & Administration } Rules, 2014}

I. RECISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

I CiN L74829DL1984PLOD190ST
] Registration Date 13/09/1984
i Name of the Company Relaxo Footwears Limited
Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company Limited by Shares
v Address of the Registered office Aggarwal City Square, Plot Mo, 10, Manglam Place,
& contact detalls District Centre, Sector-3, Rohini, Delhi- 110085
+51-11-46800600, 45800700
Emall : rfl@relaxofootwear.com
v Whether listed company Yes
wil Mame, Address & comtact detalls of the Registrar & Karvy Computershare Pyt. Ltd.
Transfer Agent, if any. Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowll,

Manakramguda, Hyderabad, Telangana- 500032,
Ph. : +91- 040-6T162232
Emali: efrmwrard.ris@karvy.com

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Namae & Description of main NIC Code of the Product fservice
Products/ssrvicas

1, Manufacturer of Footwear made primarily of vulcalized or 15202 99
moulded rubber and plastic

.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDLARY & ASSOCIATE COMPAMNIES | Ml

a0
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. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equlty Share Capltzl Breakup as parcentage of Total Equity)
A. Category-¥Wisa Sharsholding :

No. of Shares held ot the beginning of the year Ho. of Shares held at the end of the year
{As on 31-March-2077) . {As an 31-March-2078) . | % Change
%% of %% of during the
Demat Phyzical Total Totul Demiat Pirysical Total Total year
Shares

A. FPROMOTERS
{1} INDIAN
a) Indlvidual fHUF S0009000 - 90005000 oL BFEAE3000 - HII58000 XS -0.68
b) Central Govt, - - - - - - . . -
€)  State Covtfs) - - - - - - - - -
d} Bodies Com. - - - - - - - - -
8] Banks/Fl - " - . o
1 By Other n n = = ¥ Z . : :)
Sub-Total AfT) 0003000 -  S00D3DO0 .5 FII59000 - B3355000 TA.IE -0.E8
(2) FOREIGN
a) NRis Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other Individuals - - - - - - . - -
£} Bodies Comp. & 5 = = = = = 5 =
d)} Banks/Fl - - - - - - - - -
a)  Any Other = - . - - z 5 ¢ 5
Sub-Total AfZ) | = m = T % 1 = 8
Total Sharehalding
of Promoter(s) 50005000 = 50003000 7453 EIASIO000 - B3353000 TR.I5 -0.58
A=A[1)+A(2)

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
{1} INSTITUTIONS

a)  Mutual Funds THLEIRT - 2148353 1.4 2598606 - 2558506 216 0.ary
b) Banks/FI 3750 - s [1] 0.o0 14951 - HAE] 0.m om
o} Central Govt. - . . . - . . . -
d} State Covils) = = - - - - - - -
&) \enture Capital
Funds - = - - = - = = *
fl Insurance
Companles - - - - - - - = -
g Fus* 53pE2:8 E S3EHZIE 4,47 SE54EHED £ SEhAEAD 452 oS
k) Forelgn Venture - - - - - - - - -
Capital Funds
il Others - - - - - - - - -
Sub-Total B{T) TE20381 - TRIEm E.26 a1ea24T - mea2ar [ )| 0.53

n
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Mo, of Shares held at the beginnlng of the year MNo. of Shares hald at the end of the year
(A5 on 31-March-2017) (s on 31-March-2018)

% of
Demat Physloal Total Total Demat Physlcal Total
Sharas

(2} MOMN-INSTITUTIONS
a) Bodles Com.

i} Indian 1605978 T - 16059787 13.37 16055460 - 160564560 13.34 -0.03
ily Overseas
by Indiiduals

I idbvidual 4536215 842670 53TREIE 448 4167028 570380 4737388 334 -0.54
Shangholders
holding nominal
share capital
upha 1 lakh
ily Individual EO0000 - &00000 .50 4278 124000 106EF1E 0.89 0.39
Sharehalders
holding neminal
shane capital in
excess of T1lakh

{c) Others (spacify)

i} Clearing FFF{IE] - 27203 i0.02 125 - 12T o.m -0.m
Members

iy Maon Resident 57474 - 97474 033 513200 - 513300 042 0.09
Indians*®
i) Trusts = - - = ELTE = 57T 0Loo 0.oo

W Altemathes 37553 E EFLY | 0.03 184090 - 1840490 0 o
Invastimant
Fund

MBFC (Registered 000 - 00000 D.08 0mso - 10msD n.oa 0.00
with REd)

vil IEPF . . . . 152475 . 152475 iNE] [/RE!
Sub-Total B{2) Fapoliel ]

842610
Total Publlc 19278640 #42670 1250 15,07 30300260 654360 2 30994630 2 2575 0.58
Sharahalding
B=B(1)+B(2)

C} Sharas held by ]
Cusbodian for
GORs & ADRs

CRANDTOTAL  To207e40 BA2EI0 TANIO25D  WO.00  MAESIRE0 B24350 T20053620 100.00 -

i
i
i
'
1
]
.
i

* No paymant on account of Dividend has besn made in forsign curmncy to NRI or any othar forelgn persan during the Financial Year 201718,

i1
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B) Shareholding of Promoters:

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Sharcholding at the end of the year
(A5 on 31-March-2017) [As on 31-March-2018) 8% Change
No.of % of total e — No. of % of total % of shares ""I'“'"
Shares Shares of Pledged/ Shares Shares of A— d'“' "'1';_
the encombered the encumbered uring
Company to total company to total e
shares shares
| Ramesh Kumar 3473150 26,20 - IT4EIS0 I5.88" - -0.32
Dua
i Mulcand Lal JETIIFO0 ]| - ZE1A5 700 e - -0.N
Dua

3 Mikhil Dua A500450 475 - A50045D 3, g - “0.m

i Usha Dua a4500450 3.5 - 4500450 A - <{i.01

5 Lalita Dua 4500450 .75 - 4500450 3, ra = ={.01

] Rahul Dua 4500450 .75 - AS0RAsD =l = -0.01

T Gawray Dua 4500450 375 - ASD045D i - 0.07

B Ritesh Dua 4500450 175 - 4500450 il = <.t

| Mitir Owa 4500450 3.75 . 4E00450 A = .01

10 Mukand Lal 232000 [ R - 232000 (1R = =
Dua {(HUF)

n Ramash Kumar F0000 0.02 - 20000 0.0 - -
Duz (HUF)

12 Sakshl Dua wooo 0.m = 000D .07 = =

* Decrease in percentage shareholding of Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua & Mr. Mukand Lal Dua s due tosaks of shares and ES0P allotment during the year.

**Decrease In purcentage shareholding of Mr. Nikhd Dua, Ms, Usha Dua, Ms. Lalita Dua, Mr. Rahul Dua. Mr. Gauray Dua, Mr Ritesh Dua B
M. Mitin Dualis due to ES0F alictment during the year,

C} Change in Promoters’ Sharehalding :

Shamaholding at the Comulathve Shareholding
baginning of tha year during the year

Far Each Promotar . Mo, of % of total No. of % of total

Sharas Shares of Shams Sharas of
tha tha

campany £ mpay

1. Ramesh Kumar Dua

At tha beginning of tha year FMTNE0 26320 /032007 4ATIE0 1530
Decrease in Shansholding dus to -325000 027 FL Tk IN4AE1ED 1588
sale of shares during the yaar
At the End of the year I1003,/2018 ANAES0 5. 658
- Mubmnd Lal Dua
At the beginning of the year LT ] 2528 NAfImT IETIIFO0 Frd] i}
Oecrease in Shareholding due to -3FE0E30 -0.27 291/ 2017 2845700 197
sabi of shares during the year

There Is no change in shareholding of other prometers durlng the Financlal Year 2077-18
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D} Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Dther than Disectars, Pramoters and Holders of GORs and ADRsk

Shareholding at the Cumulativa Sharsholding
baginning of the year during the ysar

Mo. of % of total Mo. of % of total

Eharas Shams of Shares Sharas of
the the

company company

1 WS SECURITIES LIMITED

At the beginning of the Year H150000 6.78 31/03/2017 E1S0000 B.M8
Increase/ Decréase In Shareholding during = = = - =
the year
At the end of the Year /037208 B1s0000 BT
r i VLS FINANCE LTD
At the beginning of the Year G2BETH 51 ELTETFIE BIBETI 5213
Increase/ Decrease In Shareholding durlng 1000 0.00 130 2m7 B2BFM 523
the year “IG00 o.oo oamyg2ma? B285TN 533
At the end of the Year IN/03/208 BXEETH 5.1
3 JWALAMUKHI INVESTMENT HOLDINGS
At tha beginning of the Year ADEESG? 340 m/o32m? A0A8907 3.40
Increase/ Decrease In Shareholding ADEESOT .40 /o727 BiFrE4 B.80
during the year ~ADERST -3.40 NJ0AFINE 4088907 3.40
At the end of the Year /037008 AQREI0T 340
4, SAI MACNUM CLOBAL FUND
At the beginning of the Year /00000 142 /o320 1700000 142
Increasa/ Dacrease in Shareholding during 260000 0. 22 0902 r3ne 40000 120
the year -60543 -0.05 09/03/ 2018 13radsy B L
At the end of the Year N/03fINE 17457 115
5 ICKC] PRUDENTIAL VALUE FUND-SERIES 10
At the beginning of the Year o 0.0 /037207 a 0.00
Increase/ Decrease In Shareholding during 43453 004 19/05/2M7 43462 0.04
the year Pl .00 090627 51638 .04
Ted 0.oo anorRm? 52402 0.04
Haas 0.m 28/0712077 G734 0.08
B .00 04082017 BEER 0,06
i EE] o.0o0 18,/08 /2017 a4 0.06
13278 om 25/08 /2077 BI7T3 0.07
16648 om 03207 10044 n.oa
17 0.m 29408207 y Fark} 0.04
28 .00 08102077 15256 0.0
333 0.00 o1 /2207 Tia5Ma 0.0
Srara 0.48 ogfi2m? E37349 0.58
At the end of the Year /03 e 697349 0.58
B JATINDER AGARWAL
At the beginning of the Year BO0000 0,50 ajo3 2007 BO0000 .50
Increase/ Decrease in Sharehalding -2976 0.00 008 2m7 557024 0.50
during the year <10443 -0.m oef08 2007 BERSA i L
15154 -0 15082077 Snair 0.48
-Maz7 -0.01 23033017 SE0000 047
=13 n.oo oeofam? ShE6ET 047
15075 =0.02 131027 539614 0Aas
-2 .00 2rhofam? 5I95492 mas
=38592 =003 027 S0000 i ¥
At the end of the Year /03,208 SO0000 042

14
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Shareholding at the Cumuiative Sharehokiing
beginning of the year during the year

Hame of the Share Ho. of % of total Ho. of % of total

Holdar Shares Shares of Shares Shares of
thie the

company oompany

7 KARVANSARAI TRAVEL AND LIFESTYLE

FRIVATE LIMITED
Al the beginning of the Year 443190 oar 03/ 2m7 4437190 037
Increase Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
during the year
At the end of the Year N0 amea 443180 037
| VALUEDUEST INDIA MDAT FLIND LIMITED
At the beginning of the Year 418640 0.35 Noamr A8640 035
Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during 225000 LR 08/02/2M8 BA3E4D 0.53
the yaar
A the end of the Year A hoa/zma B4364T0 053
5 VIBGYOR INVESTORS AND DEVELOPERS
PYTLTD
At the beginning of the Yaar 400000 033 foa/zmr 400000 033
increase Decrease in Sharehoiding - = - - -
during the yesr
At the end of the Year I 0E/2ma 400000 .33
0.  BIRLA SLUN LIFE TRUSTEE COMPANY
PRIVATE LIMITED A/C
At the beginning of the Year 273765 023 /0a/me 21765 0.3
Increase/ Decraase in Shambolding Tsooo 0.0% 0906307 ABETES 0.3z
during the year -1B8000 -0 09/06/2M7 220785 018
10000 0.0 o3miamz 210765 ow
-4300 0.0 15M2 3m7 206465 oar
-tAzy -0.01 22am? 185338 06
-H500 0.0 T2nn/zma 177838 05
500 0.00 0902/ 28 178338 (151
3088 0.00 1603208 1426 015
10000 om 23/03/2MBe 15428 0.8
S000 0,00 30,03/ 208 196426 0.6
A the end of the Year If03/208 196425 0.6
m EM RESLIRCEMT FUND
At the beginning of the Year 249795 1| FJ0a3m7 249736 0.
Increase] Decrease in Shareholding - - - -
durdng the year
At the and of the Year A0a/Ema 2499756 on

5
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E} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at tha Cumulathee Shareholding

beginning af the ysar during the year
Sharehclding of each i : e | ll “

Directar and mach Key Mo, of % of total Ma, of % of total

Managerial Personnel Shares Shares of Shames Shares of
the the

EOMIpaTTy campany

1. Ramaesh Kumar Dus

At the beginning of the year 31473150 2620 nfoa/one 473150 2620

Increase | Decreass In Shareholding -325000 -0.27 Jmizom? J1iagis0 25.88*

during the year

At the end of the year fo3fama 3148150 15,88
r Ramesh Kumar Dua (HUF)

At the beginning of the year Z00oog 0.0z /032077 20000 ooz

Increase | Decreasa In Sharshalding - - - - -

during the year

At the end of the year /03 2mE 20000 ooz
3, Mulcand Lal Dus

At the beginning of the year JETT0FO0 22.28 N majamr 2670700 2078

Increase | Decrease In Shareholding -325000 -0.27 AMmizme 25445700 nare

during the year

At the end of the year F1f03/ 2078 26445700 sy
4. Mukand Lal Dus{HUF)

At the beginning of the year 232000 (k] joajzor #2000 iR L]

Increase [ Decreasa In Sharehalding - - - - -

during the year

At the end of the year 3/03/208 232000 o
5. Mikhil Das

At the beginning of the year 4500450 3,75 Ao 4500450 375

Increase | Decreass In Sharehalding - - - - -

durlng the year

At the end of the year /03208 4500450 L
B. Diewal Ganguly

At the beginning of the year - - MNfo3zmr - -

Increasn | Decreasa in Sharsholding 24480 0.0 15myeme 24480 0.0z

during the year due to allotment of 13350 =0.01 1&f0E 208 11230 0.m

Esop Shares and sale of Esop Shares <1670 0.00 23/03,/2ma H360 om

Atthe end of the year F/mE2ma 9360 0,m
7. Pankaj Shrimali

At the beginning of the year 22000 o.o2 3fo3/2o07 22000 .oz

Imcrease | Decreass n Sharshalding - = - = =

during the year

At the end of the year Tfos/z2ma 22000 ooz
B Sushil Batra

At the beginning of the year 21no 0.o2 303/ 207 21Aa 0.0

increasa in Sharehaolding during the 17380 o.m 15/1/2m7 =700 0.03

year due to allotment of Esop

Shares

At the end of the year I/ 2ma 900 o3
8. Wikas Kumar Tak

At the beginning of the year - - o3/ 2T - -

Increase in Sharehalding 1 0.00 102 xm8 1 0.0

during tha year

At the end of the year o3 zma 1 0.00

* Decreasa in parcentage shaneholding of Mr. Ramesh Eumar Dua & Mr. Mukand Lal Dua is due to sale of shares and ES0P sllotment during the year.
**Oecraase in percentage shareholding of Me Nikhll Dua is due to ESDP allotment during the year,
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V. INDEBTEDMESS

Indebtedness of the Company including Interest autstanding/accrued but not dus for paymant. [ ¥ in Crores)
Particulars -I:::th'::::h um:ﬂ g Irdl:;t:lnul
Indebindness at tha baginning of tha Financial Year
i} Principal Amount 1ra44 = - 7844
i} Interest due but not pald .04 - - .08
fil) nturest accroed but not due 089 " . 0.89
Total (F+ik+ii) 75.41 5 e 75.0
Change in Indebtedness during the Financial Year
= Addition 25.20 - - 5.20
= Reduction {50.75) e - {50.75)
Net Change {25.55) - - [25.53)
Indebriedness at the end of the Financial Year
i} Principal Amoumnt 153.36 - - 153.36
i} Interest dus but not paid oz - . o2
i} Interest accrued but not due 0.38 - - 038
Total (f+i+iif) 153.86 - - 153.86

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AMD KEY MAMNAGERIAL PERSONMEL

A, Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and for Managern [ ¥ In Lacs)
Name of MD/WTD/Manger
il"ﬂl Fﬂmiﬂﬂﬂmlul‘ﬂhﬂ e ———— e — I T —— Tmt
Muband Lal Dua  Ramesh KumarOua = Nikhil Dua | Deval Ganguly

1 Gress salary

{2} Salary as per provisions contained n section 120,00 120,00 #2521 §313 419,34
T71) of the Incorme-tax Act, 1961

{h} Value of perguisites ufs 17(2) of the (1 14| 0.0 2,90 5.56 926

Incorne-tax Act, 1961

{c) Profits in liew of salary under section . . . . -
1713} of the income- tax Act, 1961

F] Stock Diption = - o B304 B3.0a
] Sweat Equity - - - - -
4 Commiigsion
- a5 % of profit 107504 1075.00 - - 2150.00
> ﬂhm i - = i -
5 Orhers (Employers Contributlon o A0 .40 3,60 4.n 3h.51
Provident Fund)
Total {A) 1108.80 1205.80 sLm 15.94 1698.35
Celling s per the Act 1% of Met Profits of the Company as calculated under Section 198 of Companbes Act,

203 is T 7468 Lacs

n
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B. Remuneration to other directors

5.Mo. Particulars of Remuneration Panlkaj Shrirmali

1 Indepandant Dirsctors
Fee for attending Board / Committes meetings 3.80

Commission
Others
Tatal (1)
i Diher Non-Executive Dlrectors
Fee for attending Board [ Committes meetings
Commission
Cthers
Tutal (2}
Tatal (B)={1+2)
Celfing as per the Act

2.80

350

Kuruvila Kuriakose = Vivek Kumar

2.80 3.85
180 1.85
180 3.ms

2073 is TIMA7 Lacs

Tatal Managerial Remuneration (A+8)
Owerall Celling as per the Act

2013 |5 T 29B6.15 Lacs

L. Aemunperation to Key Managerial Personnel other than MO/ Manager WTD

Particulars of Remuneration

5.Mo.

1 Gross salary
() Salary a5 per provisions contained in section
17{1) of the income-tax Act, 1961
(b} Value of perquisites u/s 172) of the
Incorme-tax Act, 1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
13} of the Income- tax Act, 1961 A
| Stock Option
Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- @5 % of profit
- othars
- Others (Employers Contribution to
President Fund)
Total

Ly

Vii. PEMALTIES [ PUNISHMENT) COMPOUNDING OF OFFEMCES:

FrA: 7 3783
0L7E 336

- 5674

110 4.37
24.83 16146

Mo penakties / Punishmant f compounding of offences were levied under the Companles Act, 2073,

8
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Deepa Verma

{ ¥ in Lacs)
[
Amount
30 B.65
a10 .65
ER i} 1B.E5

1% of Met Profits of the Company as calculated under Section 198 of Companles Act,

2rm.an

1% of Met Profits of the Company as caboulated under Section 158 of Companies Act,

{ ¥ in Lacs)

120.98

412

56.™

547



Annexure-0

Form Mo ADC-2
{Pursuant to clausa (h) of sub-section (3] of saction 134 of the Act and Rule B{Z) of the Companias (Accounts) Rules, 2004}

Form for disclasure of particulars of contracts farrangements entered into by the compemy with related parties referred o in sub-section (1) of sectian
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 Including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

‘L. Detalls of contracis or arrangemants or transactions not ot arm's length basls during Finandal Year 2077148 :

Name(s) of the related party and nature of refationship

Wature of contractsfarmangrments/transactions

Duration of the contracts [ arrangemantsfirantactions

Salflent termis of the contracts orarangemants or iransactions including the value, If any
Justification for enterdng into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Diatefs) of approval by the Board

Amaount pald as advances, If sny

Date on which the speclal esclution was passed in general meating as required under first proviso to sectlon 188

Nat Applicable

ZESEEEEE

2. Details of material contracts or srrangements or transactions at arm's length basis during Financial Year 2077-18 ;
Wame(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Mature of contracts famrangemeants ftransactions

Dusrztion of the contracts [ arangements/trensactions

Sallent terms of the contracts or arrengements or transactions Including the value, [famy
Oate{s) of approval by the Board, if amy

Amaount pald as advances, if any.

Nat Applicable

S EEEEE

For and an behalf of the Board of Direclors

Ramash Kumar Dua Mukand Lal Dua
Managing Directar ‘Whole Time Director
Diekhi, N™ May, 2ma OIN :00NSTET2 OIM :00sTESE
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Anngxure -E
Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR)} Activitles
Introduction:

Further ta the Need Assessment done In FY 17, Relako Foundation
undertpok 3 rigorous process of stakeholder consultation, appraisal of
national & Intemational goals and assessing the core strength of the
Company, to strategize the CSA activities. Through this Intensive process,
Relaxa Foundation identified 'Education & Skill Development and 'Health
b Hyglene' as the two thrust areas. Presently, the Foundatlon Is
implementing below mentioned CSA pmjects with the commaunities
surrpunding the manufacturing plants of Relaxo ot Bhiwadl, Bahadurgark
B Haddwar and alsoin Delhi,

A. Education & Skill development

1. Navjyotl Remedial Education Pregram- Relaxo Foundation has
partnered with Nowlvet! indle Foupdotion to ensure holistic
devielopment of the 150 grade IV and V stedents fram the Covernment
schoals of Bawana area, Delhi. The short-term objective is to improwe
tha leaming outcome of the students, however, the long-term
objective of the project is to save these children from the external
threats that may lead them into anti-social activities, Today, these
students ane not cnly excelling In thelr studies but are teaching other
children in-schoal or out-of-schoe! from theirnelghborhood.

2. Model School Program - Right to Education (RTE] Act has Increased
the elementany school enrolment in India but the guality of edwecation
and the dropout rate In Secondary B Senior Secondary classes is huge.
Considering the contemporary challenges in school education and to
create sustalnable model, Relaxn Foundation has partnered with
Bian-_internationel {(ingle Chogter] to adopt 13 Primary Schools In
Harldwar and to transform them Into Model Schools by creating child-
friendly Infrastructure, teachers tralnlng. strengthening School
Management Committtes, form Children's group on [ife skill & gender
etr, This 3-year long project will ensure holistic development of
children in a sustainable mannee However, the lopg-term goal is to
develop & model of school led individual & community
development.

3. Ruelaxs Student to Scholar Program- Your Company partrered with
BuddysStudy for mobllizing and empowerlng 10,000 students of
Bahadumgarh with scholarship awareness, application support and
mentarship. The project will ensure a1 feast 1000 students may get
scholarship either from Government or Privabe Scholarships that will
help them to complete thedr education and to purswe their dreams.
Thie organization has created India's [argest scholarship portal and is
engaged In the business of simplifying scholarship access for
students and managing end to end scholarship process. In the
reporting period, more than 6000 students have got profiled and out
of which BE students have received scholarships of T3,600/- to
T 20,000/- amch.

4, Voecational Training Pregram - C5H is all about leveraging resources
ta mest the developmental challenges of the country, With this belief
Relawo Foundation has partnered with, the GME Verofakshmi
Foundoiion to nen vocational training course of Customer Service
Assoclate at their vocational training center, "Center for
Empowarment and Livefihoods- Dethl', Till date, thres batches of
total B8 students have been completed. More than 78% of the
traineses hawve been placed in jobs with an average salary of ¥ 12,000/
per manth.

8. Health & Hyglene

Smille on Whaels [SoW), Comprehanshm Health Project- Through
the baseline assassment, it was revealed that the healthcare system
In Bhiwadl, Rejesthan is insufficient to eddness the health need of the
people. The villagers have to either live with their illness or go to the
private hospital which |eads to huge owi-of-pocket expanditure.
Considering the need, Aelaxn Foundation partnered with Smlie

ANNUAL REPQRT A017-18

Fourmgotion to inftiate this 3-year long comprahensive health project
in 14 willages {approx. 1 kakh population) of Bhiwadi with the objective
o meet pmary healthcare needs of the villagers through curative,
preventhe, and promothve sendces ot thelr doorstep. The project runs
one Mobile Health Van, equipped with Doctor, pharmacist & Lab
Technician to provide curative health senices. Along with this, the
oufreach teamwork Intensively on increasing health awareness
Mugh sesslans In schools and community with the objective to
improve the health-seeking behaviowur znd to lower down the diseass
incidence rate among the community. The prodect also provides
antenatal check-ups to pregnant wamen and referral services to
chronic patients. In the reporting period. BE26 Patients (4287 M and
4335 F) were provided the curative services; 2000 people wers
sensitized on health ssues.

i Project 'NAYAN' Glving Sight to the Underprivileged- On 15° [an'18,
your Company partnered with O, Shrofif's Charity Eve Hospital (SCEH)
to run jolntly developed project "Nayan' towards reducing the
Incidence and the backlog of avoidable blindness cases inTijara Block,
district, Ahwvar. This 3-year long project will provide comprehenshve
and sustainabbe Eye care senvices, to more than 2.5 lakch people of 187
villages, Along with regular eye camps, the project will establish a
soif-sustainable Vislon Centre, managed by the local person,
identified and trained by Or. Shroff Hospital, The project will also
imvoive and train school teachers, Anganwadi, ANM, and ASHA
workers to do primary level screening that will help In timely
Identification of the cases,

Employes Engasement
Employes Engagement actlvities have been undertaken with the
Inwoivement of Relaxa Footwears Limited. One of the Misslon Statement
of Relaxo Foundation |s, “Te leverage the skl B resources of employees for
soclal cause and also to make them soclally responsible Indhduals”
Toward this, Relaoo foundatlon have organlzed three Inftlathves viz, Blood
Donation Camp, 'Wish Tree on Christmas & New Year for Bawana Slum
chiddren and Virtual training on Gender sensitization on the oicasion of
International Woman's Day.
Tha C5R Policy may be accessed on the Company's website at the link
htbp:/ fenwnarelaxofoatwear.com/pdff Corporate-Social-Responsibility-
Palicypdf,
1. TheCompaosition of C5RA Committes
The compaosition of C5A Committes as on 3" March, 2008 Is as
ool lowawsc -

Mr, Ramesh Kumar Oua Chairman
Mr. Mukand Lal Dua Member
Mr. Parika| Shrmali Membar
Ms. Deepa Verma Member
2. Average Met Profit of the Company for
the |last 3 Financial years T166.98 Croms
3, Prescribed CSR Expenditumne T 3,34 Croces,
4. [Detallsof C5R spent for the Fimancial Year
(@) Total amountspent forthe Finandal Year T .78 Crores
[b) Amount unspent® T D.56Crores



{c) Manner in which the amount spent during the Financial Yesr is detailed bebow = { ¥ in Lacs)

Amount Amount spant Curmulative
outlay on tha Project Expenditure
(budget) Projects upto the
project or {Programmes reporting
program Subheads period
wise {1} Direct Expanditure
(2} Owverhead
1 Miodil School Program Promoting  Harichwar, 224,00 oy 2107 Plan
Education Uttrakfand International
{India Chapter)
s Remuidial Education Promoting Bawezna, Delhi 1500 1500 36,07 haviyoli India
Frogram Education Foundation
3 Rulaxo Student to Promoting  Bhadurgarh, 76.00 M7 6078 Buddy&Study
Scholar Program Education Hargana
4 Computer kab Promoting Harichaar, 4,50 437 B5.15 Oirect
Education Uttrakhand
5 Vocational Tralnlng ‘Viocathonal Dedhi e Hili] 418 B3.33 GMR
skilis Waralakshmi
Foundation
b Smile on Wheels (S5oW),  Heafth Bhiwadl, 133.00 45.53 T4.86 Lmile
Miohile Medical Unit CEFE Rajasthan Foundation
i '‘MAYAN" Ghving Sight to Health Bhiwadi, 135,00 33.52 152.78 Or. Shroff's
thie Underprivileged Care Rajasthan Charity Eye
Fospital
8 Public Tollet Swach Bahadurgarh, B.00 572 1548.50 Sulabh
Bharat Haryana Intermational
Sub Total S48.50 156,50
g Administrathve Expenses 12.00 15 163,65
Total 560.50 WE.E5
# Relaxno Foundation identifies the thrust area, conceptualize B design the Your Company s confident that with strong intend, cear vision, and
praject and do the clase monitaring of the project as well, However, the on- professional approach we would not only be able to spend the
ground Implementation is carrled out by the credible NGO partners who get prescribe budget but will create visible and sustained impact from our
identified through a rigomus process of due diligence, C5R projects.
Yeur Compary spent T 169.65 Lacs from accumulated CSR Funds svallable 5 Therefore, FY18 has been significant In terms of laying down strang
with Relaxe Foundation -Implementation arm for C5R activities, for foundation of the CSR and strategizing activities. We are confident
varlous Inltlatives durlng FY18. that In F¥19, Relaxo CSA wil bring lareer soclal Impact through CSR

projects undertaken and new Initlatives. The C5R Committes
confirms that the Implementation and monltorng of the C5R Palloy
I= In compllance with the CSR objectives and Policy of your

Company.

* Wota : Reason for amaunt unspent is gleen In polnt mo & of this anheaure,
5. The intent of your Company |s to spent money an the praject with
long term (mpact on soclety at lage, thenefore Company has adopted
a rigorows process in finalization of projects, With this deep sense of
responsiblifty, your Company wants to ensumne the spemnding of this
maney In (mpactful and sustalnable projects, Ouring the year, your
Company strategired totake up and develop C5R projects accardingly,
In addition tothis, the [dentification of credible NGO and due difigence
process is being done meticuloushy. All these processes took a ot of
tirme and therefore the projects werne mlled out in the second half of
the year, Thus, the amount remained unspent as per the plan,
However, a significant amount has been allocated in the approved on- Ramesh Kumar Dua

o jects. Fewather projects are at the final stage. Managing Director
e e o Defhi, 11* May, 2018 DIN -00157872

an
RELAXL) FOUTWEARS LIMITED



Annrurs-F
1. CONSERVATION OF EMERGCY

Energy conervation is an ongoing process in your Company. Your
Company |3 committed to (mvest in the latest energy efficient
technologies, to contenar entrgy on 2l iocations, plants and wites of
the Company. As a part of Company's endeavour towards
comnservation of enerpy and prevention of energy wastage, constant
Imprevements are undertaken In order 10 consErde @nEFgy on @R
Mﬂlﬂlhﬁh

a)

n ‘rhr Enmp-w h: :ta:ted fuﬂnnﬁq Irlllilthnn lt plm for
anergy conservation which has led to restrict the Impact of
Increase In the cost of energy thereby reducing the cost of
Mnﬂm:ﬂuﬂa
installed Variable drives on Alr Cooling Machines,
temperature cut-out on Cooling Tower's fan moter and
Haater Indulation jacksts on Horrontal PWVD Molding
gy et

« Installed high bay LED fights at plants replating the
romentional lights.

+  nstalling RO plant with BO% recovery of water.

i) The Company has started following inltiathaes at Its retall
outlets far energy conservation which has led to substantial
saving of [ts annual energy and makntenance cost ;-

+ Aeduced energy consumption by using Inverter alr
condithoner in 150 new B exlgting retall outhers.

» Upgraded lighting fdures in LED fhatures In 12 existing
putlets and replaced old Hghting fxture by LED in routine

<} Thecapital Investmant on snergy consarvation of enengy :
Thers was nd major capital lrvestment on energy conuenation
duting tha year

TECHNOLDLY ARSORFTION

a) Efforts mads towards bechnology

« Company has inltiated replacement of sohvent based Release
agent (AA) by water based in 70% PUDIP machines.

« Company has discontinued usage of OMF (Dimethyl
formamide) for PU screw cleaning by more eco friendly green
chemicals

b) Benefitderhvad 558 result of the above efforis

* Better Quality of products

» Better shop floorenvironment in PL plant

» Positive impact on emironment.

e Technalogy imperted during last Iyears : None

d] Expenditurs on R &0 - The Lompany has incurred expenditure of
¥ 258 Croses thnough respective heads of acoounts on A 6 0L

FOREICN EXCHANCE EARNINCS ANDOUTCO

al Acthiities relating te axport Inftlathves taken te Increass
axports, development of new export for products and sxpart
plans:
Your Company regulary participate In prestigious International
exhibition and has developed markets of Asia, Middle East,
Europe, Australla, Africa, South America & Oceanla and these
miarkets will Increase overall expart of Company in coming years,
Your Company has also opened branch office at Dubal to be
nearer to customet, this will Improve service level and lead time

repalr malntenance and ubtimately will 3dd to expart growth.
* Prompted to retall outie? staf! reganding awareness of
energy saving
b The stegs taken by Comgany for wtilizing alternate sources of M Total Forsign Curpacy ssed sl smrenk (€ In Crores)

Rosftop Selar power project implemented (n one plant and et ST | -
horieontal deployment is being considered in all other plants.
Solar power outsourcing through open access maode from private Used 204 22780
players with ground level large solar power generating capacity is Earmed P &85

bsoing explored, reviewed,
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Annaxure-0
EMPLOYEE 5TOCK OPTION PLAN (ES0F)

The Comparny had Instituted the Employee Stock Optlon Plan 2014 (the
*Plan”) for emiployees of the Company by granting shares thersunder
Accordinghy, the Plan was formulated in accordance with the SEBI [ES05 &

ESPS) Guldelines, 1594,
Disclosure a8 requined under SEBI (Share Based Employes Benefits) Regulations, 2094 as on March 11, 2008

5.No. | Perticulars ESOP Scheme

A,
1

2
3

5 W om

Summary

Date of Shareholders Approval

Total mumber of options approved under the schame
Oate of Crants

Options Cramted
‘esting Schedule

Pricing Formula

Maximum Termof Dptions Granted
Sourceof Shares

Vartation in tenms of Dptlans
Method used for Accounting of ESDP

The Plan wias approved by the shareholders of the Company, on 5* August,
204, throwgh postal ballot. The Plan provides for issue and allotment of
not excesding 300090 Equlty Shares to the eligible employees of the
Company and subsequent to the Bonus lssue the number of options
available increased to 1B00TRD, Disclosures in compliance with Employea
Stock Oiption Pan of the Company, are sat below.

5 Aug. 2004
1B0MAED
9" Aug, 204
o™ May, 2015
257 Jul, 2015
" Oct, 2015
14" May, 2016
ag" ul, 2016
5" Now, 2016
5° Aug, 2077
4" Nov, 207

1083600

Minlmum ome year from
the date of Grant

Closing Market price prior to
the date of the meeting of
Momination & Remuneration
Commitiee In which options are
granted, on the stock exchange
gn which the shares of the
Company are llsted. In case
shares ae listed on more than
ane stock exchange then the
stock exchangewherethe highest
trading voluma is recorded on the
sald date shall be considened,

Byears fromthe dateof Grant
Primary
Mo Variatlons
Falrvalue Method
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B. Option Movement Durlng the year

S.MNo. Partheulars

Options Dutstanding 5t tha Beginning of the year *

Number of Options Cranted during the year

Number of options westad

Wumber of optlons exerclsed durlng the year

Totad number of shams arising as a msult of exercise of options
Mumber of options Cancelled & lapsed during the year
Mumbar of Dptlons outstanding at the and of the year
Number of Optlons exercisable at the end of the year

Monay realised by mxercise of options durng the year (T}

Loan repaid by the trust durng the year from the exencised
price recelved

B 8 00 o~ LA d R R =

m

Employee-wiss details of options granied to:
{i} Senlor manageral personnal

Nama

Atul Pandey

Deval Gangudy
Hans Raj 5apra
Sushil Batra
Vinay Kumar Bajaj

{il} Ermployees who werne granted options during the year, amountieg to 5% or mone of the options:

(i) identified employees who were granted option, during the year, egual or exceeding 1% of the |sswed
capital (excluding outstanding warrants and converslons) of the Company at the time of grant:

O {f). | Welghted sverage exercisa price of Options granted during the yesr whoss

[al Exerclse price equals market price ()
11} Exarcise price s greater than market price (%)
1] Exercise price is less than market price (T}

0. Welghted average fair value of options whose

ESOP Scheme

333,800
#,34,200
2,80,730
2,323,370
2,233

542,090
E6,B50
4,561,506

No. of aptions granted

£.500
16800
15,000
17,200
15400

fal Exerclse price equals market price (¥)
5] Exercise price is graater than market price (T)
Ic) Exercise price is less than market price (%)

E.  Mathod and Assumptions used to estimate the falr valus of optlons granted during the yean

32105
il
il

&) The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model, The assumptions used
in the model am as follows
Stock Price (7)
Valatility
Risk free Rate

Exercise Price [¥]
Time To Matuslty (In Years)

Dividand yiald
Thecompany has incorporated the early exercise of options by caloulating expected litfe on past exercise behavior,

o

Weighted Average

Assumptions

454 68
BEADY
B.50°%

4564.58
515

0.21%

| Thevolatility used in the Black-5choles option-pricing mode| is the annuslized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return an

thi stock over a parlod of time, The perod considersd for the working is commansurate with the expected life of the optlons and is based on tha dally

volatility of tha Company's stock price on NSE.
d) Thereaneno market conditions attached to the grant and vest,

*Pre Bonus numbers

a4
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MExXuna-
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Ta,
The Members of
Rieluxo Footwesrs Limied

1. We, B R Maheswar & Co LL® Chartered Accopntants, the Statutoery Auditors of Aelam Footwears Limlited {“the Company®), have examined
the eamplisnce of econditions of Corparate Governance by the Company, for the yearended an 37" March 2018, s stipulsted in reguelstions 7710 37
and clauses (b} to ) of regulation 46{2) and para C and Dof Schedule V' of the SEBI Listing (Obligation and Disclosuna Requinements) Regulations,
2075 (the Listing Regulations).

Management's Responsibility
2 The compllance of conditions of Corporete Governance is the responsibillty of the Management. This Responsibility includes the Design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensune the complisnce with the conditions of the Corparate Governances
stipulated in Listing Regulations.

Auditors Respansibility

3. Our responsibility Is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with
theconditians of the Corporate Governance. [t (s neither an audit nor an expression of opinkon on the financlal Statements of the Company.

4, We have examined the books of actount and other relevant reconds and doouments maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing
reaspnahble assurance on the compliznce with Corporate Grvernance requirements by the Company.

5 We have carried out an examination of the relovant records of the Company In accordance with the Cuidance Note on Certification of Corporata
Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India {the ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Saction 143(10) of
the Companies Act 3013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guldance Note on Reports or Cerdficates for
Speclal Purposes issued by the |Cal which requlres that we complywith the ethical requiremenis of the Code of Ethlcs (ssued by tha ICAIL

B, We have complied with the refevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform
Audits and Heviews of Historical Financial iInformation, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinlon
7 Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanathons provided to us snd the representations
provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Gowamancs as stipulated In
reglations 17 to 27 and dauses {b) to (i) of regulation 45{2} and para C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended 317
March, 2MA.

B. Westate that such complianos I€ neither an aesurance as ta the future viabifity of the Company ner the efficlency or effactiveness with which the
Management has conducted the sffairs of the Company,

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Na. BO1035N/NS00050

Sudhir Maheshwari
Partmar
Dedh, T May, 2018 Membership Mo 0E07S
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Comporsts Cowvenance & about owr commitment to human values in
busingss and translates intn ethical corporats tonduct. Corporate
Covernance ly coreemn of mamy - the compodate and other structures, B3
culturs, palicies and the manner in which it deals with various
stakehoiders. Timely and acourate disclosure of information egarding the
financlal situation, performance, ownership and govemance of the
Company ls an Impartant pert of Corporate Governance, Whaen adhared ta
and implemented In the best of spirit, Corporate Governance can
measurably Impact the activities, processes and policies of the
organization, and portray a positve vision to investors, and enhance the
trust and confidence of the stakeholders. i con slio Infiuence its
immedists corporats environment and the saclety ot large in & positive
wiay and have a healthy impact on the national economy.

Al Relixo Footwear Limited, we fully comply with good Corporate
Governants practices and belfieve that sownd Corporate Covernance i vital
for retaining stakehoider faith, and in wanning new imvestor trust. Some of
the salient principles of Corparate Covernance 3t Aelaxo Footwears
Limited s watishdng nol just by the ietter - bt by the spiit of isw,
trenpareney in conduct and communication, making a chear distinction
between perional conveniences and corparate resowrces, clarity and
timeliness in dissemnination of infarmation, compllance with all laws and
an #thical and honest corporate structure that is driven solely by business
consideratians,

1. PHILODSPHY OF THE COMPANY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance has occupled phvotsl position at Relaxo
Foatwean Limited since inceptlon. The business has, since then,
been conducted in most transparent and sethical mannes. All the
necERsary Eieps have been taken, with changing soclo-etonamic
ScEnafo to ensure that the conduct of business ks as per the
polickes of the management, namelf Honety, Trandparency and
Ethical Behavior. The [ompamy’s policies and practices are simed
at #fficient conduct of business and in sincersly and #ffectively
meeting s obligations towards its stakeholders, through an
effective and professional Board of Directory, complete and timely
dissemination of information through timely disciasurs and
maxirmirathon of shareholderswealth,

2. BOARDOFDIRECTORS
In terms of Reguiation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements] Regulations 2015, [SEBI (LODR)-2015) Board of
your Company is well diverse. Every member of the Boord & having
experiencs and expertise in their respective fislds

Composition of the Board of Directors

The compesition of the Boand of Directors of the Company, at present,
s in e with Regulation 17 of SESI (LODR) 2015 It hars one Managing
Directo:, three Whole Time Direclors and four Non-Exscutive
irde pendent Dinections out of them one is woman director

MNa of

- a———y S——— Shares held

Me. Ramesh Kumar Dua Maniaging 150
Director

Me. Mubmnd Lal Dua Promoter & Whole Tima 26445700
Exiscutivis Director

Me Nikhil Dua Whole Thrme 4500450
Diractor

M. Dwval Ganguly Executive Whole Time 9360
Director

Br Vivek Kurmas -

M. Pankaj Shrimall Mon- Execotive  Independent 1000
M. Kunuvils Kuriaioss
Ms. Despa Verma -
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Detaics of Board Mertings
During the Finencisl Yesr 7077-18 the Boand of Directors et Frve Himes.

The Maximum gap between any twd DonseruThve Board mestings was
bess than 120 days, a5 ghven below-

Date of Masting Ma. of Directors Tatal Strength
Prasant of the Board
120527 L] B
0s.08.2017 B B
O04m.2m? B H
03.02 28 -] H
30,0338 B B

Attendance record of the Direclors at Board Mestings and at the Annual
Cereral Meeting (AGM) during the Financial Year 201798 s as under:

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dun 5 Present 3
Mr. Mukand Lal Dus 5 Present 2
Wi, Mikhil Dus 4 Present .
Mir. Wivek Kumar 5 Present 1
Mr. Panibca| Shrimali 5 Present i
Mir. Kuruvila Kuriakowe 4 Abreent L]
M. Deval Canguly 5 Present .
Ms. Deepa Verma 5 Present

The Company famillarizes its Independent Directors with the [ompany,
thwir roles, iights, responslbilities in the Compamy, natune of the industry in
which the [ompany oparates, business model of the Company #tc.,
through various programs.
Tha Familllarization programme for |ndependent Directors is svallatle on
the Company's webslte at the followling web link:
http:/ fwww, relaxofootwear.com/pdf/ Famillarizatlon-Report-2017-
18, puif.
3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
L AuditCommiites
. Stakehpider Relationship Committes
Bl MNomination snd Aemunesstion Committee
N, Corporate Socisl Aesponsibllity [C5R) Committes
L AUNTCOMMITTEE
The Compamy constituted the Audit Committes bn jine with the
raquirsment of Sectlon 177 of Compandes Act, 2073 and In
accordancewith SEBI mquirements.
The rode of Apdit Committes |5 as follows:
Dversight of the company's finandal reporting process and the
disclasure of its financlal information to ensure that the fnanclal
statement ls correct, sulficlent and credible;
¢ Recommendation for appolntment, remuneration and terms of
appaintment of suditors of the compamy;
Approval of payment to statutony suditors for any other serdoes
rendened by the Statutony sditos:
* Reviewing with the management, the annual financial
statemaris and suditors eport thereon befoe submisdan to
the board for approval, with particelar reference to:

™



s Migtters required to be induded in the Dircton’ Respansibility
Statemert to be included in the Directors Report in terms of
clause {c) of subsertion 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act,
0

* Changes, if amy, in accounting policies and practices and reasons
forthe same.

* Major accounting entries invohding estimates based on the
expicise of judgment by management.

»  Significant adjustments made in the financlal statements
grising out of audit findings.

* Compliangs with listing and ather legal requirmmants relating to
financlal statemants.

*  Disclosure of amy related party transactions.

*  Qualifications in the draft audit report

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial

staterments bifore submission to the beard for approval.

Harre of Hemibert

The Audit Committes Is empowered, pursuant to the terms of

reference to:

»  Imvestigate any activity within its terms of reference and 1o seek
any information it requines from amy emipioyee

= Obtain legal or other independent professional advice and 1o
secure the sftendance of outsiders with relevant expertise,
which is considersd necessary.

Composition and Aftendanca

The Auwdit Committes comprised of Four Directors, namely, Mr. Panka)
Shrimall, indepandent Director and Chalrman of the Committes, Mr.,
Kuruvila Kurigkose, Independent Director, Mr, Wivek Kumar,
Indepandent Director and Mr. Nikchil Dua, Executhve Director.

The details of the mestings and the attendance of membern of the
Compmittes in the mestings held during the Financial Year 207718 ane
given below:

No. of Mestings  Mo. of Mastings

Reviewing. with the management. the statement of uses / held attended
preferential issue, etc), the statement of funds wtilized sike. Nl O 4 4
for purposes other than thote stated in the offer document /

prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring  Mr Kunndla Kurakose 4 4
agency manitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights B Wiph Murnar 4 L

lssue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Beard to
take up steps In this matter,

Review and monitor the auditor's Independence and
performance, and effectiveness of sudit process.

Approval or any subsequent medification of transactions of the
company with related partles.

Serutimy of Inter-corporate loans and Imvstments.

Valzation of undertaldngs or assets of the company, wherever it
Iy neTEdiary.

Evaluation of intemal financial controls and rsk management
SYSLETTH.

Reviewing, with the management, peformance of stalutory and
internal auditors, adeguacy of the intemal control systems;
Reviewing the adegquacy of imternal awdil function, If any,
including the structure of the Internal sudit depatment. staffing
and senlorty of the official heading the department. reporting
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit,

Discussbon with intemal auditors of any significent Nindings and follow
i thiere o,

Reviewing the findings of any intermal Inveitigations by the
irternal auditors Into matters where there i suspected fraud or
irreguiarity or & fallure of intemal control systems of a matedal
nature and reporting the matter tn the board.

Discussion with statutory auditors befors the it commences,
aboul the natwre and sope of audit a8 well s post-audit
bt Lo SS0Er B ey area of Concem,

T look into the reasons for substantial defaults inthe payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of
nan-payment of declared dividends) and creditors,

Ta rinvhiny the functioning of the Whistle Blowsr miechanlsm.

Approval of appointment of CFD (L., the whole-time Finance
Director of any other person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
mnperience and background, etc. of the candidate.

Carrying out any other function as i mantioned in the terms of
raference of the Audit Commities.

Members of the Audil Committes have requisite Financial and

Management expertise. The Company Secretary of the Company acts
as the Secratary of the Committes

Il. STAMEHOLDER AELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Compary has constituted Stakeholder Relationship Committes to
specifically look Into the redressal of Shareholders and Imestors
eomplalints

The mbe of Stakshokde: Relatinnship Dommittes is a5 follows--

Th Cormmittes supsrvises the mechaniam for redrrsal of imeston

grievance and smun ondial investons relations. The Committes

mﬂlmm
Transher ftransmission of shares,

*  Spiit-up/sub-division and consolidation of shares.

s lssunof new and duplicete share certificates,

« Reglstration of Power of Attomeys, Probates, Letter of
transmission or other documents.

+  Toopen /close Bank Account(s) of the Company for remittance of
dividend and lssue Instructions ta bank fram time to time n this
regard

« Tao look into the redmssal of shareholders’ complaints and
Enguires

w vy adlied matter oul of and incidental to theas functions

Composition snd Afterdance

The Committes comprised of three Directors, M Wiesl Kurnar,
Hon-Executive Independent Director and Chairman of the
Committes, M: Ramesh Kumar Dua, Managing Dbrector and Mr.
Mulkcand Lal Dua, Exscuthve Dlrector,

During the Financlsl Yesr 207718, six meetings of the Committes
wern held and this attandance of members ot the mestings |s ghen
b o

Mao. of Mextings Ko, of Mawtings

Mame of Mambers

held attended
M. Wivek Kumar [ (1
Mir. Rarmesh Murmsr Dud & [

RELAXD FOOTWEARS LIMITED



Company recefved 47 compiaints, suggestions and grievances during
the year, out of which 46 tomplaints were promptly dealt with and
resohved within 15 deys and one complaint is pending on 317 March,
218

Company Secretary acts as the Secretany of the Committee

. NOMINATION ANDREMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company constituted “Momination and Remuneration

Committes” to recommaend the Board of Directors, the compensation

and remunaration of Directors and SenlorManagerial Personnel,

The role of Mominatlon and Remuneration Committee as per the

Mominatien and Rermuneration Policy |5 as follows:

« determining / recommending the criteria for appointment of
Exgcubive, Mon-Executive and Independent Directors to the
Beard;

« determining / recommending the criterda for gualifications,
pasithve attributes and Independence of Directors:

« entifying candidates who are gualified to become Directors and
who may be appointed In Senior Mapagement and
recommending to the Board thelr appointment and removal;

« ravlewing and determining all elemants of remuneration
package of all the Executive Directors, |8, salary, benefits, bonus,
stock aptions etc,;

« reviewing and determining fized component and performance
linkad incentives for Oirectors along with the performance
critesia;

« determining policy on senvice contracts, nothoe period. severance
fees for Directors and Senlor Manzgement and

»  ovaluating performance of each Director and performance of the
Board as awhale;

The Committes also plays a role of a Compensation Committes and |s

responsible for adminlstering the Stock Dptlon Plan and Performance

Share Man of the Company and determining sliglbiity of employees

for stock options,

Compaositionand Attendance

management ouiside Board/ Committee Meetings, professional
gualifications and prior experience.

The indapendent Direchors performance svaluation was carred out by
the entire BHoard, excluding the Oirector being eveluated. The
performance evaluation of the Chaiman and the Non Independant
Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors who also
revigwed the parformance of the Board as awhale.

CORPORATE S0CIAL RESPOSIBILITY ([CSR) COMMITTEE
The Company has constituted a Corporate Soclal Responsibility (C5R]
Committee as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Committee has been constituted with the following terms of
referenc:
= Formulate and recommend to the Boand, a C5R Polioy indicating
the acthity or activities to be undertaken by the Company as
specifind in Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013,
Recommend the amownt to be spent on the C5A activities.
Monitor the Company's CSA Polloy peradically.
=  Artend to swch other matters and functions as may be
prescribed from tme totime,
The Board has adopted the CS5R Paolicy as formulated and
recammended by the Committes, The same is available on the
website of the Company at hitp:/ wwenrelaxofootwearcom
JpdfiCorporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy. paf
The Annual Report on C5A acthities for the Financial Year 201718
farms a part of the Dinectors' Report.

Compasitlonand Attandance

The Committes comprised of foaur directors, Mr. Ramesh Kumar
Dua, Managing Dlrector and Chalrman of the Committes, Mr
Mukand Lal Oua, Whole Time Olrector, Ms. Despa Verma and
Mr. Panka] Shrimall Non-Executive cum independent Oinectors.
Durlng the Financkal Year 207718, one meeting of the Committee
was held on 16732.200F and the attendance of members at the
mesting is glven befow:-

Na, Mo, of Meeti
The Committee comprised of three Non-Executhve cum Independent Hama of Mambers h:ldﬂ i ” ; [ L
Directors, Mr. Pankaj Shrimall, Chairman of the Committes, Ms. Deepa
Vierma and Mr. Vivek Kumar, members of the Committee. During the M. Ramesh Kumar Dua 1 1
Fimancial Year 2017-18, fowr meetings of the Commitiee were held and M. Makand Lal Dua 1 1
the attendance of members ot the meetings s ghven below:- Mr, Pankaj Sheimali 1 1
Hao. of Mewtings No. of Mestings Ms. Deepa Verma 1 1
Name of Memibers held sitanded
Mr. Parikal Shrimall 4 & 4. DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS FOR THE
Mr, Vivek Kumar 4 4 FIMANCIALYEAR 207718
M. Deepa Verma 4 4 . The Managing Director and Whole-Time Directors are pald

remuneration as per the terms approved by the Board of
Oirectors of the Company and confirmed by the Shareholders of
the Company and subject to such other statutory approvals as
may be necessary. Details of remuneration paid to the
Executive Directors forthe Financial Year 201718 |s a5 follows:

Nomination and Remuneration Pollcy of the Compamy

The Momination and Remunaration Policy |5 also avallabin on the
webslte af the Company at the following link
http:/ fwww. relaxofootwear.com/pdf/Nomination-and-

rermuneration- poficy. pdi. [T Im Lacs)
Tha Board's functioning was evaluated onvarious aspects, Including Name of
imker alia degree of fulfliiment of key responsibilities, Boord structure Dirsctors Designation | Salary | Commission | Total

and composition, role and accountability, management oversight, sk

management, culture and communication, frequency and Mr.RameshKumar Managing  134.80 07500 1209.80
effectiveness of meetings. Dua Dirextor
The Committeas of the Board ware assessed on the basisof degreeof ~ MrMukandlalDua  WholeTime 13480  1075.00  1209.60
fulfiliment of key responsibilities, adequacy of Committee Director
composition and effectiveness of meetings. The Chalrman appalnted Mr. Nikhil Dua WholeTime 521 : s.n
for the Board Meetings was also evaluated by the all the Directors on Director
the basis of managing relations, leadership, competence and Mr. Deval Ganguly  Whale Time 18594 185.94
diligenca. Directors wene evaluated on aspects swch as attendance and Director

contributhon at Board/ Committes Meetings, guldancef suppaort to the

1]
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#ir. Ramash Kumar Dua, Managing Director and Mr. Mukand Lal
Oua, Whaole-time Director of the Company ware appointed with
effect from 01.04.2014 for a pesiod of flve years and are related
to each ather. Mr. Nikhil Dua, Whale-time Dirsctor was
appolnted with effect from 010,507 for a perod of three years
and is refated to Mr. Mukand Lal Dua.

5, VENUE & TIME OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS
Venue, date and time of Anaual General Meotings held during the last 3yvears and special resolutions passed:

Year

&7 5 Sathya Sal Intermational Centre, Lodhi Road,

2M5-16

201415

Institutlonal Area, Pragat] Vihar, Mew Delthl-170 003
= dn iy

= dn_

6. POSTALBALLOT
There was no resplution at the last Annual General Meeting of the
Company which was required to be passed through Postal ballot
[pracess.

T DISCLOSURES

Related Party Transactions

There ware no materially significant related party
transactions with Its Promoters, Directors or the
Management, thelr  subskdiares or relatiees, etc. that may
have potantial conflict with the [nterests of the Company at
large. However, all related party transactions have bean
reported and form part of the Motes to Accounts of the
Balance Sheet. The Company does nat have amy subsidiary.
The palicy for dealing with refated parties (s avallable at the
site of the Company at the following link
http:fiwww.relaxofootwear.com/fpdf/Policy-far-
Transactlons-with-related-Farties. pdf

The Board of Directors during the year have approved
amalgamation of Mfs Marvel Polymers Private Limited and
M/s Relzwo Aubber Private Limited (Related Partles) with
your Company along with Its shareholders and creditors,
Your Company has recelved necessary approvals from stock
exchanges (BSE & MNSE) and has filed the first motion
application with NCLT.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Company has followed all relevant Accounting
Standards while preparing the Financial Stotements,
Hon-Compliznce by the Company

There has not been any non-compliance by the Company snd
no penalties ar strictume have been imposed on the Compamy
by Stock Exchange, SEB| or any statutory authority, on any
matter related to capltal markets, during the last three
years, The Company has complled with appliceble ndes and
mpulations prescribed by Stock Exchange, SEBI or any other
statutony authority relating to Capital Market

All Returns/Reports were Hied within stipulated time with
theStock Exchanges f other authorities.

Complinnce of Regulstion 77 of the SEB] Regulations 2015

The Company has complied with the mandatory
requirements spacified in Regulation 17 to 27 & clause '’ to T
af sub-regulation (2] of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODRA)
Regulations 205,

Policy for Prevention of Insider Trading

With a view to prevent trading of shares of the Company by

ily

Nao., of Speclal Resoulution

However, no pne is entitled for any kind of severance fees from the
Compamy.

Mon Exscuthm Directors: - The sitting fes pald to Non-Exscuthae
Directors for the Financial Year 201718 was € 3.30,000/- to
Mr. Panka| Shrimall, ¥ 3,685,000/ to Mr. Vivek Kumar,
T 2,80,000/- to Mr. Kuruvila Kpdakose and T 390,000/ - to Ms.
Dwepa Viarma for attending the meetings,

Doy and Date Time
5 Thursday, 21° 10.30 am
Leptembes, 27
1 Thursday, 15" 10.30a.m
Septermnber, 206
1 Thursday, 24" 10,30 a.m
Septamber, 215

an insider on the basis of unpublished price sensitive
information, the Bosrd has approved Policy For Presention of
Insider Trading and Code of Practices and Protedures for Fair
Oisclosure of Unpublished Sensitive Information in
pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 3015, Under the
Policy. insiders are prohiblted to deal in the Company's
sharas while in possession of unpublished price sensitive
infarmation.

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

To provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and
amployeas to report their conterns about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Pollcy the Company
has adopted a Whistle Blower Palicy. The Whistle Blower
Policy Is available at the sie of the company at following link
ttp: S fwww.relaxofootwear.comfpdf/Vigil-Mechanism-
Policy.pdf It is affirmed that no personnel of the Compamy
hasbeen denied access Lo the audit commitiee.

Non-Mandatory Reguirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory
requiremants of relevant regulations and schedules of
Listing Regulations of SEBI [LODR) Regulations 2015
relating to Corporate Cowvermance, The status of compliance
with the Mon-Mandatory requirements as per Part E of
Schedule |l s a5 wridar:

= Thefirancial statements of the Comparny are ungualified.

= Tha Intemal Auditor meparts to the Audit Committes.
Commuodity price risk or forelgn exchange risk and hedging
acthivities

During Financial ¥Year 201718, Company had foreign
exchange exposure towards the term & working capital
lomns, Import and export. However, the Company has
hadged all its tarm loans and as a policy, hedges major part of
theimport and export trensactions.

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

A gualified Practicing Company Secretary carled out gquarterly
examination of Secretarial Records to reconcile the total sdmitted
share capltal with Mational Securities Depository Limited (NSOL)
and Central Depository Services (Indfa) Limited {{D5SL) and the
total |ssued and listed capltal. The audlt conflrmed that the total
lszued fpald-up capltal was in sgresment with the aggregate of
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of
dematerialized shares held with NSOL and COSL.

RELAXL) FOUTWEARS LIMITED
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8. CDOEQFCONDUCT

The Company has lald down a Code of Conduct for all the Board
Members and Senlor Management of the Company, The Code of
Conduct is available on the web-site of the Company at
wwrw. relaxofootwear.cam. All Board Members and Senior
Management personnel have affirmed complisnce with Code of
Conduct. A declaration signed by the Managing Director s ghven below.
All the Bpard Members and Senlor Management Personnel have
affirmed compliance with the provisions of the Code of Conduct of
Relaxo Footwears Limited for the Financlal Year ended on 31st
March, 2018,

Ramesh Kumar Dua
Managing Directar

Dedhi, 11" May, 2018 DiM: DO15ra72

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company ensures timely disdosure of all corporate financlal
information and ather details relevant to the Sharaholders.

in compliance with SEB| (LOOR) Reguiations, 2015, guarterly,
half-yearly, nine manths and annual financlal statements of the
Compamy are published In Economic Times {In English Language)
and Mavbharat Times{inHindi Language).

The Fimanclal Results of the Company for the guarter, half yearly,
nine months and whole year are posted on website of the
Companyi.e. wwe.relaxofootwearn comwith:

*  Full verslon of the Annual Report Including the Balance
Sheet. statement of Profit and Loss, Directors’ Report and
Audltors' Report, Cash Flow S5tatement and Quarterly
Financlal Statements.

= Shareholding Pattem.
« Quarterly & Annual presentation on the Financial

Performance of the Campary foranalysts and sharebalders.

Manth & Year Lo

High

51250
56.50
S03.80
554.90
539.00
54290
570.90
62915
72350
FIT.ED
G58.00
BER.OS

470.95
45030
462.00
470.50
A4B.TS
ABA.TS
sm.on
53250
550.05
61280
550.00
SOE.ED

Apr-17
May-17
lun-17
Juk7
Aug-T7
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MNow-17
Dec-17
jan-18
Feb-18
Mar-18
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1. GENERALSHAREHOLOERS INFORMATION

a)

Close

452.40
456,00
481.85

542.95
54745
BDETS
BI5.60
61215
B1245

Annual Genaral Mesting

Date : I7.09.2M8

Time : 10.30a.m,

‘enue + Gri Sathya SalIntemational Centne
Lodhl Road, Institutional Area,
Pragat! Vihar,
Mew Dalhi-10 D03

Flnancial Year

T April, 2077 - 37" March, 2078

Book Closure Date:

Friday, 219.09.2018 to Wednesday, 26.09.2018 (both days
inclusiva).
Ohvidend Payrmant Daba:

On or before 26 October, 2018, (Subject to the approval of
the Sharehiolders in AGR)

Reglsterad Offics:
Agearwal City Square, Plot Mo, -10 Manglam Place, District
Centre, Sector-3 Rahind Delkl -NO0BS
Tol.; IT-4BB00G00, 46800700
Listimg on Stock Exchamges:
Matlonal Stock Exchangs of indla Limied,
Exchange Plaza C-1, Block - G, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra [E]
Mumbal-400 051,
Stock Symibal : NSE-RELAXO
{The annual listlng fee for the year has been pald to NSE).
BSE Limited,
Phirozes jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbal-20000m.
Stock Code: BSE-530517.
{The annual lsting fes for the year has been pald to B5E)
Market Prica Data

Table showing monthiy price movement on B5E & NSE during
the Financial Year 20717-18:

NSE
High Low Closa
509.40 459,00 454.40
SER.00 445 55 4EL15
504.00 45580 480,30
25400 454,595 7540
5z2.00 #451.95 5049.85
S43.00 431.80 534.95
040 0330 550.00
64730 G4 50 BO0G.85
71510 591,85 BILED
E98.95 BOE.OS 52115
Br4.00 56400 3R]
BB2.55 £95.00 B4210
PRr—— whars price of Makar Shame sad
- =
L) -
. o e = )
b =]

i = ]
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h} Reglstrar and Transter Agents: Securities and Exchange Board of

Imdia [SERI], has made It mandatony for all the fisted Companles
that all the work relating to share transfer [ reglstry, both in
Physical and Electronic form, to be handled efther whally ‘in
house” by Companies or wholly by & SEBI registered external
Registrar and Transfer Agent. The Company has appointed M/s.
Karvy Computershare Private Limlted as the RAeglstrar and
Trangfor Agent of the Company. Detail of the Registrar and

certificates should be addressed to Registrar and Transfer
Agent. Such reguests are processed within stipulated time
from the date of receipt provided documents meet the
stipulated requirement of statutory provisions In all respect
The share certificates duly endorsed are retumed immediately
to the sharsholder by ATA. The detalls of transfer and
transmission pre placed before the Shareholders'/imesiors'
Grievance and Shane Transfer Cornmittes from time to time and

Transfer Agent of the Company is given below:
M5, Earwy Computershane Prvate Limited
Karwy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial Oistrict
Cachlbowdl, Hyderabad - 500 0332, Telangana,
Email : gimwarand. fs@kansy.com
I} Share TransferSystem
The request regarding physical sham transfers and share

I} Distribation Pattern 25 on 31" March, 2018
I} Shareholding pattern (In form of siza):

the Board fornoting and confirmation

Pursuant to Regulation 40{9) & 40{10) of SEBI [LOORA) Regulations
2015, Certificate on half yearly bagls confirming due compliance
with Share Transfer formalities by the Company and Certificate
for timely dematerialization of shares as per SEBI [Depositories
and Particlpants) Regulations, 1996, have been submitted to
stock exchanges,

No.ofEquity | MNo.of

% of Total

Shara held Share Shars

haldars holdars
1 1-5000 EgF) 9795 2SBRTTT 248 10570 Sa.0 2241957 2378
F) S0010000 108 058 796424 0.65 2 0.4 765350 054
3 10007 20000 41 038 576277 048 - 0.34 5598 0.47
4 20007- 30000 | 019 52047 0.45 19 08 ABEETY 0.40
5 30000- 40000 7 .08 258220 022 5 0.05 184355 s
E 400M- 50000 Fi 0,08 EpEES 0.26 1 0.0 47124 004
7 5000n- 100000 7 015 1231674 102 18 07 1331945 m
B 100001 & Aboave | 028 113539942 2443 2 020 401380 94.m
Total S48 100,00 120383620 100.00 WTE4 100,00 1230250 100.00

i} Shareholding pattern {in form of Ownership Categary):

Ne.of | % of Total

Shara Shara
holders holders

1 Promoters i ¥ on F359000 T4.25 12 on S0005E00 74.53
2 Bodies corporate Fri ] 2432 16056460 13.34 F.cl| 2.2 16159767 1345
| Resident individuals 10562 .45 5392063 4.48 9313 a2.02 SEEINS3 473
4 HUF 154 172 1H\5307 1K 20& 19 245060 0.2
- Choaring Membiers 43 oar RIS om 68 064 27203 0.0
B Mon-resident indlans 33 330 513300 043 185 .64 I5T4TA 033
k) Farnign Instiutional - - - = - - - -
Investors
B Others E3 0.2 BRZEITS 733 50 046 TEOESTI E.33
Total TIS48 100.00 120353620 100.00 TTEE 10000 120130250 100.00
a1
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k) Dematariallration of Shares:

The shares of the Compary are under compulsory Demat Scheme. For
the purpose of demateralization of the shares, the Company has
entered into the Agreements with two Depositories:

DEMATERALISATION OF SHARES AS ON 11.00.208

Fartlculars Mo. of Shares

Matienal Securities Depository Limited (a)

Central Depository Sarvices (India) Limited (b)

Shares in Demat Form (a-+b)

Shares in Physical Form [c)

Total (3+bec)
Imvestors Cormrespondence:

All enquiries, clarifications and correspondence should be addressed
tothe Compllance Offcer at the following address:

CS Vikas Kumar Tak, Company Sacretary b Compliance Officer,

Riedaxn Footwears Limited

Aggarwal City Sguare, Plot o -10, Manglam Place, District Cantme,
Sector-3 Rohinl Delhi 110085

E-maik: vikastak®mmlaofootwear.com

The Company addresses all complaints, suggestions, grievances and
other comespondence exped|tiously and replies pre sent wsually within
710 days except In case of other iImpadimants. The Company
endeavours to implement suggestions as and when recebved from the
imvestors. Ourimg the year under review, 3 total of 47 imvestors'
complaints wene recelved and 46 were resohed.

o] ParShare Data
Partlculars 20118
Met Eaming { ¥ In Crares) 15107
Cash Earning [T in Crones) 54
EPS-Baslc (In¥) 13.40
Dividend (including Interim Dividend 150
per share] (in® )
Dividend Pay out (3) i
Book Value Per Share [in T} 63.25
Face value Per Share (inT ) 1.00

* pre bonus

p} There were no outstanding ADRS/GORs/Warrants or any other
convertible instruments, conversions date and Hlely impact on
equity during the yearunder neview,

g} Transter of undalmed amount to Investor Education and Protection

Fund (IEPF)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124, 125 and other relevant nubes
of the Companies Act, 2013, the dividend declared by the Company
which mmain unclaimed for a perod of seven years shall be
transfemed by the Company to Inwestor Education and Protection
Fund establlshed by the Central Government.

Ouring the year under review, the Company has deposited unpaid and
unclaimed sum of T77156/- (Final Dividend for FY 2010)
and & 4DESTS- (Imterim Dividend for FY 20M) to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

The detalls of disclosure with respect to unclaimed demat suspense
arcount s provided In polnt no 35 of the Dfectors Repart.
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Tra80737
1778523
TIESIZED
694360

EME-17

1 Mational Securities Depository Limited (NSOL)
2  Central Depositony Services (India) Limited (COSL)

The details of shares of the Company in demat and physicad forms
is ghven below:

% of Pald up Capital Nu. of Sharshalders
9794 5739
148 4557
99.42 11296
0.58 52
100.00 11548

m} PlantLocations

Location of Mants of the Company |s given below :-
*  RFLAEI1-326-327, MIE, Bahadurgarh, Haryana

*  RFL-Ill - A-1130 & 1130 (&), RUCO Industrial Area, Phase-lil,
Bhlwadi, Rajasthan

=  RFL-IV - 30/3/2, Mooja Hasanpur, Tikrd Border Bahadurgarh,
Hargana
RFL-V - §3-592, 5I0CUL Industrial Ares, BHEL, Haridwar,
Uttarakhand

=  RFLAA - 342-343, Foobwear Park, Indusinial Estate, Sector-17,
Bahadurgarh, Hanyana

= RFLAN -328-329, MIE, Bahadurgarh, Haryana

*  [RFALVEI-37 Sector 48, Bahadurgarh, Hargana

n) Corporateidentity Number (CIN): L7489S0L1984 PLCOTS0ST

20516 20415 201334

TGS 12028 102.05 B5.64
1m.a 16740 142,95 2680
593 10,02 1717 094
1.00 050 1.00* 050
10m 5.9 5.82 457
S0.48 599 B1.30 456,09
1.00 .00 1.00 1.00

1] Otherussful information farthe shareholders:

i} Egquity Shares of the Company are under compulsory demat
trading. To evail the advamtage of scripless trading, Shareholders
are adwlsed o consider dematerlallzation of thelr sharehalding so
25 to avold Incormvenbence in future,

i} Members/Beneficial owners are reguested to guote thelr Faolio
o/ 0B & Olent |10 Mos. as the case may be, in all cormespondence
wiith the Company,

i} In case of loss/misplazement of shares, a complaint shall be
Ipdged with the Police Statlon and an Intimation shall be sent to
the Company along with arlginal or certified copy of
AR acknowledgament of the Complaint.

Iw] Beneficlal mamers of shares, |n demat form, are advised that in
terms of the Regulations of NSOL & COSL, their Bank Account
detalls, as fumished to the Depository Participants (DP) will be
printed on their Dhidend Warrants. The Company will not
entartaln requests for change of such bank detaéls printed on their



dividend warrants. wil) Section 72 of Companies Act, 2013 extends nomination facility to

W] Members holding shares in physical form, are requested to notify individuals holding shares in physical form in Companies.
to the Company, change in thelr Address/Pin Code Number and Members, In particulars thase holding shares In single name, may
Bank Arcount details promptiy avail of the above Facility by furnishing the particulars of their

vi) Beneficlal pwners of shares In demat farm, are requested to send nomination In the prescribed Nomination form

thelr instrisctions regarding change of address, bank details,
momination, powerof attomey etc. directhy o their P a5 the same

are maintained by tham.
For and on bethalf of the Board of Directors

Ramash Kumar Oua Mukand Lal Dua
Managing Directar Whale Time Directar

Delhi, 11 May, 2018 DIN - DOISTET2 DIN - 157898

CEQ/CFO CERTIFICATION

Ta

TheBasrd of Directars

Redann Footwears Limited

SUB: CEQ/CFO Cartification

We Ramesh Kumar Dua, Managing Ddrector and Sushil Batra, Chief Financial Officer of Relaxo Foobwears Limited, cortify thats
1. ‘We have reviewed financial staterments and the cash flow statements for the Financial Year ended on 315t March, 2078,
2. Tothebestofourknowledes and infarmation:
] these statements do notcontalin any untrue statement or cmit any material factor contaln statements that might be misteading.

iy  thess statements together present o true and fadr view of the Company's aflsirs and are in compliance with existing accounting standands,
applicable laws and regulations,

3,  There are, to the best of our knowledge and bellef no transactions, entered into by the Company durng the year which are fraudulent, llegal or
violative of the Company's code of conduct.

4, We axept responsibility for establishing and maintaining intemal controés for financial reporting and we have evaluated the effectivenass of
imternal control systems of the Company pertaining to financlal reporting and we heve disclosed to the auditors and the Awdit Comamitiee,

deficiencles in desion of operation of such internal controls, f any, of which we ane swane and the steps we have taken or propese to take to rectify
thess deficiancies,

5 Wehave indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Commttes.
I Significant changes inimternal control over financial reporting during the year, if any:

Il.  Significent changes In accournting policles during the year and that the same have been disclosed In the notes to the financial statements, If
amy; and

iil.  [Instances of fraud, whetheror not significant, of which we have become aware and the involvement thereto, if any, of the management oran
employee having a slgnificant role in the Company’s Intemnal contral system over financial reporting.

Ramesh KumarDua Sushil Batra
Delhi, 171" May, 2018 Managing Director Chief Financlal Officer

RELAXL) FOUTWEARS LIMITED



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

This report contaens statements that are the (ompany's beliefs and may
be comsidersd 10 be “Foreard Looking Statements” that describs our
obpcthvn, plams orgoaly Al thisse forward looking staterments ane sulijpect
to certaln riskos and wncertainties, incheding. but net limited to,
government action, kcal i global, political or economic developments,
changes In legislation, technalogy risis, risk inherent in the Company’s
growth strategy, dependence on certain suppliers and other factors that
could cause our actual results to differ matedally from those contemplated
bry the relevant forward loaking statements,

Thass farward Inoking statements included in this mport are made only s
on the date of this report and wa undertake no obilgation to publicly
update these foraard looking statements to reflect subsequent events or
drcumstances.

Industry frnacture snd developments

Aztording 1o Businesswire, |ndia i1 the wecond largest global produces of
footwear after China, accounting for 9% of the annual global production of
12 billion pairs. Presently about 50% of the footwsar pradute in the
tountry i consumed by the dnmestic masoet and the rest iy exported. The
growing Indian techion and Iitestyle madet has ghen an impetus to the
footwear Indurtry a5 well,

Foobwear his svolhved from being [ust & mere necessity 58 B protection for
your fest to an Important fashion accessary, Footwaar industry in india is
very optimistic right now with growing awareness about the latest trends
and consclousness smang consumers. This industry has seen a significant
growth In the last few years. Rising Incomes, advent of globaliration,
Improved amploymaent and living standards In the country has led to the
expansion in the size of this market,

The governmant has spproved a ¥ 2600 crome spacial package over the
nixt thres years for devalopment of footwear asctor. The scheme would
lead to development of infrestructune for the leather and foortwear secior
addmss environmental concems specific to the lesther sector and
facibitate additional imestrments, jpb oreation and produition.

The G57 Councll has Tieed tax rate ot 5% for foobwear with MRP up
to ¢ 500 and 18% for footwear over ® 500, Post CST, the indian economy
has witnessed @ transition from an informal setup to 3 formal one. The
organired footwear players will be able to outpace thelr unorganised
counterparts by leveraging the advantage.

All types of footwenr (leather & non-leather) will now have unifarm tax
rates pan Indla ansuring a level playing field which will boast the footwear
Industry,

Oparating Emvironmant

As per Businesswire, ndian footwear industry has the patential to grow by
0%, [ newt 5 years. The arganired segrrent caters to - 40% of the marke
whils unorganired players fetch the remaining markst which essentially
Fally under migrn, mind, small and medium enteprises.

The comyumer s in(reased exposure to plastic money and imposition of
C5T is going to provide mone organired retailing snd trade ransparency in
lpngterm.

Covemment of Indla has already commenced the “Make in india®
campalgn which has been proving beneficial in boasting manufacturing in
India. Seconddy, due to the ever increasing intemet penetration and the
owerall scosystem for e-commerce falling in place, @ new distribution
channel ls emergingwhich is fuelling consumption armong the millenniss.
Tha Changing Consumar Bahaviour

Demand for footwear Is expected to remaln strong over the forecast
period The category |s anticipated to register a decent growth in coming
yeans

The way consumers are spending thelr money on varous items has
changed in recent years. With growing urbanisation and ever- increasing
penetration of inteme! and sogial media, the buying behaviour of indian
commamen is changing rapidly.
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Instant mwarensss and sspirations for the lateat global trends with the
advent of technclogy has ingreaed frequency of shopping by conwuman.
Also, global fashion and lifestyle brands have started betting big on small
cities of india.

The consumer has undergons & behavioural change in the last decade.
Hefshe has become mome tech savwy, extensively prone to digital
marketing and practices, fashion consclous, demanding the latest trends
and contemparary styles. Brand consriousness, higher discretionary
incarnes and groatar cholon has contributed to growth |n foobwear
consumption,

Opportunities & Threats

indian footwear market (s guite under penetrated with per capita
comsurmption of only <166 pairs pe annum against a global averages of 3
pairs, while the developed countries average around &-7 pairs.

However, the increasing ssgnific ance of foatwear is leading to an upsurge in
the demand promiting better growth prespests for footwear industry. The
by availability of variety of brands i fanning the potentisl of footwear
industry even in tier-1l and tier-#i dties s the peogle ane becoming mane
and rpre brand ceatAc in thess cities as well. The govemment maatuns to
iowsigr taxes on foobwead |4 expected to address competition from The
unorganised sector and imports,

The indlan footwear industry is gearing up to leverage its strengths
towards maximizing benefits. Resource strength of India In the form of
materiats and skilied manpower is a comparative advantage for the
courtry, among other things,

While the footwear Industry [s set for an exponential growth in the times
to corme, then are many challenges such as high competition from global
brands and the frequent change in consumer tastes leading to quicker
absolescence and higher stock.

However, ghven the Company's four decades of experience in
manufacturing and marketing of footwear, it would be better placed than
s peers during any uncertain times.

Rishs and Conowrng

Giobal economic and political factors that are beyond the control
irflusncs forecasts and may directly affect performance of the Company as
well as the footwear Industry.

These factors Include Interest rates and its impact on avallability of retall
space, rate of scomomic growth, fiscal and monetary policles of
government, Inflatlon, deflation, consumer credit avallabllity, consumer
debt levels, tax rates and policy, unemployment trends, terrorist threats
and scthvities. worldwide military and domestlc disturbances and
conflicts, and other matters that influence consumer confidence and
spending.

The Company It subject to risks arlsing from exchange rate Muctuations
which may adveriely affect our financiad perfomance.

Intemal Cortrol System and s adeguacy

Thee Compiamy has special financial, operational and other controd systems
which are carried out by intemal processes and which involve monitoring.
independent evaluation and timely reporting to management in a
systematic order to ensure that all the acthities are performed in
acoordance with current policles, methods, instructions and limits. Robust
system of Internal controds facllitates accurate and timely compilation of
financlal statemaonts and management reports, ensures regulatory and
statutory compllance and safeguands investor Interest by emsuring the
highest level of governance. The control system ensunes that all assets are
safeguarded and protected and that the transactions are suthorlsed,
recorded and mported comectly,

The Company has 2 systematic audit process which Is cared out by
internal autiton independently 23 3 part of internal control function and In
the form of Ninancial activities and tompliance Judil, ndependent of the
external auditors activities, considering the management and
orgznizational needs.




The Company has all the mechanlsms conceming the process of standard-
setting, reporting verifying the compliance with standards, deciskon-
making and implemnenting, which are established by the board of directors
in ordes to monitor, to keep under tcontnol and, if necessany. to change the
fisi/retumn structure of the futune cash Mows of the Company and
acrondingly, the guality and the extent of the Company's activities. The
Company has developed a very comprehensive legal/ statutory compliance
software tool and litigation tocl with the help of extemal expert agency
wihich deills down the mesponsibility of compliance from top managoment
to executive level. These processes are fully automated and generate alerts
for proper and timely compliance with regular MIS, To commensurate with
the size of Company and its increasing scale and operations, Company is
reviewing existing Delegation of Authority (DOA). This is key Initiative to
enhance existing Intemal controls and to further strengthen the
Covernancs, Riek b Compliance ([GRC) framework 51 Falass,

Humsn Resourcesfindustrial Relation

Dwer the Last year MR hes taioen various iniliatives for employes benefit
and retention. The detailed information Is provided in point ne. 3 of the
Director's Report. The redationship of your Company with employees had
b Coreilel during the yeat.

As on 31" March, 2078, the total number of employees of the Company is
ST38 against 4855 on 31" March, 2017,

Financlal Partermancs of the Company

In the Financlal Year 2077-18, your Company schieved mecond turnover
of T1964.44 crores and prefit of T 161.07 croms, Detalled report

on financlal and nan-financial perfarmance of the Company is provided in
point o1, 2 & 3 of the Director's Report.

The Board has rcommended a final dividend of T 1.50 per equily share
(50% of Face Value of T 1) forthe Finandal Year 207718,

The Company has only one operating segrment Le. footwear and related

products’ and the pedformance |2 already captuned in palnt no 2 & 3 of the
Directors Report and Financlal Results.

Dwrthook

The demand for footwear produrts in India is Lo expand in the (oming years
&% the cuslomen do nel compromise both with comfort and style. Our
Company & well placed to meet the changing trends of the sudience.
Footwear industry has been recognised by the Covernment of indla 35 3
focus sectorin the ‘Make In Indla’ mission.

The Company |s constantly invalved In branding and advertising and has
engaged Bollywood actors ke Salman Khan, Akshay Kumar, Shahid
Kapoor and Shruti Haasan to endorse its brands. This not only makes the
products asplrational bul also creates a significant barrer forcompetition,
The Company has over 300 stores across the country, most of thess stores
are Company Dwned and Company Operated (COCO), but the company has
during the year opened few (ranchise stores in order Lo expand Its retall
footprint. We plan to open 30-40 more COCO / franchise stones bn FYY9. Dur
brand has carved & nichs for itself in the competitive footwear retall Lector.
The Company's focut (o gradually expand its retall presencs memakng
imlact

To cater to the Gull and South East Asian markets, Compaiy has opened
branch office in Dubal. This indtiative will boost export and will smoothen
the procwss of exports and will enable the Company 1o cater small export
orders.

We undertook the amalgemation of Marvel Polymers Private Limibed
{MPPL) and Relaxa Rubber Private Limited (RRPL) with our Compary,
which Is under process. The Company has recetved approvaly
from BSE & NSE and has filed first motion application with BCLT, 1t will
enable the Company to leverage on its larger net worth base, besldes
eliminating related party transactions betwesn MPPL, RRPL and AFL and
improving cperating profits,

HELAXN] FOOTWEARS LIMITED
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

About Relawp

Aelaxn Footwears Limited (Relaxa) 1s largest footwear manufactuedng
company in India, which deals in non-leather products |a, rubber / EVA |
PU slippers, canvas/ sport [ schood shoes, sandals, efc. It has a portfolio of
10 brands Including major brands ke Relaxn, Flite, Spar: and Bahamas.
The compary selis s products through -50,000 retaibers served through
distributors, 300 plus mtall outlets, sxports, s-commane, modem irade
etc. It has B state of the art manufacturing facilitias, six In Bahadurgarh
[Haryana), and one each in Bhiwadl [Rajasthan) and Harldwar
[Uttarakhznd). The company's business process k= managed through SAR
B Microsaft Navision.

About Business Respansibllity Report

Tha Securities and Exchangn Board of India (SEBI) has mandatad that the
top 500 listed Companies by market capitalization to include Business

SECTION A: GEMERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1 Corporate dentity Mumber (CIN) of the Company
Z Mameofthe Company
1 Registered address

‘Wabsite

E-mail id

Flnancial Year repared

Sactorfs) that the Company is engaged in {industrial activity code-wise)

List three key produscts/services that the Compamy
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)

(- T R TR

8 Total numberof locations where business activity s

undertaken by the Company
al MNumberaf Intermational Locations
b} Numberof National Locations

) Markets served by the Comparny -
LocalfState/National fintemational

SECTION B: FIMANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

Pald up Caplal

Totad Turnover

Total profit after taxes

Tetal Spending on Carporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR) as
percentage of profit after tam (%)

5 List of activithes in which expenditure in 4 above has been
Incurmed

B Rg =

Responsibility Report in its Annual Report. The reporting framework |5
based on the "Watlonal velumtary guldelines on sodal, emvimnmental and
econamlc responsibllities of business (NVGs)' mlezsed by the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs, Governmaent of India, in [uly 2001 which contains 9
principles and core elements for each of those 3 principles

Since inception, Relaxn hes consistently lved by and upheid its guality
assuranca by rigidly adhering to the statutes of Quality Par Excellents and
absolute customer satisfaction. We are committed to our objectives of
providing a platform for better govemance and conducting the business
practices in transparent and ethical masnner,

The Business Responsibility Report for FY18 describing the initiathwes
undertaken byyour Company in the presorfbed format are given below:

Lrag9apL1984PLCO1E0a7
Relaxo Footwears Limited

Aggarwal City Square, Plat No. 10, Manglam Place, District
Centre, Sector-3, Rohinl, Delhi-1008S

wnwwi, nalaxofortwaarcom
i@ relaxofootwear.com
20718

Foobwear (15203)

Relaxo s a non-leather footwear company and operates in 3 major

categories Le. Relaxo (rubber slippers), Fiite (EVA & PU Slippers)
and Span (sports and canvas shoes, sandals and sporty siippers).

Branch office -1
Manufacturing Plants - 8

Registered & Corporate office - 1
Retalls Dutlets -302

Relaxo has Pan India Market along with presence in Gulf and Sauth
East Asia Market.

| ¥ In Crores)
1203
196444

15107
1%

Health, Education and Skill
Development



SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

Does the Company hove sy Subsidiary Company) Companles ?

Oo the Subsidiany Company/Companies participate in the BR

Initiatives of the parent company? IF yes, then Indicate the nember

ol suc

h subsidiary campanys)

Do amy other entibyfentities (e.g, suppliers, distributors etc.) that the
Company does business with, particlpate In the BR Inltiathves of the
Company? If ves, then indicate the percantaga of such entity/entities?

SECTION O: BR INFORMATION
1. Detalls of Director/Directors responsible for BR
(@) Details of the Director responsible for implementation of the

ER policy/polides
DM :  DOYSTATR
MName :  Me Ramesh Kumar Dus

Designation :  Managing Director

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/poiicies
(o) Details of compliance [Reply in Y/H)

1 ¥ ¥ Y ¥ ¥ ¥ N ¥ ¥

Do you have &

policy/ policles

for,..

Has the policy being b
formulated in consultation

wifth the relevant
stakphaobdersy

Do#s the policy confarm to Mote 1
any national [ intemational
standards?

Has the policy being Y
approved by the Board? Mofe 2
ifyes, has it been signed by

B0/ owner/ CEQY approprate

Board Director?

Opes the company havea k4
specified committes of the

Board/ Director Official

to oversee the implementation

af the policy?

Indicate the link for the palicy Noie3
tobewviewed online?

Has the policy been farmally Y
communicated toall

relevant intemal and

external stakeholders?

Does the company have ¥
In-house structurne to

implerment the policy/

policies.

Mote 3

Mote 1

MNota &

Mote 3

(b} Detalis of the BR head

o W R e

Note 1

Mote 2

MNote 3

Ma
Nat Apphicatie

Particulars Details

Dl nmsTar:

MName Mr. Rameash Kumar Dua
Diesignation Managing Director
Telephone number OT-46B00600

e-mall Id rfi@melaxofostwesr.com

Mate 1

Hote 2

Mote 3

150740

MNoted

NA Y ¥
HA Note 1 MNote 1
NA ¥ ¥

Maote 2 Mate 2

A Mote3 Moted
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Does the Company have a
grimmancs mdressal
mechanism ralated to the
policyf poficies to addnass
stakeholdees' grievances
ralatad to the polloy

{ policies?

1. Has the comgany carrled
out Indepandent audit/
evaluation of the warking
of this palicy by an Intermal
o externad agency?

Moted  Noted

Mote 4

Note 4 Motz 4 Mote 4 A Motz & Mote 4

1.  Thepolicies generally complywith the basic laws of the nation, peneral business standards, falrtrade practices and good corporate govemanoe.

2. Policies have been signed by MO

1 Tha pﬂ“tﬂ! which are mandatorily required to be uploaded on the website are available at the website of the Company |.e.
http:/ fenvweer. relaxofootwear.com fimeestor- relations. aspe. Someof the policies which pertain to the employees of the Company ane avallable on

intranet.
4. Imtarnal Audit team ovalustes the policies on regular basis,

{b) if answer to the guestion at serisl mumbear 1 against ony principle, [s Mo, please explain wihy: (Tick up to 2 opthans)

5. Mo, Questions

1

The company has not understood the Princples,

. The company [s nok at a stage where it finds =alf
In & pasition to formulate and implement the policies
on specified principhes,

3 The company does not have financlal or manpower resources
availabile for the task

4 It Is planned to be done within next & months,

5 It is planned to be dons within the next 1year,

B Any otherreason (please specify)

3, Governance ralated to BR

1 Indiczte the frequency with which the Boand of Directors,
Committes of the Board or CED to assess the BR perfarmance
of the Company. Within 3 manths, 3-6 months, Annually,
Mon than 1 year

. Does the Company publish a BR of a Sustainability Report?

What i the hypedink for viewing this report? How frequently
it is published?

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
Principle1
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Does the pollcy relating to sthics, bribary and cormuption cover only
the comipany? Yes/ Mo, Dogs It extend to the Group/|oint Ventures/
Suppliars/Contractors/MNG0s [Others?

Code of Conduct

Your Company |5 committed to the adhenenoe to the highest standands
of maral, ethlcal and legal princples and belleve to rin business In falr
and transparent manner. Based on thesa princlples, the Company has

&8

Principles 7; Businesses, when sngaged In Influencing public
and regulstory policy, should da 5o in & responsible manner

Retaxois a memberof various Industrial and trade bodies,
Your Compamy actively participates In these forsms on
Issues and palicy matters that impact the interest of our
stakeholders. We prefer to be part of the broader policy
development process and do not practice lobbying onany
specific |sses and hence do mot feel such a policy s
necessany, ghen ourway of dolng business.

The Board of Directors of the Company assesses varkous
Initiatives forming part of the BR performance of the
Company at least onoe & year

Company pubdish its Business Responsibility Repart
annually with the Annusl Report and these reports ane
available online &t http:/ feww ralasofootwear.com

Iald down the Code of Conduct for employees and all its associates,
that inchedes deafing with gifis, bribery, sexual harassment etc. Caode
of Conduct s signed by all the Executives at the time of joining the
Cormpany.

Whistls Blewer

In order to ansure the effectlve Implementation of the Code of
Conduct, your Company has strong Vigll Mechanlsm } Whistle Blower
policy, applicable to all the employees and Directors that ensures



Feariass reporting and fair treatrrent of the Incidence. This policy i5
spplicable to Directors, employess, vendors and other business
partrieny of the Camparmy.

How mssy iskeholder complalnty have been mcibvid I the part
financlal year snd whit percentage was satisfactorly resabved by
tha s nEpement

During the year the Company has recefved 1 complaint which was
resabved by the management.

Princple 2

Relaxo commits to provide nnovative, value-added footwear to all
tlasses of society inchuding all gender and age groups across regions,
which pre user-friendhy as well as ervironmaent-friendhy.

Your Company complies with all applicable emdronmental, legal and

pther reguirements towards protecting the environment and

tonserving natural resourres. Your Company strives to achieve
comtinuous improvement (n the ervimonmental sustainabaity joumey
through cleary defined objectives and targets which are based on
reduction In enengy consumption, control on emissions and waste
genedation, consenvation of water, reducing effiuent discharge and

Creathng Brviranmental Baareness.

1 LUist up to 3 of your products or services whoss design has

Incorporated soclal or anviranmantal concerns, risks and/or
opportunities.
A%  leading footwear manufacturer, we at Relawo continue to
provide quality products at affordable prices to our customers, We
continuously strive to use our Innavative abllity to upgrade and
gnhance the guality of products through technological advances
in owr manufacturing facilities to ensure optimum use of the
resources with minimum impact on emvinonment,

Dur products liee Ortho & Fitness range 2 ipecially designed for

the comiort of the fest; while Hi-Hesl & Cushion Series are

economical and affordable products. In the youth segment;

Compary offers Bahamas & Flite products, which have attractve

design and are available in wide range of colors. Sparx range

comtabn trendy stppers, sandals & shoes in the prember rangs.

2, For sach such product, provide the following detalls In respect of
resource use (energy. water, raw mataral sic.) per unit of
preduct [optlonall:

{a) Reductlon durlng seurcing/production/ distributlon
schisved since tha previous year throughout the valus
chaln?

(b} Reduction durng usage by consumen (snergy, mater) has
baan schieved since the previous year?

Arlaxn belleves In “tve weengy, 53ve astlon” principle. Towands

this, your Company has taken following steps to reduce the

rorumption of enemgy, wates & matenal:

*  Regular training for ermployees 10 Mmanage the nesources in an
efficient manner,

«  We have set up @ solar power unit with a capacity of TSKW
in our manufacturing site in Bahadurgarh, Haryana where
=58 000 kWh was generated in FY18.

«  By-product recycling of EVA, PVE led to material wastage
reduction and gain in yield,

s  Aalnwater harvesting facllity |5 aperational at our
manufacturing faclities.

«  Safeand ervironmental-friendly disposal mechanism of waste.

« The Company has installed modem and efficient machinery
sroas 15 manufactudng wnits and has besn able D e the
usage of thermal & electrical energy.

i Dows the compamy have procedurss in pleoe for surtainable
sourting (intluding transpertation)?

4,

fa) W yui, what percentage of your Inputs was saurced
surtalaabiy?
Yes. Major sasoclites of the company, who ame engaged in
wippiying of raw matedals for thos manutaciuring procesL,
are located nearby to the respective manufatturing units.
Relaxs sleo has its own warshouses located in the vicknity of
the manutacturing wnits, which not only enables to optimire
the production-rélated costs but also significantly rduces
the srvironmental impact of the transportation of matevial
and components,

Has ths company taken any riaps to procure goods and services

from local & small preducers, Including communities

surrouniding thalr placs of work?

{a) 1 yes, what staps have bean taken to Improve thalr capacity
ard capabliity of lecsl and small vendors?
i3, Aelann outsources and gets job-work done from rearby
hocad and small venders. Sandioes lioe hospitality, setutity, and
ranteen faciities have aiso besn outscurced 1o local and
small vendor. Your Company cominuously sudits thess
supplien for guality systerns and manufacturing capabliities
and also has a code of conduct For such business partmers with
wham agreement for supplies is undertaken.

Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and
waste? If you what |5 the percantage of recycling of products and
woste (separstely as <5%, 510%, >10%). Also, provide detalls
tharsaf, In sbout 50 words orso
Yes, your Company constantly endeavor to minimize waste
reduction at the source and ensurne responsible wasts
disposal. Dur sites are committed to Zero Waste to Landfill’
Relaxy has In-house facility to mecycle by-product generated
during the process. Waste generated after sheet cutting is sent to
special moycling equipment like crackers & refiners 1o malke it
agrmenable for mixing along-with wirgin materials. Waile
generated as runners & C quality production i grounded and
mixed with the virgin compound. Non-hazardous waste fuch &5
packaging materal and scrap are recyched and rewsed,

Principle 3

Plaase Indicate the Total number of smployess.
Mumber of Permanent employees ason 31.03.20181s 5738,

Pleasa Indicats tha Total number of smployess hirsd on
tempaorary/contractual feasual basis.

Number of Temporary [ Contractual J Casual employees a8 on
FL.03. 2008 bs BT1E.

Pligis Indicats tha Number of parmanent woman smployees.
Hursiter of Permanent women employees a5 on 11.03.2008 5170,
Pleais indicats the Humber of permaner employess with
divabiliies

KNumber ol Permanen! employees with disabilities as on
NOoIIMERS,

Do you have an employes assaciation that is recognized by
RSPt

o, your Company does not have any employee assoclation that is
recognized by mansgement.

What percantage of your permanent employess i members of
this recognised smployes sssocistion?

Mot Applicable

Please indicats the Mumber of complaints relating to child

labaur, feroed labour, involuntary laboyr, el hareiimant in
the |25t fimancial year and pending. 25 on the end of the financial
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Mo, of complaiet:  Ne. of complalnts
Pladd during the  pending & on end of

Firancial vear thes Flnancial Yaar
Child labour/forred
latsaiur | rvendistary Wil NA
laboar
Sexual harassment | 1"
[Mecriminatory
i Hil A,

* Ag on date the Complaint has been duly resohind.
B, What parcentage of your under mantionsd amploysss wers

ghvan safety B skill up-gradation tralning In the Last yaar?

{a} Permanent Employees - 00
(b} Permanent Womaen Empioyees - 0%
fe} Cosual/Temporary/Contractual Employess - 100%
{d) Emphovees with Dissbiiities W%

Frincipie &

1 Has iths company mapped Its Internal and external
stakeholders?

¥os. your Company defines stakehalders ‘as persons or groups wha
are dlrectly or Indirectly affected by the business, as well as those
who may have interest in the business andjor the ability to
Influence |t outcome, elther positively or negathvely’, Taking this
definttlon, your Company has mapped both Intermal and extemnal
stakeholders and Is committed towards understanding &
addressing thelr concems strategically.

Dut of th abowve, has the company ldentiflad the disadvantaged,
vulnerabie & marginallred stakeholder.

Y4, your Company has identified underserved communitied in the
wiciniiy of the Plant locations a3 mest vulnerable extemal
stakehpiders. However, the women and children were ghven mone
preference in all decision making.

Arw thers any special initiatives taken by L company 1o sngage
with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
staksholders. if 3o, provide details thereod, in about 50 words or
(T8

Relaxo C5A Is working with the marginalized nelghboring
eommunities through prajects under Education and Health. For
sducation, Relaxo is working on the model of “school-led-
individual- & community development’ and under health, the
focus Is on Improving the accessibliity, availability and
afMardabelity af primary health care facilities.

Apart from [SR, your Company has initiated Workesr Education
Program’ far workers with the obiective to help them to excel in fife
and cared Dramugh porsubng their education furthir Uhitugh MIDS
(National institute of Dpen Schooling).

Principle §
1 Does the policy of the company on human rights cover anly the

campany or axtend to the Group/fjolat Vestures/Sepplisrs
JContractors /WC0s/Others?

AL Alalaxe, matiers rmelated (o human rights o coveeed under the
Code of Conduct Policy, the Vigll Mechanism Polley, Sexual
Harsssment Policy and Grievance Handling Policy. Most of these
Policies are applicable mot ondy to employess of the Company but
to contract labour, business asscciates (suppliens., vendors and
duwalers) a5 wall. Your Company does not employ amj parson below
the age of esgivteen as per our recrultmant policy. Aeldeo prohibits
the use of fored labowr 2t all pur plants and dapinit the seme with
our buninas ssscociates. The Code of Conduct Policy and the Wigil
blgchanism Policy discourages wolstion of human rghts and
provide a fair and a transpanent mechanism for reparting amy such
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winlztion

How mamy ylakehoider complalings have besn recebved In the
past financlal yeas and what percent was satirfactardly rasolved
by the managemant?

Mo complaint wad redehved pertaining to human dghts violation
during FYIR

Principle s

Doss the policy related to Principle & cover oaly ths company or
extends 1o the GroupSjoint Venturss/Suppllers/Contracterns
/MG0s others.

Quality, Environment & Safety Palicy pertalng to Principle 6 sxtend
anly to the Company but does not coversupgliers and contractors.
Doss the company hawe strategies/ (nftiatives to address global
amviranmantal linues such as dimate changs, ghobal warming,
ot T YN I yea, plaase ghve lryperiink for webpage stc.

Your Cormpamy a3 Quality Envirsnment B Safety Policy which 5
communicatesd to all employess. The Policy i+ svailable ot all the
plamts.

Dows tha company ldentity snd asiedd potentisl snvirernmental
Hsks?Y/M

¥es. Relaxo's manufacturing facilities have been certified for 150
140072015 wihlch ks called Emdronmental Management System by
British Standards Institute, a globally recognized certification
body. The significant environmental aspects assoclated with all
activities and thelr related actual or potential environmental
impacts are identifled, rated, prioritized and actions to reduce
thair impact ane docurmented. This exercise |s being dane for all
activities @t @ department level In all plants and Is reviewed
annually for amy changes, whatsoever.

Dows the company have any project related to Clean
Dwvelopmant Machanbim? H sa, provide detalls thared, In abaut
50 werds ot 5o, Alse, i Ves, whether amy snvirenmantal
enmpllancs repert b fled?

Wous Comparsy has wind power project of GRMW (4 WTE = 1.5MW] in
Jodhpur district of Rajasthan state which resulted in reductions of
greenhowse gas emissions that ghve long-term benefits to the
mitigation of climate change. Relaxo has got the project
registened with UNFCEE for CER credits.

Has the company undertaken any other initistives on - dean
tachnology, anargy efficlency, mnewable anergy, stc. Y/N. i yes,
pluase give hyperink for web page stc.

Your Company I committed to pramote & sustalnable
ervimnment and drive progress through better engineened and
energy efficient processes. Our forus on the ecosystem and
ervironrmantsl conlnalion ane ingrained in Lhe way we conduct
ot busbress.

Are the Emissbons/Wiarts generated by the company within the
permissible fimits given by CPCESSPCE for the financial year
being reporied?

We ensure that the emissions and waste generated by us &1 our
various locations are well below the limits prescribed by CPCE and
SPCB,

Humber of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCBfSPCE
which ars panding (1.e. not resalved to setisfaction) as on and of
Financlal Yaor,

We have not recelved any show cause notlce from elthes CPCE or
SPCBIn FYiA.

Principle 7
1. s your company & member of amy trade snd chamber o

ansocistien? W Yes, Mame only those mapor oses thet youe
buseress deals mith:

1. O Confederwtion of ndian indwestry)



7. PHDChamber of Commerce

3 CiFi [Confederation of Indisn Footwear induitries)
4 CFLA [Council for Footwear Leather and Actessories)
5. SATRA (international)

E. Al g Rubber Association

4

advancement or Improvement of public goodT Yes/No; i yes
specify the broad areas (drop boxi Governance and
Adminigtration, Economic Reforms, Inclushve Oevelopmant
Paolicias, Ensrgy securlty, Wates, Food Security, Sustalnable
flustnaid Principlas, Cthers)

Wa actively participate In these forums on bdues and policy
matters that Impact the interest of our stakeholders, We preferto
b part of the broader palicy development process and do mot
practice lobbrying on any specific issue.

Principie 8

Your Company believes in the inclusive growth and equitable

development of all the stakeholdens and is committed to transkating

words into action. The Relom's business belief in providing a quality
product at an affordable price is itsedf based on the values of inclusion.

Before. mandatory TSR, the promotors of the AFL wene involved in

varous philanthroplc activities such as (a) Financlal support to needy

patients, (b) running of skill development center and (c) support to
small grass-root level NGOs, through twa registered Socleties funded
by promatens for thewelfare of down-trodden peogle,

Hewwver, through CSR, your Company work strategicadly with the

people at the bottom of the pyramid through Impactful and

sustainable projects under two thematic areas, “Education & Skill

Development’ and "Health & Hyghene'. Programs under Education are

focused towards empowering the children to be confributing &

productive individuals whereas the Health initiathees are to provide
curative, prevenlive and promotive healthcare 1o the retourte-
deprived communities.

1 Dess the company have spacified pragrammes/
imitiatives /projects in purtuit of the palicy related to Principle 87
¥Your Company has CSR Policy in place to ensure the Inclusive
growh and equitable development of downtrodden people living
In the surounding areas to the business |ocation, Relaxo
Foundatian vision statement reflects the business commitmaent
towards the sustained develapment of most deprived
communities.

2. Ars the programmes/projects underiaken through in-howss
tuamfomn foundation/external NGO /government
sttty i/ Sy Sthies srpanizrtion T
Your Company has constituted Relaxo Foundation (Special
Purpose Vehicle), a Soclety registersd under Societies
Aegistration Act 1860 to implement C5A activities Relaxo
Foundation identifies thi thrust arsa. conceptualize b design the
project, and post-implernentation do the closs monitoring of the
project as well. However, the on-ground implemeniation ls carried
out by the credible NCO partners. These NGO partners get
identifed through a rigorous process of due diligence. Few of the
NGO partners ane -

*  Nawvjyotl India Foundation for Remadlal Education program

*  Plan Intemational (india Chagter) for Modal Schoal project -
Education program

+ D Sheoff's Charity Eye Hespital for project Nayan'- (project
o preveniable blindness)

* Smile Foundation for project Smile on Wheel -
»  MAVarslalnhmi Foundation for Customer Servics Assoclate
- (votational trainkng course]

1 Haveyou done amy [mpact assessment of your initiathe ?

All pur [SA projects are designed profescionally with clearky
defined project goal, objecthves. activities, expected outtome. and
Indicators to measure the success. Furthermore, the bassling and
gnd line assessment forms an ntegral part of all our C5R profects.
Agalngt these Indicators, the regular monitoring Is being done by
the Relaxo Foundation. However, we consider Independent
Impact assessment as equally cruclal and Irtend to have an
indepandent assessment at the end of the projects. Presently.
most of our prajects are In the implementation phase, so we have
undertaken 3 mid-term assessment to ensure whether the project
I rrvenvimag i the gt direction or ot and I requined, the mig- term
courte carrection is belng done.

4. What |5 your company’s direct contribution to community

development projects- Amount In INR and the detalls of the
profects underiaken,
During the year, your Company has contributed T 2.78 Crores B0 115
Iimiplementation agency |.&. Retuts Foundation, Whereas Relan
Foundathon has incurmed amount of ¥ 1.70 Crores on different CSR
projects. The detalls of the projects are mentionad in the
Annexurs E

5. Have you taken steps to snsurs that this communlity

developmant Inltlative Is successfully adopted by the
community?
Your Company considers community as the mest Impartant
stakeholder for C5A projects and ensures thelr acthe Invobement
at all the stages right from need assessment to Impact
assevsment. For uitainabiiny of the profect, ey stalerhaldent are
identified and capacitated during the proect duration to Lake
ownership of the project Liter For instance. in our school-based
intervention along with teachers, we are engaging and
ermipwering School Mansgemen! Committes b parent growups.

Principle 8

1, What percantags of customer complaints/consumer cases ane
pending ason the end of financial year.
Milconsumer complalnts sre pending as on 31.03.2018

1. Dowes the company display preduct infermation on the product
label, over and above what is mandated as per local lew?
¥ua/No/MA. /Aemarks [additional infermation)
Your company displays all information as mandated by the
statutory egulations to ensure full compliance with relevant Lims.

A s thers sy cass Mied by any staloeholder againit the company
regarding unfair trade practices, (respensible sdvertising
wnd for amti-competithee thee last Five years and
pending a1 on end of financial year f se, provide details thersof,
im abowt S0 words or 0.

Mo case has been filed by any stakeholder against the Company
regarding unfal trade practices, irresponsibie advertising and/or
antl-cormpatitive behaviar during last five years,

4. Did your company carry out any comsumer survey/ consumer
sat|sfaction tranda?
At the new product development division, the company regulardy
eonducts marketl saniing and monitors svoling consumar needs
to develog relevant products. Relaxo also seeks corurmer and
trade feedbac k before and after launch of its products.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the 1IN0 AS Financial Statemests

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of
mwwrﬂ-mmmmm
Sheet as at 11° March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including
Dther Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statermaent and the
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year then ended, and a surnmary
of ulgnificant accounting policles and other mxplanatory Informatian,

Management s Responsibility for the Ind A5 Financlal Statements

The Compary's Board of Directors Is responsible for the mstters stated in
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act ") with respect to the
preparstion of thess ind AS financlal statements that gh & trus end falr
view of the state of affsis (financial position), prafit (Financial
perfoimance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and
changes in squity of the Company in accondance with the accounting
principhes generally accepted in Endia. inchuding the Indian Accounting
Standards (nd AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act This
responsibility atvo includes maintenance of adequate accounting reconds
in accordance with the provisians of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and cther
Iregulnrities; selection and appfication of appropriate accounting
palicies; making judgments and estimates that ane reasonable and
prudent; and design, implemaentation and malmtensnce of adeguate
intemal financlal controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the sccurady snd completeness of the scrounting records, melevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financiel vtatements that
ghve & true and falr view and are free from mstedsl misstatement,
whather dus to lreud of eror.

Ausditory’ Hesporsibility

Dur responaibility ks to express an opinlon on these ind AS financial
statemants based on owr aadit. 'We have tpken Into account the
provisions of the Act, the acrounting and suditing standards and
matters, which are required to be included In the audit mport under the
provislons of the Act and the Rules made thereundes,

We conductad our st ol the ind A5 finsnclal statements In acordance
with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143010) of the
Art. Those Standands regquire that we comply with ethical requirements
and jplan and parform the sudit to obtain masonable assurance about
whether the ind AS finandal statements are free from matesial
RESTAtETT.

An dudit involves performing procaceres 10 oblan sudit svidence about
the amaunts and the disclosures In the ind AS Mnancial staiements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, Including the
assassrmint of the rsks of material misstatemant of the Ind AS Ninancial
statements, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those dsk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financlal control relevant to
the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that ghe a
trug and fair view In order to design audit procedures thal are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit alse includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policles used and the reasonablenets
of the aicaunting estimates made by the Company's Directons, as well as
wvaiualing the cvedall prewentation of the nd AS flnen il statenents.
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We believe that the sudit evidence we have obtained s sufficlent
and appropiats to provide a basls for our acdit opinion on the ind A5
financial statemants,

Opinian

In our opinlon and to tha best of our information and according 1o the
explanations ghven to us, the aforesaid Ind AS finandlal statements glhve
the Information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and faie view in conformity with the aceounting principles generally
aczepted in indla incheding the ind AS, of the state of affairs (Minancial
position) of the Company as at 37" March, 28 and its profit (financial
performance including cther comprehensive income), its cash Nows and
the changes in eguity for the year ended on that date.

Dtheer Matters

The comparetive Ind AS financiai statements of the Company for
financial year anded on 37° March, 2007 included in these ind AS financlal
statements have been audited by predecessor auditors whose meport for
the year ended on 31" March, 2017 dated 127 May, 2017 expressed an
unmpdified opindon on those financlal statemants.

Dur opinlon on the Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Reguirements below is not madified In respect of
these matiers.

Report on Dther Legal srd Regu latory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies [Auditor's Report) Order, 2006 (“the
Orer™) fisued by the Central Covemnment of india s e of
saction 143 (1) of the Act, we give in the Annexurne ‘A 8 statement
on thie matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

Z. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that :
(3} We have sought and obtained all the information and

explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and bulief
warn necessary for the purpose of our audiz,

{b} In our opinkon. proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it eppesrs from our
examination of thote books,

fc) The Balance Shest, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cath
Fiow Statement and Staterment of Changes in Equity dealt with
kv this Report a0 in agreement with the books of acoount.

{d) In purapinion, the sforesaid ind AS finandlal statements comply
with the Indlan Accownting Standards prescribed under section
134 of the Act.

{e) On the basis of written representations recelved from tha
directons as on 31" March, 2018 and taken on recoed by the Board
of Dirertore, none of the directars Is disgualified as an 11° Manch,
2ME frarm being appolnted 2 & dimctor in terrms of section 164
(2) of the Act.

i} With respect ta the adeguacy of the lnternal fasncisl rortrols
over finantial mporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such rontmis, refer to our separnts report in
Annexure W




(gl  With respect to the other matters to be inchuded in the Auditor's
Report in sccordance with Ruke T of the Companiis (At and
Auditers) Rules, 20, in owr opinion and to the best of our
information and acronding te the sxplanations ghen tous:

Il The Cormnparry has disciosed the impact of pending litigations on
its financlal pasition in its ind AS financial statements - Refer
MNate 37 to the Ind AS financial statements;

l.  The Company did not have any long term contracts including ary
derfvative contracts for which there were any materal
foreseeablo kdses;

Il Thete has been no delay In transferring amounts, required to
be transferred, to the Investor Education and Pratection Fund

by the Company.

For B B Mabsswarl & Co LLD

Chartersd Arroantants

Finm's Regivtration Mo, DOMOISN/NSDOD0LD

Sudhir Maheshwarl

Place: Delhl Partner
Date: Tith May, 2078 Mambership No,DB1O7S

Annexure'A' to the

Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatony requinements ™ of our report of even date)

1 Inrespectofits fxed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars Including quantitative detalls and sHuatlon of
fixed assets.

(b) According to the Infarmation and explanations ghen to us,
fheed assets have been physicallyverfied by the management Ina
phased periodical mannar which in our opinion Is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.
o material dischepancies wene noticed on suchverification,

() Based upon the audit procedure performed and according to the
records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable
progeries ane heid in the name of the Companny

3} inrespect of s irventories:

(@) The management has physically verified the Imventores, In our
opinion, the frequency of verification s reasonable,

(k) The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical

stocks and the book records were not matedal and such
discrepancies hive been propery dealt with in the books of
ACCownls.

) According to the Information and explanations given 1o us, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured o
companies, firmd, Limited Liability Partnerships or othes parties
covvened in the reghvter maintained under section 185 of the At

4] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
ghven 10 us, the (ompany has not gramted any inans or provided any
PuanniEes oF WBCUAtY 1o the parties cover undes section 185 of the
Act. In respact of imvestments made by the Campany, the provisions
of section 186 of the Act have been cormplied with.

5) Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year
In tesms of the proviskons of section 73 to 76 of the Act or any other
relevant provislons of the Compankas Act, 2073 and the rules made
tharmunder,

E} In our opinion and according to the knformaticn and explanations
given to us., the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by
the Central Governmient under section 148{1) of the Companies Aot
201 for the business activities camied out by the Company. Thus
mepoiting unded clauis 3] of the omder is nol applicable 1o ihe
Compary

7} (a) Acxording to the information and explanations ghven to us, the
Company has generally been regular in depesiting with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
Including Provident Fund, Employess' State Insurance, |ncome
Tax, Salws Taw, value Added Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty,
Exclse Duty, Coss & other material statutory duss
applicable to It

According to the Information and explanations given to us, no
untisputed amounts payabie In respect of the sforssaid dus
were outstanding as at 31° March, 2018 for a periad of marm than
sl manths from the dete they become payable.

(b} According to the infarmation and sxpianations ghven to us, the
foliowing disputed statutory dues aggregating to F 176 Cromes,
that hive not been deposited on acrount of matters pending
before sppropriate suthorities, s 55 under. -
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[ ¥ In Crones)

Ham= of the Statute

Haryana General Sales Purchasna Tax

Tax Act, 1973

Delhi Valve Added Tax Imput Tax

Act, 2005

Maharashirs Value Warlue Added

Added Tax Act, 2002 Tax

Karmatakz Value Added ‘Walue Added

Tax Act, 2003 Tax

income Tax Act, 1961 Incorme Tax(*)
TOS

{*} The above demands are on account of Bividend Distribution Tax [DOT)
credit not ghven by Income Tax Department while issuing intimations
under section 14301} of the Income Tax &ct, 1961, Company has disputed
the same demands as Company has already deposlted the OO0T on time
and has also submitted the proof for payment of same to Income Tax
Oepartment for deleting the said dernmands.

8

g)

10}

12)

)

Based on the information and explanations given to us, we are
of the opinlon that the Company has not defaulted In
repayment of loans and bomowings to banks. The Company did
pot have any outstanding loans and borrowings from
govermnment and dabentune holders durng the yaar,

The company has not ralsed any money by way of Initlal public

offer, further public offer (Including debt instruments) during
tha year. In ouropinion, the term lsans have been applied lor the
purposs farwhich thaywens obtained,

In our oplnion and according to the Information and
explanations given to us, no fraud on ar by the Company by its
officars or employaes has been noticed or reported during the
YEar,

In our opénlon, the managedal remuneration has been pald oo
prowvlded in accordance with the requisite spprovals mandated
by th provisions of section 197 resd with Schedule V to the Act.,

In owr opinion, the Company Is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore,
the provisions of clause 3{xl} of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

In our apinian, all trafsactions with the melsted partses am 0
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act whene
applicable and the detzils have been disclosed In tha Ind AS
Financied Staterments, as required by the applicable |ndian
accounting standards,

ANNUAL REPQRT A017-18

Perlod to which the Forum where disputs
amount relates iz pending
0.0 J0m-o2 Jt. Commilssioner
015 2002-03 jt. Commissioner
0.03 2005-06 Appellate Tribunal,
0.2 2314 Dalhi
0. 23 Dy, Commissioner of
Giakes Tax,
0.08 202413 1o
0.m 2014-15 Jt. Commissianer-
Commencial Taxes,
Bangalon,
2.0 Assessment Years 2013-14, Assessing Officer
20516 and 20617
0.04 2008-09 to 2011-12, Commissioner (4),
201314 to 2015-36, ITAT, Assessing Dificar
207-18 and 201819
17
) The company has not made any preferential aflotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year, therefore reporting under clause
3[xhv) of the Drder ane not applicable.
15 According to the information and explanations given to us and
on an overall examination of the financlal statements of the
Coempany, we report that the Cormpany has nat entend inta any
non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with
hirm; therefore reporting under clause 3] of the Drder are not
applicabde.
1B} In our, pinion, the Company it not mequined to be megistered
undersection 45-14 of the Resane Bank of India Act, 1934,
For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Flrm's Registration Mo, D0V035N /N 5S00050
Sudhlr Mzhashwarl
Place: Dalhi Partrer
Date: Tth May, 28 Membership Mo 081075



Annexure'B’' to
the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred 10 in Paragraph 27) under the heading " Repor on other egal
and reguiatory regquirements” of our report of even date)

Report on the Intsrnal Financial Controts under clawse (1) of sub section 3
of section 41 of the Companies Act, 2073 (“thes Act™)

W have audited the intemal financial contrals over financial reporting of
Ralaxo Footwesrs Limited ("the Company™) as of 31° March, 2008 In
conjunction with our sudit of the Ind AS financlal statements of the
Company for theyearended on that dats,

Manayemant s Respansibility for imternal Financial Contrals

Tha Compamy's management b5 responsible for sstablishing and
maintaining intemal financial controis based on the intermad control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company conskdering the
saantisl components of intemal coriral stated in the Cuidence Note on
Bodit of internal Financis Controbs Owver Finantial Reporting issaed by the
institute of Chartered Armountants of india. These responsibiities ncliede
the deslgn. implementation and maintenance of adequate (mtesmal
finmncial controls thet were operating effectively for smauring the ordery
and efficlent conduct of fs business, including adherence to company's
palicies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and @irors, the sccurecy and compbeteness of the sccounting
reconds, and the timely preparation of reliable financlal Information, as
mequlred under the Companies Act, 3013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is ™ express an opinion on the Company's intemai
financial controls ower financial reporting based on our sudit We
tonducted our sudit in accondance with the Guldancs Nots on Audit of
Intemal Fimancial Controts Dver Financial Reporting (the “Tuidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, Fssued by ICA! and deemed to be prescribed
ursler gection WIN0) of the Companies Art, 7073, to the etent applicabls
to an sudit of internal financlal controls, both applicables to sn sl of
Internad Financis Controls and, both issusd by the netftute of Chartered
Accountants of india, Those Standands and the Culdance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
albitaln masonable assurance about whether adequate Intemal financial
eantrals over financlal reporting was established and makntalned and if
suchcontrols operated effectively in all matedal respacts.

Dur audit Involves parforming procedurss to ohisln sudit evidence abaut
the sdeguacy of the Intemal financial condrols system over financial
reparting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of intemal finandai
controls ovei financial reporting induded cbtaining an undérianding of
intminal Financial (ontnds over financisl reparting. svesting the rigk that 3
migterial sakneis exists, and Desting and Fvaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of imremal comtrol based on the assessed riskc. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. Including the
assessment of the risks of matedal misstatement of the financlal
statemants, whether dus to fraud or eror

We belleve that the sudit evidence we have obtalned s sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
Int=rnal financlal cortrols systerm over financlal reparting.

Mganing of Intarnal Finandal Cantrols Over Financlal Reparting

A compary's intemal fingncdal cortrol over financial reporting s a process
designed 1o provide reasonabie assurance reganding the rediabilimy of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposE 7 accerdant with generally accepted sctourting principies. A
tompany's internal financial comtrol over fingntial reporing includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maimtenance of records that,

in reasonsbls detall, sccurately and fairy reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the rompamy: (2) provide masonable
assurance thal transactions are reconded s necessary Lo permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with genetally accepted
accounting principles, and that recedpts and expenditures of the company
are being made only In accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
ragarding preventian or timely detection of unautharized acquisition, use,
ordisposition of the company's assets that could have a materlal effect on
thefinanclal statements.

inhesent Limistlors of intermal Finandal Comtrols Owver Finencsl
Reparting

Becauss of the inhernt limitetion of istemnal financial controls ower
finarcial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or Improper
management overide of cortrols, material misstatements due 1o e o
fraud may ocour and not be detected. Ao, projections of any svaluation of
thie Imternal finantisl contrals over financial reporting to future periods an
subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in condithons, or
that the degres of complisnce with the policies or procedures may
deteriorats.

Oginion

In our opinlan, the Campany has, In all material espacts. an adequate
internal financlal controls sysiem over financial mporting and such
imternal financial controli ower finamcial reporting wem operating
eMfecthely a3 ot Tiat March, 7018 based on the intemal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considening the
essential components of inemal contrel stated in the Guidance Note on
st of bntermal Financls! Contrals Dver Finantal Reporting insued by the
irstituts of Chartersd Actountants of india.

For B A Maheswarl & Co LLP
Charlened Atcauntants
Firm's Reglstration No. 009035N /NS00050

Suthlr Maheshwarl
Place: Dethi Partner
Date Trth May, 2078 Membership No 08075
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BALANCE SHEET As AT 31st MARCH, 2018 { ¥ In Crores)

As at Asat Asat

Particuiars WoteMo. o ictMarch, 28 | Tist March, 207 15t April, 206
ASSETS
Non-Cument Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 1 A55.E1 479,80 452,30
Capétal Work-in-Progress 1 13644 B1.91 A
Intangible Assats 2 55.05 B1.22 B7.52
Intangible Assets under Development i 114 0.51 024
Financial Assets
Imvestments 3 0.20 0.0 0.50
Loans 4 16,20 .56 gl
Other Financial Assets 5 0,e 0.90 573
Othar Non-Current Assets B BG4 4,0 0.59
E88.09 623.61 £83.598
Current Assats
Inventores 7 3.3 290,21 785,84
Fimancial Assets
Imvestments B 0,50 - -
Trade Recelvables 9 192.35 12318 108,69
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 iR 3.51 i34
Other Bank Balances T 0.88 04 s
Loans 2 0.39 028 029
Other Financial Assets 1 135 343 B.19
Other Cument Assots 14 &8 593 .32
E80.64 448,73 A24.70
Total Assets 126873 107034 pli it H
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capltal B 12.03 12.m 1200
Cither Eguity 16 74918 o435 ATTGS
Total Equity TELH BOE.3T A0 64
Liabilities
Mon-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Bomowings 17 39.26 70.94 149.86
Qther Financlal Liabdlitles 14 on 040 058
Provisions | 776 Ti6 528
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 26,1 25,50 23.26
.04 10490 148.99
Current Liabilitias
Financlal Liabllitles
Borrowings il BE.09 B0.&8% BY.51
Trade Payables 22 174,30 2570 18237
Other Financial Liabdlities 3 9163 99.41 90.36
QOther Current Liabiities 24 048 na B0.21
Provisions 25 B.75 238 4.72
Current Tax Lisbilities (Met) 26 1K 198 2.m
43348 358,87 3T0.05
Tital Llabiiltles S0T52 453,97 518.04
Total Equtty and Liabliities 126873 1070.34 100868
The accarmpanying notes are an Integral part of Financlal Staterments
A% per our report of even date Far and on belall of the Baard af Directars
For B B Maheswarl & Co LLP Ramash Kumar Dua Mukcand Lal Dus
Chartered Accountants Managlng Direcior Whaola Time Director
Firm's Registration No. DMD3ASN/NS00050 0PN ;D057ET2 DM :DO157ES8
Sudhir Makeshvward
Partner
Membership Mo. 081075 Sushll Batre Wikns Humar Tak
Chief Finarniclal Offlcer Company Secmetary

Diabhd, 1ith May, 2018
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

Parthculars

INCOME

Revenue from Operations
Orther Incame

Tatal Income

EXPENSES

Cost of Materals Consumed
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Chamges in Inventories of Findshed Goods, Stock-in-Trade
and Work-In-Progress

Excise Duty on Sale of Goods
Employes Baneflts Expense
Finante Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expensa
Dthar Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit Bafore Tax

Tax Expense

Currant Tax

Deferred Tax

Tax for Earlier years (Met)

Profit for the Year

Dther Comprahensive Income
Hams that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement Galns / (Losses) on Defined Bepefit Plan

Income Tax effect

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
{Comprising Profit and Other Comprehenshe Income for the yesr)
Earnings Par Equity Share of € 1/- esch [In ¥)

Basic

Difuted

The accompanying notes ame an Integral part of Financlal Statements
A5 par our report of even date

For B R Mahaswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Flrm's Reglstration No. 00M035N /NS00050

Sudhir Maheshwar|
Partner
Membarship Mo, DEIOTS

Dedhl, 11th May, 2018
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Note He

]

39(b)

41

[T In Crones)
Yaar ended Year anded

' Fist March, 2018 | st March, 2017

Far and on behalf of tha Board of Directors

Ramesh Kumar Dua
Managing Director
OIN :DNS7EF2

Sushil Batra
Chief Financial Officer

1964 44 V651,97
A 4B .81
1968.90 1BES.58
T05.69 58033
190.94 140054
13.62) 516
152 20,82
Z14.08 17704
B.59 15.03
54,34 146
S5 49737
1725.28 ATE5
143,62 178.03
8153 LT L
1.02 1.02
0,00 {037
BL.5E SH.0R
1607 119,55
(0.61) 5
o.n )
{oaa) 239
18057 1224
13.40 599
13.38 9.98
Mukand Lal Dua
Whale Time Director
OIN :DMSTESE
Wikas Kumar Tak
Compamy Secretary

RELAXO FOOTWEARS LIMITED




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 {¥ in Crores)

Year ended Yeur ended

Particulars Note No. | 395t March, 2018 315t March, 2077
Cash flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 24362 178.03
Adjustments

Depredation and Amortisation Expense 32 5434 545
Finance Costs Ej 859 15.03
Interest Income 28 {058} {0.74}
Met Galn on Sale of Curent Imnvestments camried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss [FPyTPL) 28 (o500} (o.oT)
Met Unmealised Forelgn Exchange Gain (3.85) (5.52)
Share Based Paymants 30 4.07 132
Fair Valuation lass on Dervatives 33 0.z7 B.51
Ead debts Written off 33 0.30 0.3
Allpwances for Dowbtful Trade Recehables 33 0.73 0.74
Mat loss on Disposal [/ Write off of Property, Plant &k Equipment and Intangible Assets 33 .55 0.44
Operating Profit Before Working Capltal Changes #0754 144,99
Changes In Worklng Capltal

Loans to Employees 412 i0.07) {0.04)
Security Deposits 4 {1.68) {o.e0)
Othar Non-Curment Assets (0.02) {0.03}
Trade Aecsivables {E9.80) {1545}
Other Financled Assets O0.24 {03}
Othar Current Assats 4 (43.24) 4,66}
Inventories 7 (23.73) (4.37)
Tratle Payables £8.30 4322
Othar Financlad Lizbllitles 1035 1.88
Provisions 438 315
Othar Curmant Liabifties i4 oaF 10070
Cash Ganarated from Operations 134.33 138,86
Tax Paid {BO.08) (58,56}
Mot Cash Flow from Dperating Activities 154,25 180.20
Cash Flow frem Imvesting Acthitles

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment including Capital Work-in-Progress (DE.98) {90.33)
and Intanglhle Assets

Proceeds fram Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intanglble Assets 028 0.29
Met Proceeds from Sale / Purchase of Cument Investments 8 0,50 0.m
Interest Income Received 053 0.72
Iinvestment in Bank Deposits held as Margin Money L i o) (0.13)
Net Cash Flow (Used in] investing Activities (woa.37) (83.44)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2018 (Contd.) (¥ In Crores)

Particulars

Cash Flow from Financing Acthvities

Proceeds from lssuance of Equity Shares under "RFL Employee Stock Option

Plan 2n4®

Securlties Premium received on exercise of Equity Shanes issued under
“RFL Empioyee Stock Option Plan 204"

Repayment of Bormowings
Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax Paid
Finance Costs Paid

Met Cash Flow (Used in) Financing Activities

Mat increass / (Decranss) In Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Exchange Fluctuation on Forelgn Currency Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents (At end of the year)

Balances with Banks on Current Accownts
Cash on Hand

The accompamying notes are an Integral part of Financial Statements.

Nota Mo

15

16

16

Wanr ended Year ended

‘| Tist March, 2018 | Tist March, 2077

0.02 0.0
4.54 183
(n.73) {62.50)
(14.46) (8.57)
[14.564) (2098}
{ag.27) (83.43)
{o.29) 17
5 224
0.00 >
112 151
243 288
0.69 0.63
312 .51

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “indirect Method® as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows,

s per our report of even date

For B R Mahaswar| & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Flerm's Regletration Ne. 001035N (NSOOO50

Sudhir Maheshwarl
Partnar
Mambership No. DE107S

Defhl, Tith May, 2018

Sashll Batra
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ramash Kumar Dua
Managing Dlrector
DM DM57ETZ

Mukznd Lal Dua
‘Whale Time Director
DN (N57E98

Wikas Kumar Tak
Company Secretary

RELAXO FOOTWEARS LIMITED




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ror THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

Equity Share Capital {Refer Nots 15} { ¥ in Crores)
Number

Particulars of Ghares Amount
As at 1st April, 2016 120039700 12.00
Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 1/- each issued undear "BFL Employes Stock Option Plan 204" 50550 0.m
As at st March, 20177 12030250 1M
Equity Shares of fate value of T 1/- each issurd under "RFL Emiployes Stock Dption Plan 2004° #3370 0.02
As ot 315t March, 2M8 1203IEIE20 12,03

Other Equlity (Refer Note 18) { ¥ in Crores)

As at 15t April, 2016 .84 2,80 #54.78 514 4TLEA
Profit for the Year - - - 115,55 TEs
Other Comprehensive intome - Remeasurement Gains [ (Losses) . - . .4 159
on Defined Benefit Plan [Met of Tax)

Total Comprehenshme Income for the Year - = - 12224 12224

Transfer from Retalned Eamings to General Reserve
Transactions with Owners |n their capacity as Owners
Share Ba=ed Peyments under "AFL Employee Stock Optlon Plan 2014" - 132 - - 132

Transfermed from Shamre Rased Baymeant Becans o Serdtias Premibum M8h n.ar) - -
Reserve on Issuance of 90,550 Equéty Shares of face value of T /- each
issued under "RFL Employue Stock Dption Plan 20%4°

n0.00 {no.00)

Securities Pramium received on exercise of 90,550 Equity Shars of 1E3 - . - 1:E3
face value of T 1/- gach ssued under "RFL Employes Stock Dption

Pian 204"

Dividend on Egulty Shanes . = . {720 [L20]
Dividend Distribution Tax - - - 47 1.47)
As ot Fst March, 2017 153 1.6 5TA.TR 12.81 594.36
Prafit for the Year - - - w07 W1.07
Other Comprehensive income < Remeasuremeant Gadns [ {Losses) on - = - {0.40) {4
Defined Benefit Plan (Met of Tax)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - - 1e0.67 16067
Transter from Retalned Eamings to General Reserve - 125.00 (i25.00)
Transactions with Owners in their capacity as Gwners

Share Besed Peyments under “AFL Employes Stock Option Plan 204" - 407 - - 4,07
Transferned from Shame Based Payment Reserve to Securities Pramium 237 {2.37)

Reserve on |ssuance of 2,23,370 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 1/- each

izzued under “RFL Employee Stock Dption Plan 20%4°

Securities Premium recehved on exercise of 2,23 370 Equity Shares of .54 - - - .54
facn valun of T1/- sach Issund under "RFL Employer Stock Dption

Plan 2074"
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2078 (Contd.)

Other Equity (Refer Mots 18) { ¥ in Crores)

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Share Based General
Payment Reserve
Resarvm

Transferred from Share Based Payment Reserve to General Reserve on . (0.08) .06

cancellation of Vested Options [ssued under "AFL Employee Stock

Option Plan 204"

Dividend on Equity Shares . . - a0 (o)

Dividend Distribution Tax = = - (245)  (245)

As at Fist March, 2018 10.54 4.80 633.82 3402 M8
The sccompanying notes are an integral part of Financlal Statements
As par our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Oirectors
For B R Maheswarl & Co LLP Ramesh Humar Dua Mukand Lal Dua
Chartered Accountamts Managing Olrector Whole Time Director
Firm's Registration No. DNO35K/N500050 DIN :D05TET2 OiN :DTE7E98
Sudhir Muheshwarl
Partner
Membership Mo, 081075 Sushll Baira Vikas Kumar Tak

Chief Financlal Officer Company Sacretary

Delhi, T1th May, 2018
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NOTES FORMINCG PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mate 1 Property, Plant and Equipment & Capital Work-In-Progress

Grmss Carrylng Amount Depraciation [ Amortisation
Particulars ' As af ' Additlons ' Daletions [ | As at I s at .Dlpnclaﬂnn . u.lll'ﬂl'l'll ) . As at I
16t April, 2017 Adjustments | Ist March, 2008 | st April, 2077 Adjustments | st March, 2018
Proparty, Plant and Equlpmant
Land
Freehald 3361 - - 33.51 - - § -
Leasehold 52.20 - - 52.20 0.53 053 . 106
Bulldings 161,32 .63 - 64,0 523 B3 - .44
Leasehold Improvemnents .29 ERE] n.s8 13,84 1,67 129 0as in
Plant and Machineny 1az 8.69 0.25 180.51 1572 15.81 0.05 48
Moulds 28,55 i 0.oo 38.27 B | 1038 0.o0 1939
Computers 556 171 o 5.2 1.78 158 0.o8 3.67
Motor Vehicles-Other 147 in 0aza BAS 14 133 n.o7 240
Motor Vehides-Transport 188 0.38 0.04 2L oA 0.39 0.0z o7
Fumiture and Fldtures .22 237 0.04 1245 1.56 163 ooz 36
Electrical Fittings 13657 1.05 0.m wn 276 237 0.oo 4.43
Office Equipmeants Al 1.54 0.o? 5.05 161 1.69 0.08 325
Wiooden Structume og7 063 0.05 155 040 036 o3 073
Wind Power Generation Plamt a2 - - 732 1.20 1.20 - 240
5., 36.40 1.: 557.50 42,51 4557 048 HT.E3
Capital Work-in-Progress 51,91 TE.25 172 136.44 - - - -
n;n TE.25 172 136.44 a - - -

Borrowing Costs amounting to © 5.58 Crores (Previous year ¥ 4.38 Croces) capltallsed as part of Property, Plant and Equipmant & Capital Work-In-Progress.,
For Contractual Commitmants towands Acquisition of Progarty, Plant and Equipmant & Capital Work-In-Progress (Refer Note 37).

The Company has taken Loans from Banks which carry chamge over certain Assets (Refer Note 17, Note 21 & Mote 46,

Capital Work-in-Progress includes Pre-operative Expenses [ Borowing Costs of ¥ 9.32 Crores [Previous year T 3,36 Crores)

[ ¥ in Crores)

Het Carrying
Ampount

As ot
st March, 20M8

3.5
514
15257
10.33
s
18.88
5.54
B.0%

9.9
i0.28
5.80

.52

T36.44

:



Mots 1 Property, Plant and Equipment & Capital Work-in-Progress (Contd. [¥ In Cromes)

e —
Desmed Cost as at | Additiens | Deletions / | Depreciat As al
st April, 2076* Adjustmants | F1st March, 2007 i Adjustmants | Fist March, 20077 | 31t March, 2007 | 15t April, 206

Praperty, Flant and
Equlpment
Land
Freahold 33,561 = = 3361 = - - = EER ) 3365
Leasehold SrI0 K = 52.20 7 0.53 " 0.53 51.67 5.1
Bulldings 1387 2545 - W61.32 - 5.1 . 5.23 156.09 13187
Leasehald improvermants 937 239 0.7 na2a = 1N 0.04 1E7 9,52 9.7
Plant and Machinery 165.23 B.04 oo 1w - 15.73 g.m 1572 155.45 165.23
Moulds 1448 .08 0.m 28.55 ' 5.1 g 8.1 19.34 AR
Computers 4.08 152 0.04 5.56 - 174 g.m 178 3ra 4.08
Motor Vehicles-Other 537 233 0.3 747 - 118 .04 1M 6.33 537
Muotor Vehicles-Transport 188 - 0.00 1.BE - 0.40 oo o0 148 188
Fumnlture and Fhaures 847 L 0.0z .2 - 1.56 o.no 156 BBE Bar
Electrical Fittings .36 23 0.00 13.67 ‘ 26 oo 218 i T.36
Office Equipmants 638 083 .09 718 - 154 0.03 1Bl 5.57 B34
& Wooden Structure 0.ra 0.20 o.m 0.57 = 0.40 0.00 0AD 0.57 0.78
Wind Power Ceneration a2 . " 1132 - 120 - 120 1612 a2
Plant
452.30 &0.98 o8 51241 - ALTS 0 4251 475.80 AELID
Capital 799 46.57 12.65 L3 - - - - 6191 il k]
Work-In-Prograss *
Irm 456.57 12.55 5.9 = = = - FLE 27.93

* The Company has availed Deemed Cost Exemption and used the IGAAP camying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment & Capital Work-in-Progress as Deemed Cost (Refer Mote 58),
# Capltal Wark-In-Progress Includes Goads in Transit Ml (1st April, 2016 T 0.06 Crare).

Borrowing Costs amounting T 4.38 Crores (st April, 2006 T 0.45 Crore) capitalised as part of Property, Plant and Equipment & Capital Wark-in- Prograss,

Faor Confractual Commitments towards Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment & Capital Work-In-Pragress (Refer Note 37).

The Company has taken Loans from Banks which carry charge over certain Assets [Refer Mote 17, Note 21 & Note 46},

Capltal Work-In-Progress Includes Pre-operative Expenses [ Borrowing Costs of T 3.36 Crones [ist Aprl, 2006 T 056 Crore).
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g Hote 2 intanglble Assets & Intangible Assets undar Development [ ¥ in Croms)
f:é Gross Canrying Amaumnt Amortisstion
pe)
AL Asat | Additions  Daletions Asat  Amartisation DOelstions / Asat As at
% 15t Aprl, 2017 Adjustmenits 15t April, 2017 Adjustments  3istMarch, 2018 st March, 2018
=) intangible Assets
= Computar Software and Licences 758 2.54 0.m a1 159 2.04 .00 4.03 6.08
Intellectual Property Rights 6135 oor - G143 &7l b7 - 1345 48.597
6593 25 0.0 .53 BN B.TT o.00 148 55.05
Intangibie Ascets under 0.5 064 0.06 114 . - . - 114
Developrment
s o659 0.06 14 - - - - 14

Niote 2 Intangibie Assets & Imtangibie Assets under Devalopmant (Comid.) { ¥ in Crorms)

| Gross Carrying Amouni
_—— 3 T —_—
| Dparmed Cost as at | Additions | Deletlons [ | A5 at As at | Amartisstion
| 1st April, 2015° Ad|ustments | 315t March, 2017 |1st April, 2076* | Adjustmaents | 3st March, 2017
g
Computer Software and 5.66 192 - 158 - 189 . 1.8 558 5.66
Licences
intellectual Property Bi.16 008 - bi.35 . BT . 6.72 55.63 b6
Rights
B1.A2 m - E8.93 - an - am 5122 6192
intangible Assets under 0.24 0.35 0.0a 0.5 . . . - o5 0.24
Development
24 0.a3s 008 [1AY] - - - " 0.5 0.4

* The Compary has avalled Deemed Cost Exemption and used the IGAAP carrying amount of intangible Assets & Intanglble Assets under Development as Deemed Cost (Refer Note 56),



Mote 3 Imvastments - Mon Current [ ¥ in Crones)

Ag Bt Az ok As ot
st March, 2098 | J0st March, 2077 | 1st Aprll, 2016

Investment in Unguoied Bonds carried at Amortised Cost

il {Previous Year - 500, 15t April, 2006 - 500) E% Mon-Convertible Redeemable - 0.50 .50
Taxable Bonds of face value of T 10000/- each Fully Pald up, maturing on 31st
January, 2019 of National Highways Authority of India

Investment in Unguoted Equity Instruments, carrled at Falr Value throwgh Other

Comprehensive Incame (FUTOCI)
40 (Previous Year - 40, st April, 2076 - M} Equity Shares of face value of T 50000/ 0.0 0.20 -
egch Fully Paid up of Bahadurgarh Fooberear Development Sendces Brivate Limited
Apgregate amount of Unguoted investments 0.30 0.7 .50
Mota 4 Loans - Non Currant { ¥ in Crores)
o As at As at Asm

st March, 2018 | Tist March, 2017 st April, 2018
Unsecured, Consldersd Good

Loans to Employeas 0.0z 0.06 o.m
Security Deposits 1618 14.50 1370
16.20 .56 1N
MNote S Other Finandal Assets - Mon Curment { ¥ in Crores)
Purtient As gt As wt As ot
-y Tist March, 2008 | Tist March, 2017 1st April, 2016
Measured at Amortised Cost
Unsecured, Considered Good
Share &pplication Momay . . 030
Balapces with Bank held s Margin Money ® o 013 0.00
Measured wt Fair Value threugh Profit or Loss (FUTBL)
Derivatives 048 o 5.53

0.61 0.2a 573
* Represents Margin Money against varlous Letters of Credit, Bank Guarantees and Other Commitments issued by Banks on behalf of the Company.

Hoie 6 Other Non Curment Assets [ ¥ in Crores)

Asat Az at Asat

FRERERS Fist March, 2098 | FistMarch, 2077 | st April, 200

Unsecured, Considersd Good

Capital Advances B.25 154 3,25

Advances other than Capital Advances

Propaid Expentas 187 196 18

Balances with Statutony / Covermment Authoricies .52 0.41 LK
B.64 4.m 559
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Hote 7 Invenbories { ¥ in Crores)

As mt Asat As ot
st March, 2018 Tt March, 2017 st Aprll, 2076

Valued at the lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value *

Rew Materials {Includes in trapsit ¥ 11.35 Crones , Previous year T 7.32 Crores, .93 £3.9 5547
Tst April, 2016 T 1,00 Cror)
Work-In-Progress (Includes In transit NI, Previous year Mil, Tst April, 2006 43AE 4237 35.68
¥ 0.03 Crare)
Finished Goods 135.70 12rns 134,459
Stock-in-Trade (Includes in transit ¥ 2.81 Crores , Previows year ¥ 0.40 Crare, 45,38 45 04 4ET
et April, 2016 Nif)
Stores and Spares (Includes In transit ¥ 0.05 Crore , Presvious year Nil, 1st, April 9.24 736 B.BS
2076 T 0.0B Crone)
Packing Materials [includes in transit NI, Previous year Nil, 1st &pril, 4.0 3.58 3.0
206 ¥ 0.08 Crome)

#13.53 0. 285.84

* Inventories ane hypothecated by way of first par passu charge agalnst working capital facilities. [Refer Note 1),

Mote B Investments - Current { ¥ in Crores)

Asat Az at As

SHORERS F1st March, 2098 | Tist March, 207 | st Aprll, 2076

Investment in Unguoted Bonds carried at Amortised Cost

500 (Previous Year - M, st April, 2006 - Nil) B% Non-Convertible Redeemable 0,50 -
Taxable Bonds of face value of T10000/- aach Fully Pald up, maturing on
st Jamuary, 20719 of National Highways Autharity of India

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investrments .50 - -
Mote 5 Trade Recelvables { ¥ in Crores)
As at As at As at
Particulars st March, 2018 | 315t March, 2017 | st Aprll, 2016
Secured, Conslderad Good - - 0.46
Unsacuned, Considered Gaod 19235 12318 108.23
Unsecured, Considened Doubtiul 243 1.70 0.96
154,78 1a4.88 0865
Allowances for Doubtful Trede Becebrables (Refer Note 43) 243 1.70 .96
192.35 123198 108.69
Current 182.35 12338 108.6%
Maon Current - - -
Note 10 Cash and Cash Equivalents L ¥ in Crores)
rilcul As at As at Az at
gy Fist March, 2018 | Ttt March, 2017 st April, 2016
Ealances with Banks an Current Arcaunts 243 .88 0.7
Cash on Hand 185 ] 0.63 148
i mn 124
Note T Other Bank Balances { ¥ In Crares)
Asat Asat As
R F1st March, 2098 | Tt March, 27 | 15t Aprll, 2006
Balances with Bank held as Margin Money ® 0.76 0.05 0.05
Earmarked Balances - Unpaid Dividends [Refer Mote 23) (i rl 0.09 0.08
o.es 0.4 o3

* Represents Margin Money against various Letters of Credit, Bank Guarantees and Other Commitments Issued by Banks on behalf of the Company.
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Mote 12 Loans - Curmant (¥ in Crores)

As st As st Asat
Particulars ¥ist March, 2078 | FistMarch, 2007 st Agrll, 200

Unsecurad , Consldarad Good

Loans to Employess 038 0,28 1
039 .28 0.4
Mots 13 Other Financlal Assets - Curront { ¥ in Crores)
Poticadins As at As at As ot
st March, 2078 Fist March, 2077 st April, 2076
Maasured at Amoriised Cost
Unsecured, Considered Good
Insurance Claims Recevoble omn 035 0.2
Interest accrued an Deposits and Bonds 0,07 0.03 o.m
Measured i Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FYTPRL)
Derivathms 1.0 3,05 596
115 343 Bl
Hote 14 Other Current Assuts L% in Crores)
As st As st As ut
ERER— Tist March, 2008 Tist March, 2007 | st April, 2016
Unsecured, Considered Good
Adhvances for Supply of Goods and rendering of Services B38 nn B.6B
Prepaid Expenses 515 0.6 i
Balances with Statutory / Government Authorities 19,54 L] 1
Imput Tax Balance £9.33 134 Fa )
Export Incentives Resahahle L 445 .08
Duty Credlt Scripts i L 0.24 045
B8.32 15.58 Fakr
Mote 15 Equity Share Capital {7 in Crores)
Particul As at Az at As at
i Fist March, 208 | Tist March, 2077 | 15t Agirll, 2006
Avthorised
20,00,00.000 {Prévious year - 20,00,00,000 , 1t April, 2076 - 20,00,00,000) 20.00 F0.00 20.00

Equity Shares of ¥ 1/-each

tssued, Subscribed and Fully Pald up

12,03,53 620 (Previcus year - 12,01,30,250 , Tst April, 2076 - 12,00,39,700) 12.03 1.m 12.00
Equity Shares of T 1/- each

12.03 1z.m 12.00
Reconcillation of Share Capital (Equity Shares of fece value of T 1/- ench] { ¥ In Crores)

Particulars Mumber of Shares Amount
As at st April, 206 120035700 12.00
Addition In Share Capital
issued under “AFL Employes Stock Option Plan 204" (Refer Note 40) G050 0.0
As ot at March, 2077 120130250 12.m
Addition In Share Capital
tesued under “RFL Employes Stock Option Plan 2004" (Refer Mote 40) 273370 0.0z
As at Fst March, 20018 100353620 103
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Rights, Praferances and Restrictlens attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one dlass of Eguity Shares having a face valee of ¥ 1/- each. Each holder of Equity Shares |5 entitled to aone vote per share. The
Dividend proposed by the Board of Directars is sublect to the approval of the Sharehalders In the ensuing Annual General Meeting . In the event of the
Compary belng liquidsted, since the Equity Shanes of the Company ang fully pald-up, then would be no sdditional liability on the Sharehalders of the
Company. Howeever, post settlement of the liabilities of the Company, the surplus, If any, would be distributed to the Sharehodders in proportion to the
numberof Shares held by each one of them.

Egutiy Shares esarved under Employes Stock Optlon Plan

For details of Shares reserved undes Employee Stack Option Plan (ESOP) refer Note 40,

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Liméted. The Annual Listing Fee has
been pald forthe year.

Detalls of Equity Shares hald by sach Shareholder halding more than 5% Shares

As at Tist March, 2018 As at Fist March, 2017 As at ist Aprdl, 2016
Name of Shareholder
Humber of Shares % of Holding | Number of Shars % of Holdlng | Number of Shares = % of Holding
Ramish Humar Dua 31148150 25.88% S1473150 26.20% S1473150 26.23%
Mulcand Lal Dusa SEA45T00 I1.97% 28770700 21.18% 2ETTITO0 L.30%
VL5 Semurities Limited B150000 B.77% B150000 5.TE% E1E0000 6.79%
VLS Finance Limited B2HETE 5.Z2% B2BE701 523% BOSTTE0 B.T%

Aggragate number of Equity Shares lssued as Bonus during tha parlod of five years immadlataly preceding the reporting dabs
Board of Directors in their meeting held on 3nd july 2075 allotted &,00,06,000 fully paid up Bonws Shares in the ratio of 1 [l.e.one Bonus Share
of ¥ 1/-each toevery sharehalder holding one eguity share of 2 1/-each).

Mote 16 Other Equity {7 In Crores)
As at As at Asat
Mrtiaiiny Fst March, 2018 | 31t March, 2017 st April, 2016
Resorves and Surplus
Securlties Premium Resenve 10.54 353 0.84
Shame Hased Payment Reserve 530 376 280
General Reserve B35.82 EM.78 454,76
Retained Eamings 34.02 12.81 .24
mMate 58436 47164
Reconclilation of Diher Equity [ ¥ in Crores)
Yaar gnded Year ended
FRRCER Tist March, 2008 | st March, 2017
Securitles Premium Aesarve
(pening Balance .63 0.84
Trangferred from Share Based Payment Reserve on lssuance of Equity Shanes ssved under "RFL 237 0.95
Employee Stock Option Plan 2004"
Securitles Premium recelved on exerclse of Equity Shares |ssued under "RFL Employee Stock 4.54 1.83
Dption Plan 2012
Closing Balance .54 38
Share Based Payment Resarve
Opening Balance 316 Z.B0
Sham Based Payments under "RFL Employes Stock Option Plan 2004" (Refer Note 30) 4,07 132
Transferred to Securities Premium Reserve on issuance of Equity Shares Issued under "RFL {237 i0.98)
Employes Stock Dption Plan 2004"
Transferred to General Reserve on canceflation of Vestad Options i0.06) -
Issued under "AFL Empleyes Stock Option Plan 2014"
Closing Balamce #4.80 118
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Reconcliiation of Other Equity [Conbd.) { ¥ in Crores)
Year anded Yaar anded

Particulars Bist March, 2018 | 35t March, 2077
Genaral Resanve
Dpening Balance 574,76 45476
Transferred from Retalned Earnings 125.00 110,00
Transferned fram Share Based Payment Reserve on cancellation of Vasted Options issued wunder .06 -
"RFL Employee Stock Option Pian 2074
Closing Balance 659,82 STE.TE
RAstalned Eamings
Opening Balanoe 12.8 9,24
Profit for the Year 18107 13,85
Other Comprehensive Intome - Remeasurement Galns [ (Losses) on Defined Beneflt Plan (Met of Tax) {040} 229
Dheidend on Equity Shares [ € 1.00 per share, previous year € 060 per share) {2.om) {2200
Dividand Distrbution Tax (2.45) {147}
Transferred to General Reserve {125.00) {N0.00}
Closing Balance 34,02 1.
Ta98 59436
Nature and Purposa of Reserves

Securltles Pramlum Resenm - Securities Premium Resene represents the amount recehved In excess of par valus of equity shares of the Company. The
same, interalia, may be utilized by the Company to issue fully paid-up bonus shams to s members and buying back the shares in stcordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Share Based Payment Ressrvs - The company has Stock Option Plan under which Dptions to substribe for the Company's Equity Shares have been
granted to the Permanent Employees, existing and future induding Whole-time Director [but excluding the Independent Directors and Promater
Directors) of the Company. This Reserve is used to recognise the value of Equity-sattled Share-Based payments provided to Employess, including Key
Management Personned, as part of thelr Remuneration. Refer Note 40 for further details of this plan.

General Reserve - Caneral Reseree reprasents the reserve created by apportionment of profit generated dusing the year or transfer from other resenes
eithervoluntarily or pursuant to statutory requirements. The same i5.a free reserve and available for destribution,

Retalnad Enrnlrgs - Retalned Eamings represents the undistributed profits of the Compamy:

Note 17 Barrowings - Mon Currenk { ¥ In Crores)
s at As t As at
g sy P N - FistMarch, 2098 TistMarch, 2007 | st April, 2006
Secured
Term Loars from Banks
Indian Rupee Loans 200 B.25% - 510% #0135 60.00 50.00
Fareign Currency Loans 070 3m Libors{2.30% - 3.00%) 76.02 5755 100.54
227 .55 150.54
Current Maturities of Nan Curent 28.00 46.61 40,68
Bormowings (Refer Note 23)
39.26 70.54 119.86
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Nuture of Securitles and Terms of Repayment { T In Croves)
Asat As at As at

[

Partlculars of Loans Tist March, 2018 315t March, 2017 15t Aprll, 206 ature of Securttles

Indlan Rupes Lasns

Repayable In 16 quartery installments with last 4125 60.00 50.00  Exclusive Charge on Immovable

payment due on 17th Febnsary, 2021 alpngwith b Movable Assets at Plot Nos.

interest @ B.25% - L10% par annum. SP-6 & SP-7, Industrial Aren,
Kaharani [Bhiwadi Extension),
District Alwar, Rajasthan
and Personal Guarantee of
Managing Director and Whaole
Tirme Dinector.

Foralgn Currency Loans

installment paid on 15th Novernber, 2016 along- and Mavable Assets at Plot No.

with Interest @ 3m Libar + 2.75% per annum. 37, Sectar 4B, Bahadurgarh
Haryana and Personal

Repaid In 16 quarterly Installments with last : 243 758 i‘g;ﬁg”‘grﬂ"ﬂ it

instaliment paid on 13th August, 2017 alongwith coblii s

interest @ 3m Liber +2.75% par anaum.,

Repaid In 16 quartery Instaliments with last - 16.21 ja72 Exclushelhargeon iImmovable

Instaliment pald on 14th February, 2018 along- and Movable Assets at Plot No.

with interest @ 3m Libor +3.00% per annum, A-1130 & N30 (A}, RIICD

Industrial Ares, Phase- 0N,
Bhiwadi ,Ralasthan and
Fersonal CGuarantee of
Managing Director and Whale

Tirme Director®
Repayable in 16 quartery installments with fast 26.02 38.51 5395  ExclusheChargeon Immaovable
payment due on 25th February, 2020 alongwith and Mavable Assets at Plot No.
IMIErEST @ 4m LiDor + (£10% - £4U%) per annum, 342 343 Footwear Mark,
Thw Company has antered into Darivative Contract Industrial Estate, Sector-17,
to hedge Principal and Interest Rates. Effective Bahadurgarh, Haryana and
hedged Interast Rate |s 9.36% - 9.66% per annum. Personal Guarantee of

Managing Director and Whaole

Tirme Direcior.

6LIT 55 160.54
*The change created has been satisfied.
MNote 18 Other Financlal Liabifitles - Non Current (¥ In Cromes)
As at As at Az at
e TistMarch, 2018 | Fist March, 2097 | st April, 2006
Astention Money on 0.40 0.53
o | [ 0,55
Mote 19 Provisions - Non Current [T In Cromes)
As at As at As at

Pasticulum Tist March, J0°8 | Fist March, 2007 | st April, 2076
Employes Banafit Provisions
Cratulty [Refer Note 39(k)] D.28 oy 0.5
Unavailad Leaves T4B B4 502

T 728 L8]
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Mota 20 Deferred Tax Liablithas {Mat) (¥ In Crores)
As A at As at

e s Fist March, 2018 | TistMarch, 2007 | 1st Aprll, 2076
Dwferred Tax Assets
Borrowings 0.4z 1.58 a.77
Expenses Allowable on Payment Basis 19,78 18.80 1613
Allowances for Doubtful Trade Recehvables 0.84 0,54 033
21.04 0.57 3
Dwfarred Tax Liabllitles
Derlvatives 0.53 0.94 £l
Accumuilated DepreciationfAmortisation on Property, Plant, Equipment 46.82 45.53 40,68
and intangible Assets
4135 4647 44,43
Deferrad Tax Liabilities (Net) 26.1 25.50 23,18
Deferred Tax Movemant | ¥ In Crores)
Year ended Fist March, 20718 Year ended ¥st March, 2077
Dther Othar
Profit and Loss Comprehenslve Profit and Loss Compreheanshve
incoma
Borrowings 116 . ER L -
Expenses Allpwable on Payment Basis {0.77) 0.2y {3.89) 122
Allowances for Doubtful Trade Recehvables {025} . {0.28)
Derlvatives (0a1) - (2.67)
Actumulated DepreciationfAmortisation on Property, 128 . 4.85
Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assars
Deferied Tax 1oz {o.27) 02 132
Reconcillation of Deferred Tax Liablities [Net) | T In Crores)
Yoar wndpd Year anded
PRt Fist March, 2018 | st March, 2017
DOperiing Balance 25.50 i B
Defernad Tax (Cradit) f Charge recognised in
Profit and Loss 1.02 o2
Other Comprehenshe Income {021} 122
Closing Balance 26.31 25.50
Hots 11 Borrewings - Currant i T In Crores)
as at Asat As at
Puiesinn Sy T ES R Fist March, 2098 | Fist March, 2017 | 1st April, 2006
Secured
Working Capital facilities from Banks
Loans Repayable on Damand On Demand 545% - 1LT5% B6.03 58.29 85714
Buyer's Credit (Refer Note 42) - 3m Libor+{0.80% - 0.85%) - 190 387
B6.09 60.89 6
Mature of Securities

Secured by way of first Pari Passu charge on entire Cument Assets, Movable Fixed Assets including Plant & Machinery, Immovable Property situated at
Plot No.326, MIE, Bahadurgarh, Haryana and Personal Cuarantes of Managing Director and Whole Tima Girector.
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Note &2 Trade Payables [ In Crones)
As ot As at Asat

Pasticulars Yist March, 2008 | ¥istMarch, 2007 | st April, 2006
Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Mobe 51) 1375 7.08 5.39
Others LIS TIE.EN NES8
T74.90 1570 Wi3T
Mots 23 Other Financial Liabilities - Current [ ¥ In Crones)
Particulars A at A wt An wt

B1st March, 2018 | Tist March, 2017 st April, 2076
Financlzl Liabllities measured at Amortlsed Cost

Current Maturities of Mon Current Borrowings (Refer Note 17) 5.m 4661 40.68
Intzrest accued on Bormowlngs 0.50 n.gr 158
Socurlty Deposits received from
Customers BRI 9,29 8.3
Others .34 0.7 0I5
Unpald Dividends ® (Refer Note 11) onz 0.09 0.08
Payable to Employees 24.50 1944 165,24
Oirector's Commilssion Payable [Refer Mote 47) 21.50 15.56 14.90
Retention Moy 450 252 0.80
Fayable for Capital Conds 4.39 2.56 in
Financlial Liabilitles msasured at Falr Valus through Profit or Loss (FYTPL)
Derivatives - 200 1.4
253 93.41 S0.36

*Unpaid Dividends shall be transfarmed to Investor Edwucation and Protoction Fund as and when dua,

Nota 34 Oiher Current Liabliitles [T In Cromes)
As at As at As a3t
Particulars TistMarch, 2018 | Fist March, 2077 | 15t Aprll, 2076
Advances from Customers 2.33 1.59 in
Statutory Liablities
Entry Tax 4080 44 83 Erd )|
Others 6.B4 210 B.04
Defemed Revenue 14,51 1599 mna
To.48 an [ 1B 4]
Note 35 Provisions - Curment {¥ Im Cromes)
As at As ot As at
Pastinipey Fist March, 2018 | TistMarch, 2007 | st April, 206
Employes Benefit Provislons
Gratulty [Refer Note 39({H)] 0.06 04 0.08
Unavailed Leaves .30 144 155
Othier Provislons
Sales Promiction Schemes #39 0.80 a.09
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Reconciliation of Provision for Sales Promotion Schemas

Partlculars

Opening Balance
Addition during the yaar
Utllized during the year
Closing Balance

Note 36 Corrent Tax Liabilites (Met)

Particulars

Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax)
Interest on Incomse Tax

fiots 37 Revenue from Operations

Particulars

Sale of Products
Manufactured and Traded

Foolwear
Poveer
Others

Other Operating Revenus

Scrap Sake
Export Incenthves
Dthars

Note 28 Other Income
Partlculars
Intarest income on Financlal Assets maasured at Amortised Cost

Fixnd Deposits, Security Deposits and Bands
Other Man- Operstlng Incoms

Met Galn on Sale of Current (meestments carrled at Falr Value through Profit or Loss (FYTPEL)

Mat Dain on Foreign Cummancy Transactions and Trans|ations
Miscellanegus income

73

1% In Cromes)

Tist March, 2018 Fist March, 2077 ‘st April, 2016

Year ended Year ended
Fist March, 2018 | 3ist March, 2077
0.EO i0m8
402 n.8n
043 .09
439 0,80
{¥ In Croses)
Bs at s =t
10 257
0.o08 o
118 78
{ ¥ in Croses)
Year anded Yaar ended

Tist March, 2018 | st March, 2017

104608 163280
.79 .87
526 E48

195513 164325
5.89 476
286 196
0.&g
5. .72
198448 165187
{ ¥ in Cromeg)
Yeur ended Yeur ended

Fist March; 2018 | 3=t March, 2007

0.58 0.74
0.50 0.0
1.08 Tm
0.30 1.B5
4.45 s
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Nota 39 Changes In imverrtorles of Finlshed Goods, Stock-In-Trade and Work-In-Frograss [T In Cromes)

Yaar andad Yoar anded
P Fist March, 2018 | 31t March, 2017
Inventorias at the snd of the year
Finishad Coods 135.70 127.05
Stock-in-Trade 4938 45.04
Work-in- Progress 43448 4237
IL56 1538
Invardories at the beginning of the year
Finlshed Coods 12705 134.45
Stock-in-Trade 46,04 4611
Work-In-Progress 4237 % BE
115.36 0.2
Met (increase) / Decraase
Finished Goods [8.65) a4
Stock-in-Trade (3.34} o.07
Work-in-Progress L (2.59)
{13.20) 4,52
Increase/[Decrease) of Excise Duty (042} 0.24
(13.62) 508
Mote 30 Emplayes Benefits Expensa { ¥ In Cromes)
Year ended Year ended
Particutary Fist March, 2018 | F1st March, 2017
Salaries Wages and Other Benefits 183.06 152.56
Comtributinn to Provident and Other Funds [Refor Mots 39)] 138 1214
Gratuity Expenses [Refer Note 39(b)] 187 im
Staff Welfare Expenses 827 724
Share Based Payments (Refer Note 16) 4.07 13
2i4.08 o4
MHote 31 Flnance Costs | ¥ In Crones)
Year onided Yeoar ended
Particulars Fist March, 2018 | st March, 2017
Interest on Financisl Liskiities measurad st Amaortised Cose ™ BA3 14,55
Exchange Difference to the extent regarded as adjustment to Bormowing Cost 0.09 0.4
Orther Borrowing Costs 0,07 .06
1.5 1503
* includes Interest on Income Tax ¥ 048 Crore {Previous year ¥ 0.08 Crore) and excludes ¥ 5.58 Crores (Previous year ¥ 4.38 Crores) capltalized during
the year.
Mete 32 Deprecistion and Amortisation Expense [ ¥ In Crones)
Yaar andad Year ended
T Tist March, 2018 | 315t March, 2077
Depreciation/Amartisation of Property, Plant snd Equipment 45 57 4175
Amoriisation of Intangible Assets 8.7 B8N
54,34 51456
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Hote 33 Other Expenses i\ ¥ in Crares)
Year ended Year ended

il 315t March, 2018 | 3st March, 2017
Advertisement and Sales Promation Expenses B5.11 B9.48
Freight and Forwarding Charnges 8239 323
Power and Fuel 54.00 4763
Stores Consumed 570 4.97
Processing Changes TAE 48 1677
Handling Charges 2006 15.86
Repalrs
Building 1.4% 054
Machinery (Inchuding Spares) 10,70 10.70
Dithers 10.62 10,72
Rent [Refer Note 38) A0 44,28
Inzurance LG5 217
Rates and Taxes 0.62 0.45
Printing and Stationery 1.61 135
Traveliing and Corveyance 1712 14.51
Communication Expenses 375 4.40
Legal and Professional Expenses [Refer Mote 50) 4332 3812
Securkty Expenses 8545 BB
Allowances for Doubtful Trade Recehalles 073 0.
Bad debts Written off .30 0.03
Met loss on Disposal / Wiite off of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assels 0.55 044
Falr Valuation loss on Derivathes i B .61
Contribution towards C5R (Refer Note 43) 4.TE -
Miscellanesus Expenses 8.56 8.5
S5T.74 AIT.5T
Niote 34 Tax Expeanze { ¥ in Crores)
Year ended ¥ear anded
FARERCR IR Tist March, 2018 | st March, 2007
Tax
Curmrent Tax B1.53 5733
Tax for Earlier years [Net) (i1} (017}
8153 SLOE
Deferred Tax
Relating to Drigination snd Reversal of Temporary Differences 1.02 1.02
1.0 102
Tax Expansa mporied In Statemant of Profit and Loss B2.55 58.08
Deferred Tax an Other Comprehenshee Income
Income Tax effect (021} 1.22
(0.7} 122
feconcliiation of Tax Expanss and Profit { ¥ in Crores)
Year ended Year ended
. Tist March, 2018 | Tist March, 2017
Profit Before Tax 243,62 178.03
Incame Tax & 34 608% B4.31 &1.E1
Diffarencas dus to
Daduction on Account of Tax Holiday Pariod (.o} (4.43)
Temporary Differences on account of Property, Plant & Equipment 067 0.59
Dthers 1.42) 048
Tax for Earller years (Net) 0.00 {0an
Tax Expanse a5 recognlsed In Statement of Profit and Loss B2.55 58,08

75
RELAXO FOOTWEARS LIMITED




Company Information and Significant Accounting Policles

35 Company information

Relawg Footwears Limited [the Compamy) s a Public Limited
Compary domiciied b incorporated in India and its shares are listed
at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange
[MSE). For Company's principal shareholders retes Mole 15

The Company Is @ market leader in the Foobwear Iindusiry. The
tompany has ‘state of the at’ manufacturing facliities at
Rahadurgarh (Haryana), Bhiwadi (Rajasthan) and Haridwar
{Uttarakhand). The selling arangemants ane through Its
Wholesale Disiribution, Export, Modern Trade and Company
operated Aetall Network.

3. Significant Accounting Palicies

Bashy of Preparation of Flaancial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with indlan Accounting Standards (ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 45
amended by Companies (ndian Accounting Standards) Rules,
206,

For all perlods wp to and induding the yaar ended 315t March, 2017,
the Compary prepared its financial statements |n accordance with
accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the
Companles Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2004 (Indlan GAAP).

These financlal statements are the first Ananclal statements of
the Company under ind AS. Refer Note 56 for an explanation of how
the trani'tion frem previcusly applicable Indian CAAP (nereinafter
relpered to o BCAAPY tnlnd AS b affected the Ninancial podition.
financlal performance and cash fiowrs of the Company.

Thie linancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
batls except for following assets and liabilities which have been
raeasured 81 falrvalue amount

i} Cerisin financial assets and Habliities (Including derivative
livstruments),

iy Defined benelit plans
i) Eguitysettied share based payments

All sasets and llabilities have been classified a8 curment or non-
cusrent as per the Company's normal ogerating cycle and other
criteda st out ln the Schedule 10 to the Companies Act, 2003,
Basad on the nature of products and the time between squisition
of ssseis for processing and thelr realisation in cash and cash
sguivalents, the Company has ascerained (ts operating cytie as
twelve months for the purposs of current/ noR-Curment
rlassification of assets and Hiabilities.

Deferred tax asseds and flabiffties are clagsified & non-turment
asartslabilities,

Significant Accounting |udgemants, Estimates and

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with ind AS
mgulres the Company's Management to make |udgements,
wstimates and assumptions about the carmying amounts of assets
and Habilities recognised in the financial statements that am not
readily apparent from other sources. The judgements, estimates
and a0 lated F3sumations are hased on historical eperience and
other factons including estimation of sffects of uncertain future
events that are considened to be relevant. Actual results misy differ
from thss estimates.

The following are the oitical jdgements , estimations &
assumplions thal have been made by the Management in the
process of applying the Company™s st ounting policies.

« Tax expense b calculated wsing applicable tax rate and laws that
have besn enacted or substantially enacted, In arrhving a1 taxable
profit and all tax bases of assets and (labilities, the Company
determines the taxability based on tax enactments, relevant
udicial pronouncemants and tax expert opinlons, and makes
appropriats provisions which includes an estimation of tha llkeky
putcome of any open tax assessments [ Nilgations. Any
difference |3 recognised on dosure of assessmant of in the
period in which they are Jgreed.

* Defired benafil obligations s measursd al fabr valus for
Firianclal reporting purposes. Fair value determingd by sctuany is

= When the fair value of financial essets and financlal Nabllities
recardad In the balance sheet cennal be measumed based on
guoted price In active markets, their fair value is messured using
valuation technigues The inputs to these models are taken from
observable maikats where possible, but where this B not
feasible, adegreeof judgement 15 required In establishing
fair valuss. |udgements incude consideration of Inputs
such as Nguldity fai, credit Ask and volatility.

» Tha Comparny makes allowances for doubtful trade mecabvables
based on & provision matriz which takes into attour historoal
credit lows experience and adjusted for cement estimate.

+ The detsrmination of depreciation and amortisation charge
depends on the useful lives for which Judgements
and estimations are required. The resldual values,
useful lives, and methad of depreciation |/ amortisation of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
revimwiid ot asch financlal year end and adjusted prospectivaly, If
apprapriate,

» inventordes am stated ot the lower of coat and net realisable
valu. In estimating the net realisable value of inventordes the
Company makes an estimate of future selling prices and (o915
neCEiary to make the Lile

» Management jutgemant is regquined for estimating the potsibie
outhiow of resouwrzes, if amy, in respect of contingencies/foslma/
Iitigation against the company &5 1t is not possible to predict the
outcoms of panding mathers with accuracy.

Property, Plant end Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant snd Equipment are stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation/amortisation and Imipalrment . If sy
Tha cost comprisss s purchase price including impart duties and
othar non- refundabie taxes, and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to ts working condition for its intended use.
Trade discounts and rebates e deduched in amiving ot the

purthate price.
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On transgition to lnd AS, the Compamy has electsd optional
snmmption under ind AS 107 to continue with the carmying amount
of all of s Property, Plant and Equiprment (ncluding Capital work-
in- progieis) recognised xS a1 st Apeil 2016 measuned under ICAAR
s the deemied tost of the Propey, Plant and Equipmendt.

Freehoid tand is disdosed at cost less impabmment, i any. Cost
comprises of purchase price and directly attributable cost of
acquisition/bringing the aseet to its working condition for fts
intended use,

Subsequent expenditure related to an [tem of Property, Plant &
Equipment is added to ts carying amount anly If It increases the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond [ts previously
assessed standard of performance

The Company identifies and determings cost of sach component of
the st separately, iF the component has o coat which
significant to the total mst of the asset and has useful Ife that is
muater iy differsnt from that of the remaining st

Thi present value of the expected cost for decommissioning of an
aseet after s use is included in the cost of the respecthe ssset if
thi recognition criterla fara provision are met.

Project wnder which assets are not ready for thelr intended use and
gther capital work-in-progress, are carried at cost comprising direct
st and directly attributable expenses. Advances ghen towonds
acquisition [ construction of fmd assets outstanding at each
Halance Sheet date are discosed 25 Capital Advances under Other
Mon-Cument Assets. Expenses incurred related to project. net of
income eamed during the project development stage prior to its
intended wie. a Condidered 38 pre-operathe EapensR and
dinglosed wender Capitel Wark in Progress

An Item of Propety. Plant and Equipment and any significant pan
indtially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when ng

mkhmﬂxmu#ﬂﬂﬂmhm Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is
inclded In the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset |s

derecognised.

intangible Asssts

imtangible assets are camied at cost less accumulated amort-
isation and Impadrmert [oss, if any. The cost of an Intangiole as5et
comprises it purchase price inchuding Import duties and other
taoees (other than thase subsequently recoverabie from the taxing
authofthes), and amy dirscty atiributable expendituie on making
the aiaet ready for its intended use.

On tramsition to Ind AS, the Company has elected optionsl
exemption under ind AS 10N to continue with the camying amount
of Intanglble Assets recognised as at 1st Aprll, 2016 measured
under IGAAR as the deemed costof the intangibde Assets,

Intanglble Assets under development are shown separately at cost
inurred In bringing the asset tolts prosent cond|tion,

Subsequent expenditure onan intangible assat after its purchasa |
completion IS recognised as an expense when incumed unless it s
probable that such expendiure will enable the Jisel 1o generate
futume economic benefits in e of s odginally asieised
standards of performance and such Expenditure can be
mieasured and attributed to the asset reliably, bn tuch case such
expendiiure it sdded Lo the carmping amount of the Feel

Fevenus sxpenditune pertaining to ressarch i3 charged to the
Statwment of Profit and Loss. Development tosts of products ane
also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss uniess &
product’s commecial feasibility has been extabiished. in which
et it h sxpendituns b Capitalized,

intangitie avset infiaily recognised is dererognised upon dieposal
or when ng futwe sconomic benefits are expected from it use, Any
galn or logx arising on derscognition of the asset (difference
betwean the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset] |s includad In the Statemant of Prafit and Loss when the
assetis derscognisad,

Depreciation and Amortisathon

Depreciation is provided pro- rata to the period of use on Stralght
Ling Mgthod [SLM) based on the estimated useful s of the
assets, which howe been determined 2= per Scheduls § of
Cormpanies Act. 20T, The usetul ives in respect of the below 335813
ate different from the vseful Bees 25 prescrbed under Part [ of
Schedule | of the Companies Act, 33, which an at under

Usetul Lifs estimatsd by the
Azt description
13 | esagement [Mesrs)
Pant and Machinery 0
Moulds B .
Wind Power Generation Plant 20
i

Mobiles !

The uteful s of showe asiets have besn anasised by the
management (onsidering the technical study. technological
obrsolence, actual usage. historical data reganding breakdown,
maintenance and induitry data svaiable on record. [omponents
hgving uneful ives different from the life of parent assets are
depreciated over the useful life of the components within overall
usetul life of the parent asset.

Leasehold lands sccounted under finanos lease are amortised over
the period of lease except where the lease is renewable,

Leasshold Improverments are amortised on stralght line basls oer
the periad of loase or useful ifo whichever ks lowar.

Intellectual Property Rights are amartised over their useful life.
Cormputer Software and Licences are being amortled over the
pariod of five years on straight line basis.

Imnpalrmant of Hoa-Flasncl sl Assets

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Shret
date to assess if there is any indication of impairment based on
imtemal and external factors. An Impalrment loss on such
assessment will be recognised whenever the camying amaunt
of an asset exceeds Its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of the assets is net selfing price of value In use,
whichever Is higher, While assessing value In use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to the present value by using
weighted average cost of capital. A previously recognised

loss |5 furthes provided or reversed depending on
changes in the circumstances and to the extent that camying
amount of the assets does not exteed the camying amewnt that will
be determined i mo impairment loss had previously been
recognised.

Impairment lesses, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.
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Flaanelal Instramients
Classification:

The Company dassifies its financial atsets in the following
maaiuneTen | LA Legorie

i Thds 1o b mediursd Subieguenily sl Fair valus [sither through
Diher Comprehenshve Income, orthrough profil or loss)

i) Thots meatured a1 amortised cost

Tha classification depends the business model of the entity for
managing Mnanclal assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flews,

Foi assets measured at fair value, galns and losses will elther be
racordad In profit or loss or Other Comprehenshe Income. For
Imvestments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business
el In which the irvestment is held. For investraents in equity
Instrumars, this will depend on whether the [ompany has matde
an irevocable slecton gt the time of initiadl mcognition 1o
account for the equity mmstment 8t fair value though Dther
Compreheniive lnoome.

initial recognition and messuremenl

Financial sssets are recognised when the Company becomes &
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financal
assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, In the case of
financisl assets not recorded at fabr value through profit or
loas, transaction costs that are attributable ta the acquisition of
the lnanclal asset. Transaction costs of financlal assets camied at
fakr valus through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Suhteguint Measurement
After inftial recognition, financial assets s measured at

1) Fasr value sither through Cther Compreheniive income [FYTOC)
or through profit or less (FYTPL or,

i} Amariised tost
Dt [netruments

Subsequent measurernent of debt instruments depends on the
buslnais model of the Company for managing the ssset and the
cash flow charactesistics of the asset, There ane thres
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its
debi Indlrumenis:

Madiured al amortised cost

Financiasl sssets that are hedd within 2 busiress model whose
objective i to hold financial assets in order to colisct contractual
cank Fiows that are solely payments of principsl and intenest, are
Sublbguenthy meEasured 3t amortised cost usieg the EIR method.

Messured ot falrvaloe through Other Comprehensbve income (OCT)

Finmncial assets that are held within a business model whose
objEctive s schieved by both, selling financial sssets and collecting
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
Inbarest, are subsequently measured at falr valus through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT . Fair valus movements ane
recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (DCI). Interest
Income mesured using the EIR methad and Impalrmant losses, if
sy o recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-
ricognition, cumulative gain/ (loss) previously meoognlsed in the
Diher [omprehensive income [OC1) is reclasified from the squity
1o athier Income in the Staterment of Profit and Loas.

Whpaured it fairvidue theough profit o beas

A financial eeset not classified as sither srmortised coat o theowgh
Dther Comprehenthe income [PYTOCT, i classified o fair value

thmugh profit or loss (FYTPLY. Swch financial assets are mastured
at Fairvalum with all hanges in fair value, including interest income
ard dvidend Income If ary, mcopnised a2 other income in the
Staterment of Profi and Loas.

Equity Instruments

All pquilty investmaents in scope of Ind AS 109 are messuned i Fair
value. Equity instrurments which ane held for trading are clessilied
as at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FYTPLL For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an revocable section to
present in other comprehensive income subseguent changes In the
fair valum, The Company makes such election onan nstument-by-
instrument basls. The classification Is made on Initlal ecognition
and is revocable.

If the Company decides to dassify an equity instrument as ot Fair
Value through cther comprehensive income (FYTOCT), then ail Fair
valus changes on the Instrument ecluding dividends, ane
recognised in the OC1. There is no recyding of the amounts from
00 to profit and loss. even on sale of imvestrment. Howewer, the
Compary iy transher the curmul stive gain of loss within eguity.

Equity instruments intlured within the Fair Value through Profitor
Less (FYTRL) category ane measured at fair value with all changes
recognilsed inthe Ststement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition

Th Company derscognises 4 financlal assat other than Falr Valus
through other comgrahensive Income (FVTOCKH, when the
contractual rights to the cash fiows from the asset mxpire. or
when |t transfers the financial asset and substantially abl the risks
wnid rewards of penarship of the asset to another party.

H the Compary neither transfers nor retalns substantially all the
risks and reeardi of oenership snd continues to onirel the
travsferred st the (ompany neognices ity retained imterert
in the aiaet and an ssociated fabiEty for amounts it may have 15
Py,

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its antinety, the differsnce
batwesn the assset's camying amount and the sum of the
conslderation mecelved and recelvable Is recognised In the
Statarnent of profit and loss.

Irmpalrrmernt

Tha Company spplies Expected Credit Loss [ ECL ) model for
rraasursment and recognition of impairment loss an tha financial
RN

ECL b the diffgrence hetwesn ail confrartual cash Pows that aw
due to the Company in sccordande with the tontract and all the
cash fowes that the entity expects to recebve (Lo ofl cash
shortfally), discounted at the ariginal EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal] recognised during the
peeriod ks recognised as income /expensa In the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Aeclassification

The Company determines classification of financlal assets an
initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification ks
made for financlal assets.

Financial HablFies
Ciassification 2 et of Equity

Finandal Habiities and equity instruments issued by the Companmy
are claisified actording to the substance of the combrachual
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arangements entered Into and the definltions of a financlal
liabllity and an equity instrument.

Initial recognltion and measunement

Financial [fabifties ame recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions af the instrument. Financiad
liabilitios are initially rmeasuned a1 tha faireabue,

Sulsequent measurement

Fnancial llabilities are subsequently measured at amartised cost
using the effcthe Interest rate mothod, Financial labilities
carried at fairvalue through profit or loss are measuned at fairvalue
witth all changes In falr value recognized In the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation specified
inthe contract is discharged, cancalled or expires.,

Dffsetting financlal instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported In the Balance Shest where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amaunts and there |s an Intentlon to
settha on o net basis of realise the ssset snd setthe the Rability
simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enfonceable in the normal
course of busimess and In the event of default, Insolvency or
bankruptey of the Company or the countemparty.

FairValue Measurement

Tha Company measuwnes financial instruments at falrvalee at each
Balance Sheet date.

Falrvalue s the price that would be received to sel! an assetar paid
to transfer a llability In an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, The fair value
maasurement is based on the presumption that the tansaction to
spll the asset ortransferthe liability takes place either

= |nthe Principal marlet forasset orilabilfty, or

= |n the absance of a Principal market, in the most advantageous
market forthe asset or Habiity.

Tha Principal or the most advantagesus market must be arcessible
vy the Comparmy.

A falr value measurement of a non- financlal asset takes into
account @ market participant's abllly to generate economic
benefits byusingthe azset in s highest and best use or by
seiling It to anather market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and bast use.

Tha Company uses valuation technigues that ame appropriate inthe
circumstances and for which suffidlent data are avaliable to
messurefalr value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of uncbsenable inputs.

Al pssets and llabifties for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements ane categorised within the
fairvalue hierarchy, desoribead as follows

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical
assets or [labllitsas that the entlty can access at the measurement
date.

Level 2 Inputs other than quaoted prices Included within Level 1that
are abservable for the asset or Hablilty, either directy or indirectiy.

Level 3Unobsenmable inputs forthe asset or liablliy,
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For assets and fablides that are recognised In the financial
statements on a recuring basis, the Company determines whether
transfars have occurmed between lovels in the hierarchy by -
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that Is
significant to fairvalue measurement as awhale) at the end of each
reporting period.

Inventories

Raw Materials, Packing Materlals, Stores and Spares are valued at
fowier of cost and net realisable value. The costs of imventories
comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurned In bringing
theinventories to their present location and condition. The costs of
purchase consist of the purchase price Including duties and taxes
(other than those subseguently recoverable from the taxing
authorities), frelght inward and other expenditure directly
attributable to the acguisition, Trade discounts, rebates and other
similar tems are deducted In determining the costs of
purchase.

Materials and other [tems held for wse in the production of
imentories are not weitten down below cost iF the finished
products inwhich they will be incorporated ame expected to be sold
at or above cost. Cost s detarmined on moving wedghted average
basis.

Stock-In-Trade is valued at moving welghted average basls and
comprises ail costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those
subsaquently mooversble from tax authorities) and all other costs
imourred In bringing the inventories to thefr presant kocation and
condition.

‘Waork- In- Progress and Finlshed Goods ame vakeed at |ower of cost
and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour
ond & propertion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
operating capacity,

Mot realisablo valun |5 the estimated sefling price in the ordinany
course of business, less estimated oosts of completion and
estimated costs necessany to make the sale,

Revenus Aecognition

Revenue |5 recognised to the extent that it |s probable that the
econamlc benefits will flow ta the Company and the amount can be
reliably measured. Revenuve iz measured at fair value of
considaration moeived or receivabile.

Revenus from sabe of goods is mecognised whaen ownershig in the
goods is transfemad to the buyer far a price, when slgnificant risks
and rewands of swmership have been transfermed to the buyer and
nia effectiva contro, |s retalned by the Company. Sale of gosds are
stated net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and include
aucise duty wherever applicable.

Revenun from anengy generated through Wind Power Ganeration
PFlant is recognised on the basis of net power delivered as per power
purchase agreemant signed with Discomis).

interest |5 recognised using the Effective interest rate (EIR)
mithad.

Oividend Income Is recognised when the rght to recelve the
payrment s established.

Export Incentlves are recognised In the Statement of Profit and
Logs when the fight to recebve credit a5 per the terms of the scheme
is established in respect of exports made and when there is nop
significant uncertainty regarding the wltimate collection of the
relevant export proceeds.
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Barrawlng Costs

Bormowing cost includes ivterest and ancillary costs incumed in
connection with the amangement of bormoedngs and charged to
siatemenl of Profit and Loss on the basis of effective interest rate.

Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arsing from foreign
turrenty bormowings 1o the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cosl.

Bormowing ©osl that are sttdbutable fo the acquisition of
canstruction of a qualifying asset are capltabised o8 part of the cost
of such asset till such time the asset 1s ready Toclts Intended use. A
gualifylng asset is an asset that necessarlly takes a substantial
period of tima toget mady forits intended usa.

Al othir borrowing costs ame expensed in the peried in which they
BECUF.

Esimings Par Share

Basic eamings pir shard iS comgusted by dividing the profit after Lax
by the weighted svirage numnber of sguity shans oulsianding
during the penod The weighted average number of squity shares
outsianding during the year is adjusted for events Le bonus issue,
share £plits and further s of sham capital,

Diluted sarmings per share is cormputed by dividing the profit after
tax for the period attributable to equity sharsholders by the
wlghted-average number of shares outstanding during the pesiod
mmmwmuaulmmlmmm

Leases

Lemses In which a significant portion of the risk and rewands of
pwnarship are retained by the lessor an cassified 85 operating
wase. Payments made under cperating lmases (net of any
incantives received from the lrssor) are changed in the Statement
of Profit and Loss on 3 straight-fing basls over the paviod of the
Weais unless the payments are structured to Incresss in ne with
expected general inflation to compersate expected inflationary
cost inomeases for the lessor.

Employes Share Based Payments

Thi fakr value of options granted under Shame Based Payment plan
Is ricognised a5 an employes banefit axpenss with cormesponding
increase In eguity in accordance with recognition and
msasurement princlples as prescribed in Ind AS 102 Share Based
Payments. The total expende i recognised over the vesting perod,

Taxes
Current Tax

IRCEME LI FEpErSe represets the sum of cument snd defemed tax
(imchuding MAT). Tax sxpense is mrognised in the Statement of
Proft and Lots extept to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in eguity or other comprebenthe incomae, in
such cass the tax expense s also recognised directly in eguity or in
other comprehensive income. Any subsequent change In Income
tax on Items initially reeognised in equity or other comprehansive
incamie is also recognised inegquity of other comprahenshe Incoma,
such ehange could be for changein taxrata.

Curramnt tax provislon s measured on the basls of taxable income
computed In accondance with the provisions of the income Tax Act,
961

Dfarred Tox

Defwired tax s recognised on temporary differences beteeen the
carrybng amount of Iidets and labilities in the Balance Sheet and
the comesponding tan baies used in the computation of taxablie
profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet approach.

Defered tax Habilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
#ifference and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
ternparary differences, Cairy fonsand Tax iosses and allowanced 1D
the extent it b probable that Muturs Tocbie profits will be svallable
agaimst which those dedurtible temporary differences. carry
forwaed tax ki ses and allowances can bewtilised.

Deferred tan ateet and labilities are measured at the tax rales that
are expected 1o apply In the year when the asset is reallsed or
liabdlity ks setthed, based on tax rates and tax lws that have been
enatied or substantially enacted at the reporting date,

Tha carrying amount of deferred tax asset |5 reviewsd ot sach
balance sheat date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficlent taxable profits will be avallable against
wihich the temporany diffenences can be utlised.

Tax credit s mecognised in respect of Minimumn Altemate Tax (MAT)
paicl i teerms of saction TS JAA of the Incoms Tax Act, 1961 bated on
cosreincing evidenos that the Comparmy will pay normal incomse tax
within statutsry time frame and the same s reviewsd 3t sach
balance shee] date.

Farslgn Currency Transaction
Functipnal and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial staterments are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates (‘the functional currency'). The Company's
financial statemants are prasented In Indian rupes which |5 slso
the Company's functional and presentation currency,

Initial Aecognition

Forsign curmency transactions arn recorded on initial recognition in
the functional curmenny. wsing the exchange rate betwesn the
functional b forslga ¢urrency privadling 2t the date of trare sction.

Subsequent REcoghition

Mipnetary turnent aNsets and (abilites at the Balance Sheet date
are transiated ot the rete prevaliing on Balance Sheet date, The
difference therson and also the exchange difference on settiement
of forelgn curmency transactions during the year is recognised as
income or expense in Statement of Profitand Loss.

Mon-mionatary [tarns are camded at historical cost and reported
using the exchangs rate at the date of transaction.

Dertvathen Flranclal Instruments

The Compary uses derivative finandal instruments, such as
forwand contracts and interest rate swags to hedge its fonsign
currency and Interest rate risks. Sech dervathes Tinancisl
irstruments am initlally ecognised 3t fair valus on the dats on
which a derdeative coniract is emtered into and are suboequently
remeasuned ot fakrvalue.

Destvatives are camied as financial assets when the fabr valee 14
pasitive snd a4 financlsl Habilities when the fabrvalue i negative.

Any galns or losses arising from changes In the falr value of
derivatives o takan to Statemant of Profitand Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents In the balance sheet compriss cash ot
banks and an hand and short-term deposits with an original
matusity of thres manths or less, which am subject ta imsignificant
risk of changes In value.

Cath Rigws 398 reported using the indirect method 35 w9t out inind
AS 7 "Statement of Cosh Flows”, wheneby profit or (loss) and tais
adjusted for the sifects of transactions of a non-tash nature and
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any defermals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash fows from operating. imvesting and financing
activities of the Compamy ane segregated.

Compary has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as
Deflined Contribution Plans as the company doEs not carny any
further obligations, apart from the contributions made on &
manthiy basis, Such contributions ane charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the period of sarvice rendered by the emplayees.

Thit Company has a defined benefit gratulty plan. The Company
funds the Plan through annual contributions to Life insurance
Corporation of India under its Employes Group Cratuity Scheme.
Company's Hability ks actuarially determined (using the Projected
Limit Credit Method) at the end of each year,

Ri-massurements, mmpising of atuadal gains and losses, the
wffect of asset cefling, exchuding amounts included in the net
interest on Uhe net defined benefRt (Lability and the retum on plan
aassets (excluding amounts included in ret interest on the net
defined benefit Kabifity), are recognised Immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credil o retalned
samnings through OO in the period In which they oocur, Re-
measuraments am nol reclassified to profit of loss In subsequent
piriods,

Accumulated leaves, which are expected to ba avalled or encashed
witthin twehe months from the end of the year an treated as short
term employes benefits. The obiigation towards the same is
maasurid @l the expected cost of sccumulaling lmaves a5 the
sdditional amount expected to be paid 25 3 result of the unused
entitiement s at the yearend.

Aeoumulated eaves, which are expected 1o be avaiked of encashed
beyond teeive maonihes oo the end of the year ane Ureated 25 other
inng term employes benehits. The Company™s Bebility i sctuarially
determined (using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of
wathymar

Pravisians and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when there |s a prasent obligation (legal
of constructive] as a result of past event and It s probable that an
outfiow of resources embodying economic benafits will be required
to setile the obligetion and them is o reflable estimate of the
smaunt of the obiigation. Provisions am meaiured at the best
wtimats of the expenditure required to settls the present
ebligation at the halance shest date. These estimates are reviewed
ot wach balange shewt date aod adfjutted to refiect the Cument best
FATMETEL

Contingent llablities ame diztioted when ther & a poisible

wrising from past events, the existencs of which will be
confirmied only by the oCCurrenoe o NoN-GECuMencE of one or more
uncertaln future everts not wholly within the control of the
eompany of & prasent obfigation that arlses from the past svents
wiher 11 |5 glther not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle ar a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made, s termed a5 acontingent |lability,

Corporste Soclal Respansibility (CSA)

Pursuant to the requirements of section 135 of the Compamy Act
2073 and rules therson and guidance note on “Accounting for
sxpanditure on [orporste Social Reponubilty sibvitien” Byued
by ICAL, with effect from st Agril, 2015, Contribution towards (SR
Is recogrised a5 an expense in the Statement of Profit and Less in
the period in which it is paid.
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B Dividend

The Company recognises 3 [labliity to make cash distribution to
equity holders when the distribution i authoriisd and the
distribution I no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per
the comparate |ws in india, a distribution is authorsed when it is
approved by the shareholders, A comesponding amount IS
recognised directhy In equity.

Recsnt Account|ng Pransuncaments

in March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs lssued the
Companies {Indian Accownting Standards) (Amendments) Rules,
208, notifying following Ind AS

= |nd A5 115 Revenus from Contractewith Customers

¢ Amendments to Ind AS 21- The Effects of Foreign Exchange
Ratas.

Tha abeve are applicable 9 the Dompanry from Tt Apel, J0E. The
Compary it evaluating the effects of the new ind AS/smendments
on its Financlal Statements.

RELAXO FOOTWEARS LIMITED
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mote 37 Contingent Liabllitles snd Commitments (¥ in Crones)

As at Az =t As ut
- st March, 2018 | st March, 2007 | st April, 2096
Contingent Liabhitlas
Clalms agalnst the Company not acknewledeed as debts In respect of *
Sales Tax Matters 145 0.50 0.348
Income Tax Mattes 2.06 209 112
Central Exclse Matters - - .32
15 .69 053
Othears®
Interest on Entry Tax, Haryana™® ara4 9.2 2240
Interest on Entry Tax, Rajasthan - 0.0 0.05
ek 2530 2245
Cammitments
Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remalning to be executed on Capltal Account 35.92 Ir43 4175
and not provided for (net of advance)
Oithars
Total Export Obligation agalnst total duty saved of ¥ 1635 Crores, 114.73 L5 1ir2e

\Previous year ¥ 14.92 Crores, st Apeil 2078 ¥ 15.91 Crones)

*Lash Qutflows related to disputed tax matters are determinable only on cutcome of the pending cases st vanous forems fauthorities, The potential
undiscounted amouwnt of total payments for taxes that the Company may be reguired to malke if there was an adverse decision related to these disputed
demands of reguiators as of the date reparting perlod ends are as stoted above.

== The matter was decided in favour of the Compamy and Department prefermed appeal before Hon'ble Supreme Court of India. Suprema Cowrt of kndia
directed patitionar ta file fresh &ppeal in High Court . Matter|s pending at High Court since 31st May, 2017,

Mote 38 Disclosure on Operating Leases

The Comparny has entered into operating leases for Land and Bullding premises. Thesa lease arangements range for a period bebween T months to 20
years, which include both cancelizble and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are renewable for further perlod on mutually agresable terms and
also Inelude escalation clauses,

T In Crones

As at Ag at A5t

Parthculars TistMarch, 2008 | st March, 2007 | st Aprll, 2006

The future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases

Mot Iater than one year o.m 0.7 208
Later than one year but not later than five years - 0.00 .55
Later than flve years - ~ =

0.0 .77 .63

Leage Rentals charped to Statement of Prafl and Loss T 4710 Crores (Prvious year T 44,48 Croms) (Refer Mote 33)

Mote 39 Disdosure on Employes Banefits
Disclosure is hemeby given in pursuant to ind 4578 - "Employes Benefits”

[a) Defined Contribution Pian
During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss [Refer Note 30) { % In Crores)
Yaar anded Year anded
Particulars Tist March, 2008 | Mst March, 2017
Employer's Contribution to Provident and Othar Fund 10.94 9.85
Employers Contribution to ESIC Scheme 2.87 2.28
3.1 e

() Dafined Benefit Plan - Gratuity (Funded): The Company pays annual contribution for Employess Group Gratulty Scheme to Life Insurance Corporation
of Indla {LIC} to fund its Plan. Under the Cratuity Plan, every employee who has completed atleast five years of service gets Gratulty at the time of
separation ar retirement, whichever is earlier @ 15 doys of lest drown salary for each completed yeor of sendce, The Present value of obligation is
determinad based on Actuarial Valuation using the Projected Unlt Credit Method,

[ F]
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Particulars

Recondilation of opening and closing balances of Deflved Benefit Obligation
Present Value of Defined Benefit Dbligation at the beginning of the year
Current Senvice Cost
intergst Cost
Banefit Pald
Remeasuremient (Goins)/Losses
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses arising from changes in Demographic Assumptions
Actuarial [Gains)/Losses arising from changes in Fimancial Assumiptions
Actuarial [Dains)/Losses arising from Experience Adjustments
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year
Recondliztion of apening and closing balances of tha Falr Valus of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beglnning of the year
Interest InComs
Remeasurament Cains/[Losses)
Return on Plan Assets (Excluding amounts Included In net interest expense)
Contribution by the Company
Benefits Pald
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Major Category of Plan Assets as %e to total Plan Assets
Life Insurance Corporation of Indla (LIC)
Reconciliation of the Present Vatue of the Oefined Benefit Obligation
and the Fair Valus of the Plan Assets
Fresent Value of Defined Benefit Obligstions
Fair Value of the Plan Assets
Ampunt Recognised in Balance Sheat as Liability
Amuount Recognised as Liability under

Mon Cuerment (Refer Note 12)
Current [Refer Note 25)

Expenses Recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 30)

Current Servlce Cost
Interast Cost

Expenses Recognised In Statement of Other Comprehensive incoma

Actuarlal {Galns)/Losses arlséng from changes in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses arising from changes in Finantial Assumptions

#ctuarial {Galns)/ Losses arlskng from experence Adjustments

Returm on Plan Assets (Dains)/Losses (Excluding amounts incheded In Met Inberest Expense)

Expacted Contribution to the Fund in niod year
Cratuiby
Actuarlal Assumptions
interest Aate for discounting (Per Anmum) (5]
Withdrawal Rate (Al Ages) [Per Annum] {5
Retirement Age -

For Emiployess of Group A (In Years)

For Employees of Group B (in Years)
Rate of Escalation in Salary (per annum) (%)

Mathod of Computation
Demographic Assumption: Life Expectancy

{ T In Crores)
Year ended Year ended

Tist March, 208 | 315t March, 2077

18.650 1B8.90
382 375
138 140
f) 1)

(2.08) .
(i} [2.30)
156 {0.54)

3 18.50

1794 1776
133 137
on i0.03)
475 .
1% f1m)

23.07 17.99

100%: 100%

2341 18.60

23,07 17.99
034 o
nz2a 047
0.06 014
0,34 051
382 375
0.08 003
3.87 m

(2.08) -
0.24 (2.3
256 {0.64)

0. 0.03
{15 (3.51)
190 £28
730 740

12.00 B.00

58 &0
1] 70
0,00 10.00
Projacted Linlt Credit Method
IALM (200E-2008)
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Quantitative sansithvity anabysis for significant assumptions b5 a3 shown below { ¥ in Crores)

st Fist ;ﬂ.:hﬂ:: Fist I:;:h.::;
Defined Benefit Obllgation Base 2341 18.60
Change In Discount Aste
Increase by 19 [L57) (1.1}
Decreass by 1% i | 20
Change In Salary Escalation
Increase by T5% 165 195
Decreass by 1% (1.49) (1.E9)

Changes In Defined Benefit Obligation due to 1% Increas= | Decrease n Mortallty Rate ks negligible.

The above Sensithity Analysis have bean determined based on @ method that extrapolates the Impact on Defined Benefit Dbligation as a result of
reaspnable changes in significant assumptions cccurring at the end of the reporting percd i all pther assumptions remaln constant.

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation { ¥ in Crores)
Year ended Year ended
Particlons st March, 2018 31st March, 2007
Welghted Average ODuration of the Defined Benefit Obligation [in Years) n ¥
Expected FPayment in future years
Within next 12 months 248 0,56
Between 1and 5 years B3 457
bipre than 5 years . 13.07
FER ] 1660
The sbove Infarmation |s certified by Actuary. The estimates of escalatfon In sadary take into account Infiation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factars.
itincludes Gratuity for KMP s it is worked out for the Comparny as 8 whiole (Refes Mote 47).
Risk Exposurs

‘faluatlons are based on certaln assumptions, which ame dymamic in nature and vary overtime. As such Company |5 eogposed tovarious risks as follows

Investment Risk - The Prasent value of the Defined Benofit Plan Liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to Government Bonds
yiedd., i Pian liability Is funded and retum on Plan Assets is beloerthis rate, K will create a plan deficit.,

Interest Risk (Discount Rate Risk)- A decrease in tha bond Intorest rate (discount rate) will incraase the Plan Rability

kiartality Risk - The Present value of the Defined Benefit Plan liabiliny s calculated by reference to the best estimate of the martality of Plan participants.
Forthis repart, Indian Assured Lives Mortallty (2005-08) Ultimata tabla has been used , Achange in mortality rate will have a boaring on the Plan's Habillty

Salury Risk - The Present value of the Defined Benefit Plan Liabliity is caleuloted with the sssumption of selany Increase rete of Plan participants in future.

Deviation inthe rate of incmasa of salany in futume For Plan participants from tha rate of intrease in salary used to determine the Presant valus of obligation
will have a bearing on the Plan's [labillty,

Mote 4D Employes Stock Optlon Plan

AFL Employes Stock Option Plan 2014 (hereinafter referred to as the "ESOP 204" [ "The Plan™), was approved by the Sharsholders through Postal
Ballot on 5" August, 20%. The Plan entities the permanent emplovees, existing and future, inchuding the Whaole-Time Dlrector {but excluding the
Independent Directors and Pramoter Directors) of the Company to exerclee the option granted for purchase of Equity Sharesin the Comparmy at the exerclse
price i the market price of the Equity Shares as ondate of grant, subject to compliance withwvesting conditions.

Hame of the Plan

Method wsed bo acoount for the employee share based payment plan

Mo of Optlons resered
Persons Entitied

Optlons Grant Date

\iesting Period
Exercise Period
Lotk-in-Period

ANNUAL REPQRT A017-18

RFL Employes Stock Optlon Plan 2014
Falr Value

18001ED

Whaole-Tima Dérector and Employees

gth August 2014, th May 2015, 25th july 207, 315t October 2015,
Vath May 2016, 30th July 2016, Sth Novernber 2076, Sth August 2017,

dath November 2007

1-4 years from Grant Date

Maximum 4 years from the date of vesting of options
Ko lock-in-pedod after exercise



Options granted on Options granted on

e lﬂtmﬂmmhlrriﬂ‘l? T:hn;un.m-:
Vesting Schedule 0%, 15%, 25% and 0%, 15%, 25% and
C0% at each year L% at each year

Exercise Period [In Years) 4 4
Exercitg Price [In T) 593.95 456.95
Market price on the date of grant {in ¥ ) 553,95 45695

Tha Detalts of sctivity under the schems ars summarized balow

Year anded st March, 2018 Year ended Tst March, 2077

Ho. of Options WAEF in T ) Mo. of Dptions WIAEP (In T )
Dutstanding at the beginning of the year 333800 245,45 420440 218,53
Granted during the yaar 494200 4g4.bA 4400 45N
Vested dusing the year 280790 333,66 105440 73.m8
Farfefted during the year 62540 406,28 504490 338.32
Exercised durlng the year [Refer Mote 15} 22337 204.20 SO0550 202.83
Outstanding at the end of the year h42050 44361 333800 245.45
Exercisable ot the end of the year BEGIN 333166 29950 223.51

The weighted sverage remaining contractual life for the stock options sutstanding & at 3%st March, 2018 is 5,95 years [Previous Year 4,05 years). The
wielghted mveragn execise price for options cutstanding as at 3ist March, 2018 is T 443.77 (Previous Yoar T 245.45),

The weighted sverage Fair Value of stock options granted during the year ended on 315t March, 208 ks § 327205 per option (Previows Yesr T 168,98
par option),

The Black Schales valuation model has been used for computing weighted sverage Fair Value considering the following inputs

Particul Weur ended Weur ended
TLiars st March, 20718 | 3st March, 2007
Stock Price {In ¥) 454 6B 4551
Volatifity (%) BS540 4075
Risk Free Rate {5%) B.50 5.E9
Exercise Price (InT ) 45468 468.11
Time to Maturity {In years) 515 in
Dividend Yield (%) 0.22 013
Hote 41 Disclosure on Earnings Per Share
As per requirement of Ind AS 33 - “Eamings Per Share®, following |s the disclosure (¥ in Crores)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Tist March, 2008 | B1st March, 2077
Profit for the Year 16107 395
Welghted average number of Equity Shares In calculating Baslc EPS 120220832 120076168
Difuthve Impact for number of ESOPs 14a552 148537
Welghted average number of Equity Shares in calculating Diluted EPS 12036744 120224705
Eamings Per Equity Share of T 1/- each (InT)
Basic 13.40 955
Diluted 13.38 998
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Mote 42 Foretgn Currency Expasure
The detalls of Foreign Cumency Exposure are ghen below { Amaount in Cromes)

T e

Ameut | Amowmt

Unhedged Forelgn Currency Exposurs
Import Payabies usn 0.08 513 0.06 .97 0as 10,23
Import Payables EURDO 0.00 0.06 0.0 o.m 0.00 .03
Import Payabies AED 0.0 0,07 - - - -
Euport Recelvables usno i B 1258 01s 1215 01z 1848
Export Recetvables GEP - - - - 0.m 0.56
Bank Balance AED 0.00 0,05 - - - -
Hedged Foralgn Currency Exposure
Currenty Rate Swaps uso 040 26.0% .83 5755 145 10054
Interest Rate Swaps usn 0.a0 il [1] 0.0 0.2 b.n 046
Numbser of buy contracts Mos i} 50 58
Forward Contracts - import Payables usD 0.28 1844 0.25 1601 0.33 21.76
Farwand Contracts - Import Ordars uso 0. 48,12 0,65 LER:E 0.53 34.83
Fanwend Contracts - import Onders EURD o THI2 r = = T
Forwand Contracts - Buyer's Credit® uso - . .03 1.940 .06 3.87
Humber of sell contracts Mos Kl hil 1
Forwand Contracts - Export Recehables usno - - - - .02 133
* Rufer Nots 21
Mote 43 Financial Rlsk Managamaent

The Comparny's principal Ainancial labiites otherthan dedvathves comprises of borrewings, trade and other payables, The maln purpose of these financlal
iabllitles Is to finance the Company”s operations, The Compary's princpal financlal assets Indudes trade and other mecehvables, securty depasits, Cash
and cash eguivalents and loans that derive directly from lts operations. The Company also hold investments cared at falr value through other
Comprehensive Income (FYTOCL)/ Amortised cost. The Companyis expoesed to oedit risk, Hoguidity risk and market risk that are summarksed asunder

T e R

Credit Risk Cashand Cash Equivalents, Trade Agelng analysis Trade Receivables ane reviewed and dssessed for
Recelvables, and othar Financial impalrment losses at every reporting period,
Assets fixing of Credit Limks and dealing with high

credit rating Banks.

Liguidity Risk Borrowings, Trade Payablos and Annual Projected Cash Avallability of committed credit lines and
other Financizl Liabilities Flowwith periodic review bormowing facillties

Market Risk

Foretgn Exchange Risk Recognised Financial Assats and Sensitivity analysls Risk cowerage through Forward exchange
Liabllithes not denominated (n contractsfCurmency swaps
Indian rupees [T}

Imterest Rate Risk Term Loan b Warking Capital Sensitivity anabysis Forelgn Currency interest rate swaps
Facilitles from Bank

Prica Risk Investrmants in Equity Securities Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification

Crodit Risk

Credit risk |5 thee risk that counterparty will not mest its obligations under a financlal instrument ar customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities [Primarily trade receivables).

BE
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Management of Credit Risk
Concentration of credit risk with respect totrade recalvables are imited, due to the customer base being large across all regions . All trade recehables are
revlewed and assessed at every reporting period.

Historical nxparinnce of collecting moalvables of the Company is supporiad by bow level of past defaults and hence the credit risk ks perceived to below,
I ke Credit isk on cash and bank balances and dervatives is negligible because the counterparties ame Banks,

Exposure to Credit Risk [ ¥ In Croves)
AL ut As at As at
Particulars NotaMo: | yietmarch, 2018 | st March, 207 | st Apell, 200
Financial Assets for which Allowance are measured using
12 Months expected credit loss
MNon Courrent
Imvestments 3 0.0 o 0,50
Loans 4 16.20 14.55 BN
Other Finamdal Assets & e 0.30 51
m 1616 .54
Current Assets
Imvestrmants ;] 0,50 - -
Caszh and Cash Eguivalents o 112 s 234
Other Bank Balances M 0.E8 014 1R E
Loans 12 043 028 0.23
Dither Financial Assets £ 125 343 619
614 138 B.BE
Finencial Assets for which Allowanee sre measured using
fife time expected credit loss
Currant Assets
Trade Recelvables a 19235 1378 108.59
Agalng Anahysls of Trads Recelvables { ¥ in Crores}
As at As at As ot
Pt Tist March, 208 | 31t March, 2017 st April, 206
Up to3D days past due 157.96 103.E1 93.50
3 to S0 days past due FEN .5 1157
31 1o 180 days past due B.96 244 145
181 bo 365 days past dus 2.63 1.87 1.54
fdore than 365 days past dus 0,93 0.55 0.63
18235 12318 THELES
Reconciliation of Allowances for Doubtful Trade Receivabiles { ¥ in Crores)
Yaar pndad Yaar endad
T - Fist March, 2018 st March, 2017
Dpuning Balanca 1. 0,36
Addition during the year 0.73 L1
Ruversed dusing the yaar = =
Closing Balamee 243 1.0
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Liguidity Rizk

Ligueldity risk |s the sk that the Company will not be able to meet its financlal obligations as they fall due. The Compamy's maln source of liguldity is cash
and cash egubsabents and the Cash flows that is cenerated from operations.The Company's approach to manege liguldity |s to ensure that 11 will sbways
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabllities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without Incurring unacceptable lossas or risking
damage to the Compamy's reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adeguate resenves, by continuoushy monltoring forecast with
artual cash flows and matching the matwrity prafiles of the finenclal assets and llabllities.

The table balow provides the maturity profile of the Company’s financlal abilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. (¥ in Crores)

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

Freticitoes Within 1yese | BRWeen1ands | More than s
Years yers
As at 35t March, 2018
Maon-Current Liabilitlies
Fimancial Liablftias
Borrwings 7 E ¢ B = 39.36 = 2076
Cther Financlal Liabilities 18 (1| - 1 Fr | - 1 Fr g
Currant Liabilltdes
Financial Liabifities
Barmgwings F BE.D9 BE.04 = = 85.09
Trade Payahles a2 174.50 174.90 - - 174.90
Dther Financlal Liabllities® 3 e 0263 = = 92,63
393,59 35362 |y - ELES- |
As at 31t March, 2007
Man-Current Liabliitles
Financial Llabilities
Borrowings 7 7094 - 70.54 E 70.94
Dther Financial Liabilitias 18 0.40 - 040 . 0.40
Current Liabilites
Financial Liabilities
Bormowings 2 ED.B9 E0.29 = " BO.EZ
Trade Payahles 22 125.70 12570 - - 125,70
Dther Financlal Llabilities® 23 3.4 99,8 " = 99.41
357.34 286.00 .34 = 357.34
Az at 15t April, 2016
Nen-Current Liabllities
Financkal LiabiNtlas
Borrowings w 4,86 - 1986 - NS85
Diher Financial Liabilities 18 0.59 - 0.58 - 059
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings )| BY.E1 BA9.E1 - - H29.51
Trade Payables 2 2237 12237 - - 12237
Dther Financial Liakilitles® 23 90.36 90.38 - - 9036
41273 302,34 120,45 =  421m

* Sacurity Deposit recefved from customers are repayable on termination of agreament.
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Blarket risk

Market risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Markat
risk comprises three bypes of risk: forelgn exchange risk, Interest rate rsk and other price fsk, such as eguity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial
instruments affected by markeet sk include Indian rupes loans, forelign currency Ioans and buyer's credit,

Farelgn Exchange Risk

Fomelgn Exchange risk is the risk that the Falr Valuve or future cash flows of a financlal Instrument will flictuate because of changes in forelgn exchange
rates. The Companmy's exposure to the sk of changes in forelgn sxchange rates relates primarly to the Company's operating activitles (When revenue or
expense |s denaminated in a farelgn currency)., The Company wses forward exchange contracts to mitigate foreign exchange related sk pxposures. The
Company's exposure to unhedged foreign curmancy risk a5 at 315t March 2078 ,3%st March 2077 and 15t April 2016 has been disclosed (Refer Nobe 42),
Currency risks related to the prindpal amounts of the Company's US dollar bank loans, have bean hedged using currency swaps that matwre when due for

repayment.

Forelgn Curmency Risk Sensithiy

The following table demonstrate the sensitivity analysks on Profit before t5x due to change in US0 exchange rate, with all other varlables held constant,
Theimpact on the Company®s Profit Before Tax is due to changes in the FairValue of monetary assets and lablifties.

USD Sensitivity Analysis (¥ In Crores)

Year ended Year andad
Fist March, 2078 | Ist March, 20017

impact on Profit Before Tax dua to chiange in USO rate

brucrmasn by 2% 0.5 0.6

Decrease by 2% 10.25) {036}
The Company's unhedged foreign currency exposure denorminated in Euro & AED are insignificant, hende sensitivity analysis has not been disclosad,
Intarest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk s the risk that the FairValue or future cash flows of a Financial Instrument will fluctuate becavse of changes in market interest rates, The
Compary k& mainky exposed to intenest rate risk due to its variable intenest rate borrowings, The Interest rate risk arises due to uncertainties about the
future market inberest rate of thase bomowings.

Exposuns to Interest Rate Risk

Asat 3st March, 2008, the exposure Lo interest rabe sk due to variable Interest rate borrowings amounted 1oT 127 34 Crores (Previousyear T 118,99 Crones,
15t April 2076 T 145,74 Crones)

Interest Rabe Risk Sensitivity

The following table demaonstrate the sensithediby to @ reasonably possible change In Interest rate with all other varlables held constant. The impact on the
Compary's Profit Before Tax |5 doee to changes in the intensst ratos onvariable rate portion of loans & borrowings

Imterest Rate Sensithvity Analysis (¥ In Crones)

Yeur ended Year anded

Particulars st March, 2018 | Tist March, 2017

Impact on Prafit Befors Tax dus to change In Interest Rate

increase by 0.50 bps {0.25) {0.28)
Decrease by 0.50 bps 025 0.28
Price Risk
Equity Price Risk

The Company's Unquoted Equity instruments ana susceptible to market price sk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment. The
investment in Unguoted Equity Instrumeants is not significant.

Commuodity Price Risk

The key raw materasis used In the manufacturing of footwear are Matural Rubber, Synthetic Rubber, EVA and PU Materal, Price volatility of these
commodities depend mainly on the intemational market conditions and fluctuation in the price of crude oil and its dervatives. To mitigate the risk, the
Compamy has besn constantly monitoring the price trend In domestic and intemational market.

Hote 44 Caplisl Managemant
Capital includes Equity Share Capital and Other Equity attributable to the Equity holders of the Compamy. The Pimany objective of the Compamy's Capital
Management |5 to ensure that it malntaing an EMiclent Capital Structure and maximise the Sharehodder's Value,

The Compamy manages its Capital Structure and makes adjustments in light of changes In economic conditions and all the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the Capital Structure, the Compamy may adjust the dividend payment to Shareholders, return Capital to Shareholders or

Issue new shares.
|}
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Debt to Equity Ratlo { ¥ in Crores)
ER— Nete Ne. mmrm.!::;; st nm.?n:; 5t Apﬂl.::l‘:;
Eguity Sham Capital 15 o3 2.0 12.00
Other Equlty 1% 74318 594,36 47764
Total Equity %10 606.37 489.64
Mon Current- Borrowdng 7 35.36 T0.54 719,85
Debt to Equity Ratio 0,05 naz 0.24

Mo Changes were made In the objectives, polices or processas for managing Capital during the year ended st March, 2078,
Mote 45 Events Deocurring after the Balance Sheet Date

The Board of DNrectoes has recommended  dividend at the rate of ¥ 1.50 per share of face velue of ¥ 1/- each aggregating to ¥ 2176 Crores (Including
Dividend distribution tax of ¥ 3.7 Crones) for the year ended 31st March, 2018,

Muote 46 Collxterals
The Company has hypothecated fmortgaged its Current assets, Property Plant & Equipment as collatersl against its borrowing, (Refer Mote 17 & 21)

Mote 47 Releted Perty Transactions
In pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures” are as under
I} Names of Related Partles and Related Party Rolatlonship

{a) Individuals ownlng divecthy or Indirectly, an Interest In the voting power of the Company that ghres them Significant Influsnce over the
Company and Koy Management Personnel (KMP)

Mame Deslgnation

Mr, Ramesh Kumar Oua Managing Dérector
My, Muland Lal Dua Whaole Time Qirector
{b) Key Mamagement Persomnel (KMP)

Marms Daslgnatian

M. Bikhil Dua Whole Time Director
My, Deval Ganguly Whale Time Director

{c) Entities whars Indhviduals snd Key Mansgemant Persannal (KMP) s defined In Note 47 [1) (2} and 87 [T} [b) above Exerclss Significant
Influsnce.

MNama of Entitiss

Marvel| Palymars Private Limited

Relaxo Rubber Private Limited

Patel O Mils

5Sh. Rarnesh Kumar Dua (H.LLF)

Sh. Mulcand Lal Dua [H.LLF)

Sh. Mool Chand Dua (H.UF)

Relaxo Foundation

Shri Moal Chand Dua Mermaorial Society

{d) Relathves of Indhviduals owning divectly or Indirectly, an Intarest In the voting powar of the Company that ghves them Significant influsnce
over the Company and Relatives of Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mams Relationship

M=, Lisha Dua Wife of Whale Tirme Director
Ms. Lalita Dusa Wife of Managing Director

Mr. Ritesh Dua San of Whole Time Director
Mr. Witin Dua Son of Whola Time Director
Mr. Gauray Dua Son of Managing Director

Ms. Sakshi Dua Daughter of Managing Director
Ms, Rahul Dua Son of Managing Director
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(e} Independant Directors
Nama

Mr. Pankaj Shrimall

br. Kuruvila Kurigkose

Mr, Vivek Kumar

Ms. Deepa Verma

{F} Employes Group Gratuity Schems

Mame of trust

Trustees Aelaxn Footwears Limited Employes Growp Gratuity Scheme

il} Related Party Transactions

Entities where Individuals
HMP and having
Individuals Significant
exergise infleence ower

Significant the Campany
Influence and KMP

Hap

Relstives of
Individuals
and KMP

[ ¥ in Cromes)

Aent 731 1m

(a7} (0.38)
Dividend 003 =.82

(0.0% (3.50)
Short-term employes - 241
benefits- Salary - {241
Post-employment benefits- 029
Provident Fund and Gratulty - {0.29)

Long-tarm employes - -
banefits- Leave Encashmant - -

Contribution to Post
Empioyment Benefit Plan

Commission .50
(15.55)

Sitting Feas S -
Contrdbution towsnds C5A 178

Issue of Shares under “RFL 3 x
Employee Stock Option Plan : -
204" (in Mumber)

Cuarantees and Collaterals - 30451
taken® - [425.04)

Previous Year figures are given In brackets
* Off Balance Sheet item

0.73
{0.72)

DAL
{0.27)

zn
f1.72)

017
{01s)

0.03
{0.04)

24480

2.84
(279}

270
(162)

3.28
{3.00)

0.23
(0.40)

- n.as
- (nEE)

3.00
(5.40)

- B.40
- (713}

0.69
(D.84)

0.03
(0.04)

4.75 475

. Lo
- (1558

0:34 - 0.4
{011} x (0.1}
78

24480

304,51
(425,04}
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Hote 48 FalrValos Measuremants

The Fair Value of the assets and liabilities are included 2t the amount #t which the instrument could be exchanged in a cument transaction betvweesn willing
partias, otherthan in forced orliguidation sale.

The Following methads, sssumptions andvaluation technlque were used to estimate the Falrvalues

a) The Camying amounts of Cash and cash equivalents, Other bank balances, Trade recelvables, Trade payables, Borrowings and Other financial assets
and llabllities are considered same as thelrfalrvalue due to thelr short term nature.

b} Financlal Assets and Liabilitles with fiued and wariable Interest rates ame evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interast rates and
Individual credit worthiness of the counterparty.

c) The Management assessed that falr values of above finantial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying value due to amortised cost being
calculated based on the Effecthe Interest Rates,

d) The fair value of cross currency Interest rate swaps is determined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on obsenvable yield
CUPVES,

] The fakrvalue of forward exchange contracts and currency swaps is detesmined using fonward exchange rates at the Balance Sheet date.
FalrWalue Hierarchy
This sectlon explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the falrvalues of the financlal instruments that are recognised and measured at

fairvalue & amortised cost forwhich falrvalues are disclosed in the financial statements, To provide anindication about the reliability of the Inputs used In
determining fairvalue, the Compamy has classified its financial instruments intothe three levels prescribed = parind AS 13- "Fair Valua Maasurement"®.

Lewel 1; Quoted prices (enadjusted] In acthse markets for kdentical assets or (fablitles that the entity can access at the measurement date,
Level 2: Inputs otherthan quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the assetorllabllity, etther directhy or indirecthy,
Level 3: Unobsanable inputs for the asset of kabllity.

The below table provides comparision by class of Carying amount and Fair Value of the Compamy's Financial Instruments along with Feir Value Hierarchy.

i ¥ in Crares)
mu =B =
Financial Assets carried at
Amortised Cost
Non-Current Assets
Investments 3

Unquoted Bands - - 0.50 050 Leveld 0.50 050 Lewel3d
Loans 4
Loans to Employess 0.0z 002 Leeel3 0,08 006 Lewef3 o.om 007 Leweld
Security Deposits 1618 1618 Level3 .50 W50 Lewel3 13.70 1B Level3d
Other Financlal Assets 5
Share Application Money - - - - 020 00 Level3d
Balances with Bank held as o3 013 Lews2 03 033  Lewel 2 0.oo 0.00 Level2
bamngin Money
Current Assats
Imvestments | 050 050 Lewel3 < 3 < 2
Trade Recebeables 8 1\235 19235 Level3 1318 12398  Lewel3 10868 DEES Leweld
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 10 el Fd a1 Leveld 357 1581 Level3 par) |} 224 Lleveld
Other Bank Balances n 0.88 0.BE Level2 034 04 Lewei2 iR E] 033 Lewel2
Loans 12
Lowns to Emiployaes (1R ] 033 Level3 0.8 028 Leveld 0.29 029 Level3
Other Financlal Assets 13
Insurance Claims Recelvable omn om  Lewel3 0.5 035 Leveid [1 Be.r 022 Leveld
Interest acorued on Depasits 0.07 0.07 Levwel3 0.03 003 Lewef3 0.m 007 Leweld
and Bonds

A NS TLER 4168 12558 12599
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[ ¥ in Crores)
AsutFistMarch, 2018 | As wt Tist March, 2007 Ax mt 15t April, 2016

Particulzrs ‘ Nate No.

Financial Assets carried ot Fair
Value through Prafit or Losa
Non-Current Assets
Other Financial Assats -4
Oerlvatives D48 A8 Lewed 2 0.7 077 Lewvel 2 553 .53 Lewel 2
Current Asssts
Other Fnancial Assats 13
Derlvatives 1.07 1.07 Lewel 2 ans 305 Level2 596 598 Level 2
1.55 155 a2 3.82 .49 143
Financial Assets carried at Fair
Walue through Other Comprehenshm
Imcome
Non-Current Assats
Invrstments 3
Unguoted Equity Instruments 0.0 0.0 Level 3 0.2a 0.20 Level3 -
Firancial Liabllitias carried at
Amortised Cost
Non-Current Liabllitles
Barrowings Ll 382 3936 Ll 2 7094 7094 Level 2 THEE T985 Level 2
Other Financial Liabilities 18
FI:tl,!«!:Ei'rl:ll:lrlMr.n'l!'.I oA oA Lewed 3 040 0.40 Level 3 0559 059 Level 3
Current Liabiiitles
Barrowings F i B5.09 BED9 Lavel 2 G089 B0DB9  Level2 89.51 BR.E1  Level 2
Trade Fayzhles 22 M50 194.90 Level 3 12570 12570 Lewvel3 12237 13237 Lewvel3
Other Financial Liabiities 23
Current Maturities of Non Current .o IB.m Level 2 45,581 #4661 Level2 4068 4068 Lewel 2
Borrowings
Intenast accnsad on Bormpwings 0.50 0.50 Level 3 0.7 09  Level3 1.58 158 Leval 3
Security Deposits recehved from
Customers B.E3 B.63 Leved 3 8.29 579 Level3 839 833 Level3
Others 0,38 o038 Lewed 3 oAy 0.37 Lewvel 3 D0.25 025  Level 3
Unpaid Diwidend 0z 0z Level 3 0.09 003 Level3d 0.08 0.08 Level3
Payahle to Employees 50 2450 Lievel 3 1944 1944 Level3 18.24 1024 Level 3
Dérector's Commission Payable .50 21.50 Level 3 15,56 1556 Lewel3 490 M0 Level 3
Retention Money 4. 80 46D Level 3 252 252 Leveld 0.80 0LED  Level 3
Payahbe for Capital Goods 4,39 4.39 Level 3 2.56 256 Lewvel3 323 373  Lewel 3
393.59 33359 A55.34 35534 41.58 421.58
Financial Liabliktias carrbed at
Falr Walua through Proflt or Loss
Current Liabilitles
Crther Financial Liabilities 23
Derlvatives - - 2.00 200 Level2 121 121 Lewel 2

Thare were no transfers between any levels during the year.
The sensitivity analysis of inputs to Fair Valuetion of Irvestrnent carvied ot Fair Valee through Other Comprehensive Income, is not significent, hence

o dischosune |3 made.
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Note 48 Corporate Secial Responsibility

Company implements its C5R activities through a registered society , namely Relaxe Foundation which focuses on bringing change in the Ihves of
underprivileged communfties surnounding Relaxo Plants . The thrust area of the Relaxo Foundation is *Education & Skill Development] and "Health &
Hygizne’ with partioular focus onwomen, children and youth.

Cormpany has formed a CSA committes under Section135of the Companies Act 2013 forimplementation of CSA policy.

{7 in Crores)
Year anded Yaar ended
Particalors Figt March, 2018 | Ttst March, 2007
Ampunt reguired to be spent by the Company In acoordances with Section 135 of Companies Act 203 334 .78
Ampunt spant during the year (On purposs other than constrection facquisition of assets controlied by LT8
the Company) (Refer Mote 33)
Nets 50 Payment to Auditors® { ¥ in Crores)
Year ended Yaar ended
g Tist March, 2018 | Zist March, 2007
As Ruditor
Statutany Audit Fess omn 0.0
Tax Audit Fess - 0.04
In Dther Capaclty
Limited Review and Other Sendces o.av .08
. 0.

* included in Legal & Professional Expenses [Refer Note 33}

Hote 51 The Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Developmaent Act, 2008

The Information regasding Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the ® The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" (" The
Act”) has been determingd to the extent such parties have besn [dentified on the basis of Information recebved by the Compary (Refer Note 72}, The
impact of intenest, if any, that may be payable to Micro and Small Enterprises in accordance with the provisions of the Act Is not expected to be material,
hence not provided in the Books of Accounts. Further, Company has not received such daim for Interest from amywendor as at the Balance Sheet Date.

Hote 52 Sagmant Reporting

Dperating Segment

Baged on guiding principles ghen in Ind AS 108 on "Operating Segments®, the Company's business acthity falls within a Single Operating Segment
narmly, "Footwear and Related Prodects”, hence, the disclosure requinements redating to “Dperating Segrments” of Ind A5 108 are not applicable.

Caographical Segment { T in Crores)
R st
Revenue from
Within bndia 151587 160,845
Dutslde India 4B.57 50.08

196444 651,597

There is no Customer having revenue amounting to 10% or more of Comparmy's Total Revenue.

Maote 53 Authorisation for lssue of Financlal Statements
The Financial Statements were authorised forissue by the Board of Directors at thelrmeeting held on Tith May, 2078,
Mote 54 Rounding off

Figures have been mounded off to the neanest crone of rupees upto two decimal places, The figure 0.00 wherever stated meprosents valup |ess
than ¥ 50,000/-,

Note55 Regroupsd, Recast and Reclasstfied
Previous year flgures have been regrouped wWhenever necessany.

]
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Mote 56 Transition to lnd AS
These are the first Anancial statemants of the Company prepared in accordanoe with Ind A5,

The accounting policies set out in Note 36 have been applied in preporing the financlal statements for the year ended 315t March, 2018, the comiparative
information prasented In thase financial statements for the yearended st March, 2097 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS Balanca Sheet as at
15t April, 2076 {the date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in
financial statements prepared In aocordance with Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Compankes Act, 3003 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies [(Accounts) Rules, 2004 (IGAAP) and other relevant provisions of the act,

Exemptions
Ind A5 101 allows first-time adopters exemptions of certain requirements under Ind A5, The Company has applied the following exemptions:
Deemed cost for Property, Plant and Equipmaent, Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets

Ind A% 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the camying value for all of its property, plant snd equipment & caplitsl wark-in-progress 85
recognised in the financial statemnents as at the date of transition to Ind &5, measured s per IGAAP and use that as its deemed cost 45 at the date of
transition. This exemption can zlso be wsed for Intangibie Assets & Intanglble Assets under Development covered by Ind AS 38. Accordingly, the Company
has efected tomeasurne the above mentloned essets atIGAAP carmying value.

Exceptions
Estimates

On assessment of estimates made under the IGAAP financial statements, the Cormpany has toncluded that ther is no necessity to revise the estimates
under Ind AS, as there Is no objective avidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that were requined under Ind A5 but not required under
IGARAP are made by the Compamy for the relevant reporting dates reflecting onditions existing as at thatdate.

Classification and maasuement of financial assets
The Carmpary has classified snd measured the financisl assets on the basls of facts and elreurmstances that exist 2t the date of transition to Ind AS,
Da-racognition of financlal assets and llabiltles

Ind A5 107 reqguires a first-time adopter to apphy the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 105 prospectively for trAnsactions occurring on or after the date of
transition to nd AS. However, Ind AS 107 allows a first-time sdopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in ind AS 108 retrospecthvely from a date of
entity’s choosing provided that the information nesded to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial llabllities derscognised as o result of past
transactions was obtained at the tima of inltially acoounting for those transactions.

The Carmpany has slectsd to apply the de-recognition provizions of Ind A% 109 prospectively frorm the date of transition to lnd AS.

An explanation of how the transition from ICAAE to Ind AS has affected the Company's fimanclal posithon and financlal performance is set out In the
following tables and notes.
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Recanciliation between IGAAP and Ind AS
Ind A5 101 reguires an entity to reconcile Equity, Total Comprehenshe Income and Cash Flows for prior periods, The following tablas represent the
reconciiiations from IRAAP to nd AS.

#) Reconclilation of Equity { ¥ in Crones)

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equlpmant 3 480.08 (m.z8) 479.E0 452,51 i, 1) 452,30
Capital Work-in-Progress 5.9 = 6.9 799 " 793
Intangible Azsets 51322 - 6122 Bra2 - 6792
Intangible Assets under Development 0.5 = .51 024 " 0324
Financial Assets
Investmants 070 = 0.7n 0.50 " 0,50
Loans 14,56 - 14,56 13 - BN
Other Financial Assets b o3 0.77 o.s0 0. 552 573
DOther Non-Curment Assets a TS 0.26 4.0 5.30 0.23 553
BZ1.86 0.78 E23.61 5TR.48 55D 583.98
Current Assels
Imventares 290,21 - 290,00 285.84 = 2B5.84
Financial Assets
Trade Recehabies C 130 {0.53) 1318 108.69 - 108.559
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.5 - .5 2.4 - 1.4
Other Bank Balances 04 - 0. 013 = 013
Loans 0.28 = 0.28 0.9 - 0.29
Other Financial Assets b 0.38 3.05 3143 0.23 5.96 619
Other Current Assets ab 26.05 (0.a7} 25.58 145 {oa7) 2132
444,28 145 44572 &#78.51 57 424.70
Total Assits 10ETH 3.0 107034 99738 n.23 1008.68
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equlty Share Capital 12.0m - 2.0 12.00 - 12.00
Other Equity ek L8278 1.58 59436 46798 866 47764
Total Equity 604.73 1.58 GDEIT 479.58 .66 489.64
Liabllitles
Non-Current Liabilities
Finangial Liabllities
Bormowings b ESLEN 113 70,54 TZ.ome 6.B7 T9.B6
Other Financlal Liabllitles 040 Z 040 059 = 0.59
Provisians 136 - 7326 58 - 528
Defemad Tax Llabdlities [Net) d 28.34 [2.84) 25,50 im 13.75) 33,36
10581 . 10430 45,87 12 148,95
Currant Liabllitles
Financial Lizbilites
Bormowings B0.89 - B0.AS B84.51 - BS.E1
Trade Payahbles 12570 = 125.70 1E2.37 - 122,37
[ther Financial Liabilitias b 84.97 444 9541 B2.51 785 30.36
Other Current Liahilities F 54.52 1533 0.3 45.00 na B0
Provislons bef 18.88 {16,500 238 527 {20.55) 4,72
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 118 - 118 78 - 178
356.54 EFEE] 359.87 .54 {1.49) 370.05
Tatal Lisbilities 4532.35 1E2 4E31.57 5 163 518.04
Total Equity and Liabllites J0EY 3.20 1070,34 99733 nas 100868

® IGAAPR fipures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requiremenis for the purpose of this note.
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b} Reconciliation of Total Comprahensive Incoms for the year ended Fist March, 2017 [ ¥ in Crores)

INCOME
Revanue from Operations g 173584 {B7.87) 1651.97
Other Income b 3.54 1a.07 ER |
Totl income 174338 {7r.a0} 1665.58
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 5803 £ 5B043
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 054 . 14,54
Changes in Inventosies of Finished Coods, Stock-in-Trade 516 ; 516
and Wark-in-Progress
Exclze Duty on Sale of Goods q - 2082 .82
Employes Benefits Expanse hi N 4.83 7T
Finance Costs b 1518 (0115) 15.03
Dapreciation and Amortization Expense a G148 (00 5146
Orther Expenses abrg 5732 {99.85) A97.37
Total Expensas 1562.02 (a.47) 187155
Proflt Befare Tax 18138 (333} 17803
Tax Expansa
Current Tax 5133 . 5123
Deferred Tax (Credit) f Charge d 133 {.31) 1.02
Tant For Earlier years (Net) {07 : {oan
5838 (0.31) 58.08
Profit for the Year 122.97 {2.02) maas
Other Comiprehensive Income |
Items that will not be reclassifled to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement Gains / (Losses) on Defined Benefit Plan h = 15 1.5
Income Tax effect d - {1.23) {1.22)
- .19 .29
Total Comprehanshve Income for the Yaar 1.9 (0.73) 122.24

(Comprising Brofit and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)
* |IGAAP figures have been reclassified to conform o Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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Reconclllation of Equity { ¥ In Crores]

Notesio

First Time As ut At

Adoption Tiwt March, 2017 st April, 2096

Equity as par IGAAP E04.79 479.58
Adjustments
Falr Valuation of Derivatives b {0.73) (2.78)
Allewances for Doubrtful Trade Receivables £ (0.53) -
Proposed Dividend [including Dividend Distribution Tax) - - a8.67
Defemed Tax mpact d 2Ed 175
158 .66
Equity as per Ind AS BOE.3T 483,64
Reconclllation of Total Comprehansive Income {¥ in Crores)
Particalars
Profit after Tax as per IGAAP 122.57
Adjustments
Fair Valuation Galn on Derivatives b 2.03
Allowantes for Doubtiul Trade Recebvables c {0.53)
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan h RS
Share Based Payments i {1.32)
Defemed Tax impact d )|
[3.02)
Profit for the Year a5 par Ind AS 19,55
Other Comprihenshe Income (Mot of Taoes) gh.j 2323
Tetal Comprebensive Incoma as per lnd AS 18224

Fooinotes to the first time sdoption of Ind A5

a) Property, Plant and Equipmant

Under IGAAP, |easehold Land pertalning to windmill was shown under this head, The same |s accounted for as an operating leass under Ind AS, Thenefore,
tha net camying amount of such leasehold land as at st March, 2017 amounting to T0.28 crore (Tst April, 2016 ¥ 0.3 crome) has been classified underother
non current and ourrent assets. Other non curment and current assets as at 3ist March, 2017 have increased by ¥ 0,36 crore (ist April, 3096 T 0.29 crom)
and T 0L0Z crore {1st Aprll 2016 T 0.02 crore) respectively, Further, depreclation on such leasehold land amounting to T0.02 crone was redassified from
depreclation and amortisation expenss to other expenses, There is no impact on equity or profit and loss.

b) Derivatives

Under |GAAR the premium on forwand tontracts was amortised as expense over the tenure of the comtract. Further, the net mark to market losses on
derlvative financlal instruments, as &t the date of halance sheet, wers recognised In the statement of profit 2nd loss and the net gains, If amy, were
Egnored. Under Ind A%, such derhvative financial inctruments ane to be ecopnised at fair value and the changes are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss, Tharefom, unamortised premium on forward contracts as at 31st March, 2007 amounting to ¥ 0.0 crore {ist April, 2006 T .19 crone) under other

cuirent assets has been de-recognised and provision for mark to markest loss on outstanding derivative instruments with firm commitments as at st
March 2017 amounting to T 100 croees (15t Aprll, 2006 T 0.65 crore] classified under short termn provisions has heen de-recognised.

Underind AS, non current derivative assets as at 3ist March, 207 amounting to € 0.77 crore (15t April, 2016 ¥ 5.52 crores), current derivative assets asat
st March, 207 amounting to ¥ 3,05 crores {15t April 2006 ¥ 5.96 crores) and current dervative lobilites as at 31st March, 2077 amounting to € 2.00 crares
1=t April, 2076 ¥ 1. 29 crores) hove been recorded,

Further, the assoclated non curment borowings a5 ot 35t March, 2077 have increased by T 1.13 crores (15t April, 2006 T 6.87 crores) and other finandal
Habilities- current bormowings 25 at 315t March, 2077 have Increased by T 3,43 crores (15t April, 2006 ¥ BB cromns),

Az a result of the above adjustments, profit for theyear ended 315t March, 2017 Increased by ¥ 2,03 crores and totsl egulty as ot st March, 2017 decreased
by T0.73 crome (15t April, 2006 T 2.76 cromes),

) Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables

Under IAAR the Company created provision for doubtful debts when loss event Indicators are visible. Under ind AS, allowances for doubtful trade
recelvables has been determinged based on Life time Expected Credit Loss Model (ECL). As aresult, trade recelvables as ot 15t March, 2017 decreased

by T 0.53 crore (15t Aprl, 2006 NiTl). Consequenthy, total equity as at st March, 2017 decreased by T0.53 crone (15t Aprdl, 2006 Nify and profit for the year
ended I35t March, 2017 decreased by ¥ (.53 crore.
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o) Dafarred Tax

Under IGAAP, deferred tax was recognized using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting
profits for the period, Ind AS 12 requires entithes to account for defemed tax using the Balance Sheot approach, which focuses on temporary differences
between the carmying amount of an asset or liability In the Balance Sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind A5 12 approach has resutted in various
transitional adjustmests which lead to temporary differences which wene not reguired under IGAAR The iImpact on deferred tax liabliities (met) as at st
March, 2007 Is a decrease of T 2,84 crores (15t Apdl, 2016 T .75 crones), The deferred tax for the vearended 315t March, 2077 reduced by T 0.3V crore and the
impact of deferned tax on othercomprehensive incorme (DC1) s T 1.22 crones.

¢} Proposed Oividend

Under 1644 proposed dividend is recorded as a liability In the period towhich it relates respective of when it is declared. Under ind AS, proposed dividend
Is recognised as & Hability In the perlod Inwhich It is declaned by the Company Therefore, the propesed dhvidend, Including the dhvidend distribution taxon
suchdhvidend as 2t 15t April, 206 amounting to T B.67 crones has been de-recognised, Consequently, the total equity as at 1st Aprl, 2006 has Increased by
aneguivalent amount.

Under IGAAP the Company created o provision boward its llability for gift schermes. Under Ind A5, the consideration recelved 15 allocated between the
products sold and gift schemes. The fairvalue of gift schemes ks deferred and recognized a8 revenue (along with cost of gift schemes) when the obligation
Is actually redeemed by the customer or at the expiry of time perod of the scheme, Therefore, provision for sales promation schemes as at 35t March, 2017
amounting o € 1539 crores {1st April, 2018 € 1,21 crores) has decreased with a comresponding increase inothercument llabilities,

g} Revenus from Dperations

Under IGAAR. ceriain distounts and incantives to customers were disclosed a8 an expense in the statement of Profit and Loss, Under Ind AS, such
expensas have been netted off from revenue. Further, under POAAP, sale of goods was presented net of exclse duty, However, under Ind A5, sabe of goods
incldes excise duty and excise duty on sale of goods is separately presanted on the face of statement of Profit and Loss. &s a result, revenus fos the year

ended 315t March, 2077 is lewer by T 8787 crores, other expenses have decreased by T 108,55 crores and excise duty on sale of goods amaunting bo T20.82
crores is separately disclosed. There is no impact on total equity or Profit and Loss.

h} Remezsuremant of Defined Banefit Plan

Bothunder IGAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under IDAAR, the
wnting cost, Including actuarial gaing and losses, are charged to Profit and Loss, Undaer Ind AS, rermssuremants [comprising of actuarial gains and kosses,
the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts intluded in net interast on the net defined benefit ability and the retum on plan assats excluding
amaunts Induded in net interest on the net defined benefit llability] are recognised immediately In employee benefits expense with a comesponding debit
ar credit to retained eamings through other comprehensive income (0C1). Thus, the employee benefits expense increased by © 3.51 crones fior the year
andud 115t March, 2007 and remeasunamient gaing on defined benefit planof T 2,29 crores (et of tac) has beon recognised in other comprehansive income
(DL, Thereis no impact on total equiby as at 31st Manch 2017,

i) Share Based Payments

Under ILAAP the cost of eguity setthed employee share based payment plan was recognised using the Intrinsic value method wherein the difference
batwien market price and exercise price was all. Under ind AS, the cost of squity settied employes share based payment plen 15 recognised based on fair
valuation method using an appropriate pricing model over the vesting pariod, Accordingly, amployes benafits expanse for the yearended 315t Manch, 2017
increased by T 1.32 crores. There s no Imipact on total equity since the amount Le. © 316 crones as at 31st March, 2007 (15t Aprl, 2006 T 2.80 crores) has
been recognised withinequity,

[} Other Comprehensive Income

Under IGAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehansive income (00} separately. Items of income and expense that are recognised kn "other
comprehenshve Income® Includes remeasurement of defined banefit plan. Further, IGAAP Profitis reconclled o total comprehensive Income as perind AS.

k) Retained Earnings

Retained Edmnings as at 15t April, 2006 has been adjusted consequent to thieabove Ind A5 transition adjustmants,
I} Statement of Cash Flows

The transitlon from [CAAPto Ind AS has not had a material Impact on the Statement of Cash Flows.

As per our report of even date Faor 2nd an behalf of the Board of Oirectors

For B R Mahaswarl & Co LLP Ramesh Kumar Dua Mukznd Lal Dua

Chartered Accountants Managing Oirector Whole Thme Directar

Firm's Reglstration Ro, DOT035N/N500050 OIN :DOS7872 OIN :D0Te7E98

Sudhir Maheshwarl

Partner

Membership Mo. BEI0MS Sushll Batra Vikas Kumar Tak
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretany

Dl 11th May, 2018
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x RELAXO

RELAXO FOOTWEARS LIMITED

Corporate Identity No. L74899DL1984PLC019097
Registered Office : Aggarwal City Square Plot No. 10 Manglam Place, District Centre, Sector-3 Rohini Delhi -110085
Tel. No.: +91-11-46800500, 46800600 Fax No.: 91-11-46800692 E-mail: rfl@relaxofootwear.com, Website: www.relaxofootwear.com

Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of The Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of Member
Registered Address

Email id
Folio No / Client No :
DPID
I/ We, being the Member(s)of____ shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:
(1) Name: Address:
E-mail Id: Signature: or failing him;
(2) Name: Address:
E-mail Id: Signature: or failing him;
(3) Name: Address:
E-mail Id: Signature:

as my/ our Proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the THIRTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company, to
: beheldonThursday, the 27" September, 2018 at 10.30 a.m. at Sri Sathya Sai International Centre, Lodhi Road Institutional Area, Pragati Vihar, New Delhi -
110003 and at any adjournment thereof inrespect of theresolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No. Resolution
Ordinary Business
1 To consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended

31.03.2018, which includes Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year
ended on that date togetherwith the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2 To declare dividend @ 150% equivalent to ¥1.50/- on each equity share of Face Value of % 1/- each for the
Financial Year, 2017-18.

3 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua (DIN - 00157872) who retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for reappointment.

4 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mukand Lal Dua (DIN - 00157898) who retires by rotation and being eligible

offers himself forreappointment.Special Business

Special Business

5 Reappointment of Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua (DIN - 00157872) as Managing Director of the Company and fix his
remuneration.
6 Reappointment of Mr. Mukand Lal Dua (DIN - 00157898) as Whole Time Director of the Company and fix his
remuneration.
7 Reappointment of Mr. Deval Ganguly (DIN - 00152585) as Whole Time Director of the Company and fix his
remuneration.
8 Reappointment of Mr. Vivek Kumar (DIN - 00206819) as Independent Director of the Company.
9 Reappointment of Mr. Pankaj Shrimali (DIN - 00013142) as Independent Director of the Company.
10 Reappointment of Mr. Kuruvila Kuriakose (DIN - 00881039) as Independent Director of the Company.
n Approval for payment of Commission to Non-Executive Directors.
- Signed this day of 2018
Signature of Shareholder: Affix
: Revenue
© Signature of Proxyholder: Stamp

. NOTES:
: 1. Thisform of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, at Aggarwal City Square Plot
No.10 Manglam Place, District Centre, Sector-3 Rohini Delhi-110085, not less than FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS before the commencement of the Meeting.

: 2. Aproxyneednot be amemberofthe Company.
(X 3. FortheResolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the THIRTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company.



RELAXO

RELAXD FOOTWEARS LIMITED
Corporate Identity Mo, L74BSS0L1984PLOOMSDST
Registered Office : Apgarwal City Square Plot Mo, 10 Mangiam Place, District Centre, Sector-3 Rohind Delhi 110085
Tel. Mo.: +51-11-46E00500, 46800600 Fax Me.: 31-1-46800652 E-mall: fi@relaxofootwear.com, ‘Website: www.relaxofootwear.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
3dth Annual General Meeting - Thursday, I7th September, 2078 at 10.30 a.m.

Name and Reglstered Address of the sole/ first member:

Mameis) of the [oint Member{s) if any
Registersd Folio Mo/ OP 10 Mo B Client 10 Mo,
Mumber of Shares held

1w certify that [/We armfare reglstered sharehobder/prowy of the Company:

IfWe hemeby record my/our presence at the 34™ Annual General Mesting of the Company at 5r Sathya Sai International Centre. Lodhi Road,
Institutional Area, Pragati Vikar, New Dalhi-110003 on Thursday, the 27" September, 2018 3t 10.30a.m.

Slgnature of Flrst Prosy/Holder Slenature of Second Prony/Holdes Signature of Third Prowy/ Holder

Mote +
Please complete this attendance slipand hand it over at the entrance coun'ter at entrance of the hall.

FOR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE MEMBERS

Members may please note the user |d fpassword etc., ghven below for the purpose of e-voting in terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Auls 20 of the Companies {(Management and Administration) Aulbes, 2004, Detadled Instructions for e-voting are given [n the ACM Natice.

Electronic Voting Particulars
EVEN (E- Voting Event Mumber) LUSERID PASSWORD

MOTES:-

1. MembersProsy holders ame requested to bring their coples of the Annual Report with them to the mesting.
2. For the comaenlence of Members, persons other than Membems/Proxies will not be allpwed into the mesting,
3. Mo GIft/Gif Coupans will ba distributed at the Annual Ceneral Mesting.
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of Aelins Footwears Limited will be held at 5r Sathya 5al intemational
Ceertre, Lodhi Road institytionad Ama, Pragati Vika, New Delld -T0003 on
Thursday, the IT" day of September. 2098 a1 10.30 am, o transact the
Foligwing Business:
DR DINARY BUSIMESS
1 Toconsider, approve and adopt the Audited Financlal Staterments
of the Company for the year ended 31,03,2078, which Includes
Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2018 and the Profit and Loss
Account for the yearended on that date topether with the Reports
of Directors and Auditors thenecn,
1. Todeclare dividend @ 150% equivalent to ©1.50/- on each equity
share of Face Valueof ¥ 1/-each for the Financial Year 2017-18,

3. To appoint @ Director in place of Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua
(DIN - DENSTETZ) whi retires by rotation and being ebigibie affers
hirrrseit fos reappointment.

4. To appoint 3 Director in place of Mr Mukand Lal Dua (DIN -
DOISTASE] who retires by rotation and being eligible offers
el for reappointrment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
5. REAPPOINTMENT OF MR, RAMESH KUMAR DUA. AS MANACING

BIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To conslder and, if thought fit, to pass the following msalution as

Speecial Resolution:

“AESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 143,188,196,

197 and 201 read with Schedule  and ather applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 72013 and the Companies (Appointment and

Aemuneration of Managerial Personnel} Aules. 2004 or any other

relievant rules B provisions (including amy statutery madification(s) or

re-enactment theresf for the time being in force) thersol. consent of

Shareholders be and is herely accorded to the m-appointment of M

Ramesh Kumar Dua (DIM - O01STETZ) as Managing Director, {liable to

rethre by rotation), for 2 period of five years with effect from 1 day of

Aprl, 2019 on a Monthly Remuneration of ¥ 15,00,000/- and such

othei allowances, perquisibes, benefits and amenities as set out in

Statement anneced to the Notice comvening this Meeting,
wilth [iberty to the Board of Directors to akter and vary the terms and
cond|tiensfor remuneration, subject to the same not excesding the
limilts specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any
statutory modiications) or re-enactmaent thereof”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT n the absence of inadegquacy of the
prafits in amy year, Mr, Ramesh Kumar Dua shall be sntitied to recelve
and be paid as minimum remuneration in that year by way of salang
allowances, perquisites and other benefits a3 statzd in the
Explanatory Statement herstn, subject to the ceiling as specified
under Schedule V' and any other provisions of Companies Act, 2013
{including amy statutory modifications and re- enactments thereof) '
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby
guthorised to slgn and execute such documentsfwritings of other
papers as may be necessary and 1o do aif such acts, deeds, matters and
things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, proper.
desirable, expedient or Incidental for the purposs and to settle any
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise In ghing effect to this
rasolution.”

6. REAPPOINTMENT OF MR, MUKAND LAL DUA, AS WHOLE TIME
PIRECTOR OF THE COMPAMNY.
To consider and, IF thought fit, to pass the following resolution as
Special Aesolution:
"AESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 1431848136,
197 and 203 read with Schedule ¥ and other applicabie provisions of the

Companies Act, 2073 and the Companies [Appainiment and
Rermuraration of Mansgerial Pesonnel} Rules, 20 or ary other
relevant rubes b provisians {including amy statutory modification(s) or
re-enartment thereol for the time being in force) thereal, consent of
Shareholders be and i heretry sccomded to the re-appointrment of ki
Miukand Lal Dia, (DIN - DOTSTR98) as Whole Time Ditector, (lable 1o
retine by rotation), for a period of five years with effect from 1" day of
April, 2019 on & Monthly Remuneration of T15.00,000/- and such
other allowances, perquisites, benefits and amenitles as set out In
Explanatory Staternent anneoed to the Notice convening this Meeting.
with liberty to the Baasrd of Directors to alter and vary the terms and
conditions/oi remuneration, subject to the same not exceading the
limits speciied under Schedule V' to the Compenies Act, 2073 o any
statutary madificatian(s) or re-enactment thereaf™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT In the absence or inadequacy of the
profits in eny year, Mr. Mukand Lal Dua shall be entitied fo recsive and
be paid a3 minimum emuneration in that year by way of salany
allowances, perquisites and other benefits as stated in the
Explanatory Statement meretn, Subjact tn the cefling a5 specified
under Scheduls V and any other provisions of Companies Act, 203
{inciuding any statutory modifications and re-snactments thereof).
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and Is hereby
suthorised to slgn and execute such documents/writings or other
papers as may be necessary and to do afl such acts, deeds, matters and
things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, proper,
desirable, mxpedient or Incidental for the purpose and to setthe any
guestion, difficulty or doubst that may arse in ghing sffect to this
rasolution.”

REAPPOINTMENT OF MRA. DEVAL CANGULY, AS WHOLE TIME
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY,

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as
Special Resohution

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections W4, 188, 19§,
157 and 703 read with Scneduie ¥ and other appiicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies [Appolntment and
Remureration of Mensgerial Personnel) Rules, 2004 or any other
ralpvant rules & provisions (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment themeof for the time being in force) thersof, consent of
Shareholders be and & hereby acconded bo the re-appolmtment of Mr.
Deval Ganguly, (DIN -001S2585) as Whole time Director, (1lsbls to retire
by rotation), for & period of three years with effect from 5% day of
Hovember, 2008 on & Monthly Remuneration and such other
allowances, pirqulsites, beneflts and amenities as applicable to the
Company's Exscuthas In the similar grade and on the rms §nd
conditions Including memuneration as set owt in Explanatory
Statemant anneusd to the Notice corvening this Meeting, with by
to the Board of Directers to aiter and vary the tenms and conditions for
rermuneration, wublect 10 the sarme not exceeding the imity ypecitied
under Schedule V o the Companies Act, 2073 of any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactrment thereo™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the absence o inadequaty of the
profits in amy year, M Deval Canguly, shail be entitied to recebve and be
paid the same remuneration as minimum remunerathon in that year by
way of salary, allowances, perqulsites and other benefits as stated in
the Cxplanatory Statement hermto, subject to the celllng as specified
under Schoduls W and any other provisions of Companles Act, 2013
{including any statutory modifications and re-enactments thereof).*
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and |s hereby
authorised to sign and smcute such documents/writings or other
papers a5 may be nECEssary and tm do all such acts. deeds, matters and
things as it may, in i3 sbsolute discretion, deem Necessary, proper,
desirable, sxpadient or inciderial for the purpoas and o settie any
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in giving sffect to this
respiution.”



5. REAPPOINTMENT OF MR. VIVEK KUMAR, AS AN INDEPENDENT

PIRECTDR OF THE COMPANTY.

To consider snd, if thought fit, to pass tha following resalution a
Special Besobution

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read
with Scheduls IV and all other applicable provisions of the Comipanies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directars) Rules, 2004 (Including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being In force) and SEBI (LODR)
th;llthm,!m.ﬂr.'ﬂntﬁmar{ﬂi-mm
Dirwctor of the Cornpany, wha has submitted a declaration that he
maowts the critera for indapendence as provided In section 149(6) of the
:mmm.amnmhhmu-:ppmmunmmwﬂm
Diractor of the Comparmy to hold office for fve consecutive years fora
tmren from 1% April, 2079 to 31" March, 2024 snd whoss office shall not
b liabile ko retire: by rotation on such terms and conditions as set out in
Explanatory Statement annexed to the Motice convening this
Merting *
REAPPOINTMENT OF MR. PANKA| SHRIMALI, AS AN
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY,

To consider and, If thought fit, to pass the following resolution &5
Special Resplution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read
with Schidule IV and all other applicable provislons of the Companies
Act, 3013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Diractors) Aules, 2004 (including any statutory modification(s] or re-
gnactment thereof for the time being In force) and SEGI (LOOR)
Regulations, 2015, Mr. Panicaj Shrimall (DIN - DEOTIN4Z), independent
Dirsctor of the Company, who has submitied & declarstion that he
rmaets the criteria for independence as provided in section 149(8) of the
Companies Act, 2013, be and is naretny re-appointed a3 an independent
Director of the Company to bold office for five consecutive yean fora
twrrn from T° April, 20709 to 37 March, 2004 gnd whens offics shall not
b bl to retire by rotation on such tenms and (onditions & et outin
Explanstary Statement annexed to the Notice convening this
Merting”
REAPPOINTMENT OF MR, KURUVILA KURIAKQSE. AS AN
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY,

To consider and, IF thought fit, to pass the following resolution as
Spechal Resolution:

YRESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read
with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Mict, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Dirsctors) Rules, 2074 (Including any statutory modificationis) ar re-
gnactment thareof for the time being in force) and SEBI (LODR)
Aegulations, 2015, Mr. Kuryvila Kuriakose (DIN - 0O8E1039),
independent Director of the Company, who has submitted a
dheciarat bon thit he mests the criteria for independente & provided in
wection 143{E) of the Companies Act, 7073, be and is himby -
appointed as an indepencent Dimector of the Company to hold of fice for
fhve consecutive years for a term from ™ Agril, 2009 to 37° Marh, 2024
nd whose office shall not be liable to retine by rotation on such tenms
and condfitlons a8 set out in Explanatory Stetement annexsd to the
Notics comvwening this Meeting”

. APPROVAL FOR PAYMENT OF COMMISSION DN NET PROFITS TO
MON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY,

To consider and, If thought fit, to pass the following resolution as
Speclal Resolution:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 197, 198, and sl otherapplicable
provisions of the Companies Act. 3013, provisions of SEBI (Listing
Dbdigations and Discirsure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and any
other applizable Laws [with o without modifcations), in sddition to
the Liting fees being paid/payabie for attending the meetings of the
Boasd of Directors of the Company and its Committees thereof, the

Company be and Is hersby suthorised to pay to s Non-Exscutive
Dirgctors [other than the Managing Director and Whols-time Dirctons
of the (ormpany] such commission 2s the Board of Directors may from
time to tme determine (to be divided amongst them in such
propartion as may be determined by the Basrd of Directors from time
to tirme) &0 that such commission shall not exceed T% of the net profits
of the Company in any financial year (computed in the manner
previded in Section 138 of the Cormpanies Art, 2013)."

By Order ol the Buarnd

For Relans Footwes s Limited

Wikims Muwmas Tak

D, 11" Mary, 2078 Campany Secrelsny
MOTES:-

!

F

a2

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2003 with respect to sperial business set out in the
Motics is snneaed

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEMD AND VOTE AT THE ANMUAL
GEMERAL MEETIME IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT & PROXY TD ATTEMD
AND VOTE ON A POLL ON HIS BEHALF IN THE MEETING INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF AND THE PROXY WEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT
EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE
THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS PROVIDED THAT A MEMBER
HOLDING MORE THAM TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A
SINCLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ALT AS
PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSOM OR SHARFHOLDER.

Corporgts Mambers intending to send their authorined represniathe
to attend the Mesting are equested to send a rertified copy of the
Board Resolution sUThortzing thesr rEqUEsEntative to attend and wots
o thieit betalf at the Meeting,

The praxy, in arder to be effective, must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, Aggarwal City Square, Plot No.-0, Mangiam
Piace, District Centre, Sector-3 Rohinl, Delhi -NO0ES of it Reglstrar
and Share Transfer Agent /s, Kany Computershare Private Limioed,
Karvy Selenlum Tower 8, Plot 31 & 32, Financlal District,
Manakramguda, Gachlbowdl, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500032, not less
than farty eight hours before the commencement of the mesting.

The Reglster of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company
will rernaén closed frem 21 September, 2008 tm 26 Septamber, 2078
{both days inclusiva) in connection with ths ALM and for the purposs
of Dividand.
wlmutlﬂﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬂﬂhh_mm‘
March, 8 s recommended by the Board, [ deciamd ot AL will be
pavabls to thoss members whose name appeat on the Company's
Register of Members at the close of business hours on 207 Septembes,
28,

Members holding shares in physical form are advised to notify the
Registrar and Share Transter Agent of the Company of any change in
thelr addresses mmiediately,

Membare holding shars In demat form are advised to notily thal

respective depository participant of any changes in their addresses
and particulars of thelr bank sccounts immediatedy.

10. Mambars who ans yet to register their emall addresses with the

Compamy or with the Depositony are once again requested to register
the same. The ferm for registration of emall addresses
with Compary can be downloaded from the [ompary's webiite
wewre relanstooTeear Com

. kemberns/Procies sie reguested to produce the attendanoe slip, duly

cormpirted and signed, for admission to the mesting hall.



12. Purmant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2073,
iy dividwnd, which remaing enpaid or unclaimed for § period of seven
year shall be transferred to lnvestor Education snd Protection Fund,
Mamberi who hove not encashed thelr dividend warrants srs
regussted to send back their warmants for evalidation o lodgs their
rlaims to our Fegistrar and Share Transfer Agent.

Membery are advised that once the unclaimed dividend |a transferred
to the above fund, no daim shall lie from the company In respect
therect.

13. The annusl report of the Campany cliculated to the Membaers of the
Company, will bea made available on the Company's websita
www. el axofootwear.com,

W, Pursuant to the requirements of SEB| [LODR) Regulstions, 2015 and
Secretarial Standards -2 on General Mestings, the information about
thie Directors proposed to be appointed [ re-appointed are furnished
and farms a part of this Metice.

5. In terrms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule
10 of the [ompanies [Management and Adminivtration) Rules, 204,
the Company has engaged the senvices of M/s iarvey Computershare
Private Limited to provide the facility of slectronic vating (e-voting) in
rspect of the Aesclutions proposed at this AGM. The Board of
Directors of the Company has appointed M/s Baldey Singh Kashtwal,
Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer for this purposs.

16, E-Voting Instructions:

The detalled procedure and Instructlons for remote e-voting ane as under:

{(A) In case a Member receives an emall from Karvy [for Members
whose emall IDs are registered with the Company/Depository
Participants {s)]:

L Launch internet browser by typing the URL:
hittps:/ wvoting. karny.com.

i Enter the login credentisls [Le. User 1D and paisword B8
marticned i emal). in case of physical folio, User 10 will be
EVEN (E-Vioting Event Number) woex followed by folio
numbes. in case of Dermnat account, User |0 will be your OP 1D
and Chent I0. However, if you are already mghtersd with
Karvy for e-voting, you can usa your exdsting User |0 and
password for casting yourvote.

Il Afterentsring these detalls appropriately, click on “LOGIN®,

hv. You will now reach password change menu whareln you ae
mequired to mandatorly change your pessword, The new
pasyword shall comprise af minimum B characters with at
least one upper case (A~ Z), one lower case (a-2), che numeric
wvalue (0-5) and a special character (@, 8.5, wtc). The system
will promipt you to change your passwornd and update your
contact details like mobile number, srmsll 10 etc on first login
¥ou may also enter 3 secret question and anewer of your
thoice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. B is
strangly recommended that you do not share your pesswornd
with sy other person and that you taks utmert cer to kg
your pasyword confidentizl.

Y. ¥You peed tologin again with the new credentials,

wl. On succasstul login, the system will promipt you to salect the
“EVENT" for Relaxo Footwears Limited, as menticned In the
amall forwarding the Notice of AGM slong with Annual
Report of the Company, in cese of membars recelving the
documants in slectronic farm and In the enclosed “Electronic
Voting Particulars”, in case of @ member recelving the
dotuments in physical fomm.

vil. On the voting page, erter the number of shares [which
represents the number of votes) a5 on the cut-off date under
“FORJACAINST® o aitermatively, you My partially enter amy
number in “FOR™ and partially "AGAINST™ but the total

number in “FOR JACAINST® taken together shall not sxcesd
your total sharsholding as mentioned henein above. You msy
wlso choows the option ABSTAIN. F the Member dowi not
indicate sithar “FOR™ or “AGAINST™ it will be trested as
TADSTAINT and the shares held will not be counted under
wither haad.

vill. Members holding multiple folies/demat accounts shall
chooss the voting process separataely for each
folle/demat sccounts.

le. Voting has to be done for each item of the notice separataly.
In case you do not desire to cast your vote on eny specific
Ftwm, |t will be treated as abstained,

i You may then cast your vote by selecting &n appropriate
option and click an “Submit®,

®l. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “0K” to confirm
Else "CANCEL" to modify. Once you have voied on the
resgiution(s). you will not be allowed to modiy your vote.
Duirtng the woting peniod, Members can login any rumber of
s 1l thery harve voted on the resolutionds].

mii. Corporate/institutional Members (e other than indhdguals,
HUF, NR wic.) are also required to send scanned certifled trus
copy [POF Farmat) of the Board Resolution/Authority Litter
etc., together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly
authorlwad mpresentativels), to the Scrutinlzer ot emall with
a copy marked to gyating@kany.com. The scanned image of
the above mentioned documents should be in the naming
farrnat “RELAXD_Evant No.®

{B) iIn case of Members recelving physical copy of Notice [far Members
whase email I[y are not registened with the Company/ Deporsitory
Participants (x)):

. E-Voting Event Number - X000 (EVEN), User ID and
Fassword & provided on the cover page of notice.

i Pease follew all steps from SL No. (i) to [di) sbove to cant
yousr vt by Blectonic means.

Other Instructions

a] In case of any query andjor grievance, in respect of voting by
electronlc means, Members may refer to the Help & Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting user manual avallable at
the downlosd section of https://eveting karey.com (Karvy
Website) or contact Mr. G Ramesh Desai, (Unit: xyz ) of Karwy
Computershens Private Limited, Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-
32, Cachibowdl, Financial District, Nanakrarmnguda, Hyderabad
Telgngana - 500 032 or at evoting®lcansy com or phone no. 040 -
BT 131 or call Kanwy's toll free Mo, T-BOD-34-54-007 for ary
further claifications.

Bl Voucan abus update your mabile numiber and e-rmall id in the s
profile detail of the folio which may be used For sending futurs
MmN o).

€] In cass any pemon becomes member of the Company after
dispatch of Natics of ALM and holds shares as on the out-off date
for e-vating |.e., 20° September, 2018, he/she may otrtain the User
|0 and Passward In the manner as menthoned below
I. I moblle number of the member is reglstered sgainst

shares held In demat form, the member may send SMS:
MYEPWD<apaces DP I0 Client 10 to 9212993399

Example for NSDL:
MYEPWD <5PACE > INT2345612 345678
Example for COSL:
MYEPWD < SPACE > 07 345617345678

il H the mobils member of the member b registersd sgaine
shanes hitid in phvysical form the member may send S5
MYEPWD-cipace> Event no. « Folio na. to 32129931399,



Example for Physical:
MYEFWD <SPALCE> X3 1234567890

iil, If e-mail address or mobile number of the member |z
mgistered against Folio Moo / OP ID Client |0, then on the

home page of hitps://evoting. kansy.com, the mamber may e
click “Forgot Password”™ and enter Folle Mo, or 0P 10 Client 1D

and PAN to generate  passward,
.  Membarmaycall Kany's toll free number 1800-3454-00,

¥, Member may send an e-mail request to evoting®kansy.com,
Howewer, Karvy shall endeavor to sand User 1D and Password

o those new Members whose email ids are available.

d) Once the vote on @ resolution | cast by a Member, the Member
shall not be allowed to modify it subsequently, The Company shall
glso provide facilfty for voting through polling at the Meeting and
membess attending the meeting who have mot already casted

vt gt thie AGM. A Member can opt far only single made of vating

Le. through Remote e-vating or voting at the AGM. If a Member

casts votes by both modes then voting done through Remote e-

voting shall prevall and vote at the ALM shall be treated as imalid.

The Membars who have casted theirvote by mmote e-voting prior

1o the meeting may alse attend the meeting but shall not be

entltled to cast thelr vote again,

f) The voting rghts of the Members shall be in proportion to the
paid-up value of their shares in the equity capital of the Company
a5 on the cut-off date [.e. the record date), being 207 September,
2B, & person who ks not @ member as on the cut-off date should
traat this notice forinformation purpose ony.

g] Theresults shall bedeclared on or after the AGM. The results along
with the Serutinlzer's Repart, shall alsa be placed an the website
of the Company and Karvy's wabsite (https:/ fevoting kanny.com].

theirvote by remate e-voting shall be able to exercize their dght ta
A The details in rupﬂufunﬂ-lln-lﬂli_hll Ihnﬂ.ul‘mmd_uuﬁn said Fund mli'-_‘uhhl-

Date of Bue date Amount of
Financial Datw of Transfer to Last date presstalpl Unclalmed
Year Declaration Dividand fa Claim to IEPE Diwidend as an
AfC noa2me(r)
208-1 20.09m 26.10M 251018 4mae E4947.00
207112 17.0942 733042 21n¥E A8 S4778.00%
2mza3 15.0913 251003 41020 23amn.2o 138262.00
201314 18.09.14 243014 23304 2212 164314.00
2415 24.0815 301005 29.10,22 a2 T85188.00
201518 15.08.16 2036 J0.10.23 19.1.23 239965.80
ey L0837 2Roar 26.10.24 25124 J93a48.00

* The unpald dividend for the Financial Year 201712 represents dermand draft issued to the shareholdess which ame yet to be encashed
18. information pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI [Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements] Regulstions, 2015 and the Secretarial
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE iL_COMMISSI0N

COMPANIES ACT, 2013
itemMNo.GEE

Mr. Ramash Kumar Dua was re-appointed a5 Managing Director and
Mr. Mukand Lal Dua was re-appointed as Whole Time Directorwee.f 17
April, 2074 in the Annual General Meeting held on 19" day of
Septamber, 23, The term of appointrmeent shall explre on 37 day of

March, 2000,

In view of large contribution in the growth of the Compamy and tha
background and expedence of Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua & Mr. Mulkand
Lal Dua, the Board of Directors at its meeting beld on May 11, 2018,
based on the mecommendation of Momination and Remameration
Committee and subject to the approval of shareholders at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting has re-appointed Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua as
Managing Director and Mr. Mukand Lal a5 Whaole Time Director of the
Company for fiveyaans on the terms and conditions given below ;-

1. PERIOD: Five years commencing fram 1 dayof April 2019

2. REMUMERATION:

I. SALARY
Salary per month effective form
Name and Deslgnation 15t day of April, 2008
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua 15, 00,000/~

| ME Mukand Lal Dua

£ 15,00,000/-

In addition to the salany, Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua and Mr
Mukand Lal Dua, shall be entitled to recelve Commission on
the net profits as decided by the Board of Directors each year
subject to the provisions of Section 198 and other relevant
sections and rules of the Companies Act, 2013, so that the
total remuneration by way of salary, deamess allowance,
perguisites, commission and other allewances shall not
exceed 5% of its net profits for such single managerial person,
the total remuneration paid to all such managerial parsons
shall not exceed 10% of the net profits.

In addition tothe above remuneration, Mr, Ramesh Kumar Dua
and Mr. Mukand Lal Dua shafl be entitled for following
perquisites :-

a) Contribution to Provident fund, Superannuation fund or
Annuity Fund to the extent these elther singly or put
together are not taxable underthe Income Tao Act, 1961.

b} Dther Perquisites also include use of Company's Car
with driver, Club Membership Fee subject to mazimum two
clubs, Medical Insurante, Group Persomal Accidental
coverage 25 applicable to all emiployees of the Company
from time to time and reimbursement of entertainment
and all other expanses incwmed by him for business of
Company a5 per the Company Rules.



OverallRemuneration

The tatal emuneration payable to Mr. Ramesh Kumar Oua and
Me. bukand Lal Dua by way of salery pergulsites, allswances,
benafits and amenities as spproved by the Board shall not
excesd the limits laid down In Section 157, 198 and othaer
relevant provisions of Companies Act, 20013 or any statutory
meadifications or re-enactments themeof.

Minimum Remuneration:

In the absence of or Inadeguacy of profits In any year, Mr,
Rarnesh Kurnar Oua and Me. Mukand Lsl Dua shall be entitied
to receive and be paid as minkfmum mmureration in that year by
wizy of salary, allowances, pemuisites and other benefits in that
yeEar, subject to the celling specifled under Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2003 (including any statutory modifications and
na-anactrmaernt thereaf},

#r. Ramesh Kumar Oua and Me. Mukand Lal Oua shall not be pald
any sitting fees for attending meetings of the Boand of Directors
and Committees from the date of thelr re-appointment,

dr, Mukand Lal Oua Whole Time Director of the Company Is
related to Mr. Nikhil Dua,

#r. Ramesh Kumar Dua and Mr. Mukand Lal Dua are Interested n
resolution no. & Mr. Mukand Lal Duwa, Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dua and
Mr. Nikhll Dua, Directors are interested in resalution no. 6,

Mone of the other Direckors or Key Mensgedal Personnel of the
Company and thelr relatives are, in any way, concamed ar
interested in the resclutions no. 5 & 6.

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dus holds experience of 42 years in
Management, sales @nd marketing, production and new product
development In Footerear Industry. He is a Commene Graduate &
Rubber Technologlst (LPRI, Londan), He ks one of the Promaoters of
the Company. He along with Mr. Muliand Lal Dua ls instrumental In
making Relaxo, a langest manufacturning company in India. Under
his stem leadership the Company s achieving new heights every
yvear. He s one of the key member who has created keadership
team, helped Relaxs to become one of the best corporate
govemarice and professional Company.

#r. Mukand Lal Dua has 45 years of experlence in management,
new product development and guality control in footwear
industry. Mr, Mukand Lal Dua s a Sclence Graduate and one of the
Promaoters of the Company. Mr. Mukand Lal Dua is going to attain
age of 70 years during the propased tenure, howeser consldering
his experience and fitness it s considered that he will be able to
stearthe Company to new helghts and will be a gulding force o the
senkor management team.

During the last 5 years under the leadership of Mr. Ramesh Kumar
Dua and Mr. Mukand Lal Dua the Company has grown

meponentialy as perfoliowing detalls:

Particulars 218 2ME-TT 2516 20415 2314
Mat Earming (T In Crores) 18107 Mok 038 103.05 B5.64
Cash Eaming {¥ In Crares) 215.41 A 16740 285 9680
EPS-Basic {inT) 1240 .39 10.02 7 10.94
Obwidend (Including Interim Dividend 1.50 1.00 0.60 1.00% 0.50
per share) (inT)

Dividend Pay out (%) LR 0.0 539 5.82 457
Bpok Value Per Share {in T) B3.25 5044 39.59 B1.30 45109
Face value Per Share {in? ) 1.00 1.00 1.00 o0 1.00
Market cap | ¥ in Crares) Frrrl )| 585210 436945 3E7R.38 1764.38

The Board recammends the resalutions as item no S & 6 for approval of members as lpﬁulu:nluﬁﬁ

Item N, 7

Mr. Deval Canguly was re-appointed as Whole Time Director wef 5"
Wevembes, 205 for @ tenure of 3 years and subsequently remuneration
increase was approved by the Sharehalders in their meeting held on 24"
Septernber, 2015 for the remaining tanure which is gaing to expire on 4°
November, 2018,

In wlew of contribution In the manufacturing, project and plant
manzgament of the Company and the background & experience of Mr,
Deval Ganguly the Board of Oirectors at fts mesting held on May 11, 2018,
based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committes and subject to the approval of sharcholders at the ensuing
Annisal General Meeting has re-appointed Mr. Deval Ganguly as Whole
Time Director of the Company for three years on the terms and conditions

gheen below -

%

&

Term : Thres years commencing from 5* November, 2018 to 4™
Movernber, 2021,

Mature of Dutles : Mr. Deval Ganguly shall devote his whole time
and attantion to the business of the Company and camy out such
duties as may be entrusted to him by the Managing Director
and/or the Baard from time to time and exerclse such powers as
miay be assigned to him, subject to the superintendence, contral
and directions of the Boand in connection with and in the bast
interests of the business of the Compamy.

Bagle Salary 1 In the range of T 3.00 |acs to ¥ 450 lacs per
month fwith such annualfspecial increments within the aforesald

L o

m

gwp

range a8 may be decided by the Board or any Comm|ttes theneaf, In
the absaolute discretion from time to time),

Houss rant Allowanes ; 50% of Baslc Salary.

Parformance Incentlve ¢ As may be determined by the
Momination and Bemuneration Committee from time to time.

Speclal Allowancs ; In the range of T 2.00 lacs to T 4.00 lacs per
month (a5 may be determined by the Board or Momination and

Aemunaration Committee thereof in eachyear).

Transpert Allowance; 7 1,600 parmonth

Education Allowancs; * 200 permonth

Madical Allowance: ¥ 1,250 permanth

Other benefits:

Leave Travel Concession & ESOP in accordance with the Rules of
the Company.

Explanation -

Peruisites shall be evaluated as per Intome Tax Rubes whenever
applicable and in the abksence of amy such rule, perquisite shall be
evaluated at actual cost tothe Company.

In addition to the remuneration as detailed herein above Mr. Deval
Gangulyshall also be eligibla farthe following perquisites:

a) Comtribution to provident fund, superannuation fund, annuity
fund or pension fund to the axtent thase either singly or pist
together aremot taxabla underthe Income Tax Act, 1961,

b Gratulty payvable at a rate not excecding half month's salany for



wach tormpleted year of service, and

¢} Encashment of leave as per Rules of the Companmy,

d) Other Pemuisites also include use of Company's Car with
dirtwer, Mudical Insurance, Group Peronal Actiderttal coverage
a3 applicable to all employees of the Company from time to
time and reimbursement of entertainment and all other
expanses Incurred by him for business of Company as per the
Campany Rules,

Mo Sitting fee for attending the meetings of Board of Directors
Commiliten thareof shall be paid to Mr, Deval Ganguly Uil the time he is
functioning as a Whaobe Time Director,

Overall Remuneration
The total remuneration payable to Mr. Deval Ganguly by way of salary
perquisites, allowances, benefits and amenities as approved by the
Bosrd shall not exceed the Bmits laid down In Sectien 197, 198 and other
relevint provisions of Companies Act, 2073 or any statutory
e e ations of re-enactments thereof.
Hinimum RemJneration -
In the abnence of or inadequacy of profits in any year. Me Deval Ganguly
shall be entitied to receive and be paid the above mmuneration as
minimum emuneration in that year by way of salary, allowances,
parguliites snd other benefits in that year, subject hewever to the
culling specified under Schedule V' of the Companles Act, 20713
(Including any statutory modifications and re-enactment thereaf).
Mr, Duval Ganguly, a B, Tech fram IIT Kanpur, holds 37 yeasrs of
wxperience in amas of manufacturing, project and plant management
in various reputed organisations. He joined the Company in 200 as
President, Manufacturing and was elevated to Board w.ef 05102072
Ha has been instrumentsl for varous inftisthes In the manutacturing
plants which has nat only increased the etficiency but atuo been abis to
rationsliee the cost of manufacturing.
More of the Directors of Ky Marargerial Personned of the Comparmy and
thatlr relativs other than b Deval Ganguly s in amy way, concemed or
inuerested in the resolution no 7
Tha Board recommaends the resolution & item no 7 for spproval of
marnibarm a8 special resobutian
Item No. 8-10
The Sharehalders of the Company approved appointment of M Vivek
Kumar, Mr. Pankaj Shrimali and Mr. Kuruvila Kuriakose as Independent
Directors whase term |s golng to explre on 1* March, 2008,
As per Section W9(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent
Director shall hold office for 2 term of upto five consecutive years on
the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appolntment on
passing & special resolution by the Company for another tern of upto
Five conuscutiv years on the Board of a Company.
e Vivek Kumad, b Panka] Shrimadl and be Kunvils Kurlgionse besng
aligible, haove offered themashes for reappointment & Independent
Director af the Camparny.
M. Pankaj Shrimall hotds 22000 equity shares of the Company whereas
Me Vivek Kumar and Mr. Kuruvita Kuriakose does nat hold any eguity
shares of the Comgpany.
Ir e with the aforesald provisions of the Companies Act, 2003 and In view
of long, rich experience, continued valuable guidance to the management
and strong Board perfarmance and evaluation of all the thies Independent
Directors Mr, Vivek Kumar, Mr, Panka] Shrimall and Me Eurovila Kurakose,
it is proposed to re-appoint them for the second teérm s an Independent
Director on the Board of the Company for a period of five years upts st
March, 2004 on fallowing terms
1. Temm | Five years commencing fram 7 Agdl, 2079 to 37" March,
okl

L. Mature of Duties : Mr Vivel Kumar, e Panim| Shrimali and Mr
Kuruvila Kuriakose, shall art as independent Dinectors of the
Comparny and will comply with all the duties and responaibilities

ssigned to independent Directors a2 per the relevant provisions B
Scheduie IV of Companies Act, 2073 and SEBI (LODR) Regulstions,
F.ij 8

3. Remunerstion | Mo Vieek Kumar, Mr. Pankaj Shiimall and M
Euruwvila Kurishoes, thall be entithed to receive Sitting Fees for the
Board and Commilttes Meetings attended during the tehum as
decided by the Boand of Directors of the Company.

4. Commisslon 1 In addition to the sitting fee Me. Vivek Kurmar, Mz
Panka| Shrimall and Mr. Kuruvila Kuriakose, shall be entitied to
recelve Commission on the net profits as may be decided by the
Board of Directors of the Company from time to time, sulject to
the ovarall limit of % of net profits prescribed by the provisions of
Sectlon 197 and 198 and other relevant rules and provision of
Companles Act, 2073

in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Vivek Kumar, Mr. Panka] Shrimall
and Mr. Kuruvila Kusrdakose fulfils the onditions specified in the
Act. Extept for the above mentioned shareholding held by Mo
Pankaj Shrimall, #ll the three directors are independent of the
management. Copy of tha draft letter for appointment of Mr,
Vivek Kurmar, Mre. Pankal Shrimall and Mr. Kuravila Kuadakose as
an independent Directors setting out the terms and conditions
would be available for Inspection without any fee by the members
at the Registersd DMice of the Company during nommal business
hours an anmy working day.

Mr. Vivek Kumar is a MDA from Faculty of Management Studles, Deit
University and Electrical Engineer from tha University of Roorkes (now 1T
Roorkee). He has over 21 years of experience as Operational Head in leading
Indian companies. He has rich experience in manufacturing operations,
quality, productivity, emvronment and safety and alsa & management
consultant to many reputed corporates in the areas of guality, productivity,
emvironment and safety.

M. Pankaj Shrimall b @ Feliow member of Institute of Chartersd
Accourtants of indis (ICAL), Irstitvte of Compary Secretadies of india
0CSI), and institute of Cost Accountants of india. He has 34 years of
experience in aress of finance. accounts, secretarial, corporate
management, legal b corporate consultancy services, strategic
management and investmant banking for reputed corporate houses. He is
alumni of Shrirem College of Commerce and has been & rank holder in
graduation and professional exams.

Mr. Kuruvila Kurlakoss [s 8 membar of Institute of Chartered Accountants
of india, He has over 32 years of experience In anea of Finance in Footwear
Industry, He has been on the Board of Company for mone than § years and
had glven valued inputs about the Improvement and functioning of
Company in varipus s,

The Board considers that thel continued association would be of Immense
berefit to the Company and & s desirable to continue to svail senoes of
M. Vivek Kurnae, My Pania] Shrimali and Mr. Kuruvila Kuarakowe o an
independent Directorn. the Boand recommends passing of the
Resalution at item Mo, §-10 of the Notice as a Specal Resolution

Mone of the Directors ar Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and
their relatives, other than independent Directors of the Compamy for thelr
respective appointment. are concermed or interested in these Speclal
Resolutions set out ot [tem Mo, B-10 for approval of the Mem berm.

ltem No. T

It is proposed to pass Speclal Resolution under Sectlan 197 of the Act.
enabling the payment of commission to Directors {other than
Managing Director and/ or Whole Time Director/s) for sach financial
yEak

Considering the rich experience and expertise brought to the Board by the
Non-Executive Directons. ® is proposed that remuneration not exceeding
Thof the net profits of the Company, caloulates in acooedance with Section
198 of the Act. be continued to be paid and distributed smongst the Non-
Executive Directors of the Company in accordance with the
rerememendations of the Momination and Remuneraton Commirtes of



the Board and approval by the Board of Directors of the Compary, for each
financlal year,

The payment of commission would be (n addition to the sitting
fees payable for attending the Mestings of the Board and
Committeas thareof,

All the Independent Directors of the Company namely, Mr,
Vivek Kumar, Mr. Panka] Shrimali, Mr. Euruvila urlakose and Ms. Deepa

Delhi, Tith May, 2018

Verrna are concernid or interested in the Resalution mentioned at (tem
Mot of the accompanying Notice tothe extent of commisslon that may be
received by them.

Mane of the other Directors or Key Manageral Personnel of the

Company or their relatives ame in any way, concermed or interested In the
Resalution at Hem Mol of the Notice.

By Order of the Board
For Relano Footwear Limitad

Vikas Kumar Tak
Company Secretary
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